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Operational Highlights

14 months to 31 October 2019

Legal completions’ Average selling price Rental completions:
£k

Units Units
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Land bank Build cycle time First occupations

Units Months Number of developments

1 4 Months 53 Developments

7,695...

Fvic ECEL v FY16
Developments under Customer satisfaction3 Customers
manageme nt % of Management, Care and Wellbeing Services

Number in c.000s

Number of developments
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Fy18 Fy1g 93.5
FY17 FY17 91.2

Ajl comparatives are to the 12 month financial years ending 31 August uniess otherwise stated

i includes Outright Ownership completions and Shared Ownership completions. Incluoes a buk saie of 113 units (F¥18: 68 units)
2 Excludes rent to buy units

3 Survey of new homeowners by the NHBC and HBF 2013



Financial Highlights

14 months to 31 October 2019

Revenue Operating profit
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All comparatives are to the 12 month financial years ending 31 August uridess otherwise stated
1 Underlying operating profit margin and Return On Capital Employed have been reconcited within rnote 7 to the consolidated financial statements
2 Net cash/(debt) has been reconciled within note 25 to the consolidated financial staterments

3 This metric is a non-GAAP Alternative Performance Measure ("APM’) presented to provide additional useful information - see further detall
on the relevance of APMs within note 3 fo the financial statements
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Our Purpose

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

Our Purpose

To create communities
that enrich the quality
of life for our customers
and their families

|

Qur Vision

To create even deeper and
longer lasting relationships
with our customers

Graphic removed

|

Community
Independence _1
Support
Graphic removed Convenience
Aﬁo rd abl“ty Graphicremoved

Qur Strategy

To become the UK’s leading
developer and manager
of retirement communities

Our Initiatives
* Mutti-tenure options

* Strearmifined, contemporary and
compact architectural designs
at mass market prices

» Flexible, future procfed
services evolving with
customers’ needs

* Variety of payment
options

Above left: Watson Place, Chipping Norton, Oxfordshire
Above nght: Chiltern Place, Amersharm, Buclkinghamshire

02 McCarthy & Stone plc Piaase note that FY19.15 a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for @ 12 monih year ending 31 August unfess otherwise stated
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Creating communities

Putting our customers at the heart of everything we do

We will increase our customer appeal, diversify our revenue streams and reduce our exposure to market cyclicality
by focusing our approach on what our customers value': Independence, Support, Convenience, Community, Affordability.

Our Business Model Our Positive Impact
Targeted Customers
J * Improved quality of life * Increased independence
Land . .
A isiti « Convenience * Reassurance for family
cquisiieon * Enhanced security + High quality care and support
* Sense of community * New friendships
Society
* Reduced pressure on health * Bring life back to town
: and care services centres with ¢.80% of our
EFSCT-Ne * Unlock the housing market CUStomer§ using local shops
anning with ¢.2-3 further moves from almost daily®
and Design ) each sale or rental’ « £3.5k saving per person, per
« Support first time buyers year to the NHS and social care®
» Reduced loneliness amaong ¢ C.£200k raised for Beanstatk
older people our charity partner
High Quality Employees
and Safe * Improved satisfaction * Pay and rewards
Construction and wellbeing * Increased employee
* Enhanced loyalty engagerment
* Increased knowledge * Making a difference
and skills to society
Specialist | Environment
Sales and * Highly s_ustainable form * 97% of our sites are
Marketin of housing on brownfield land
arkeung = Health, safety and * 97% of construction site
environmental staterment waste is recycled
of intent + New Enterprise Car Clubs
initiative, reducing overall
car usage
Management,
We”pemg * Strong market fundamentals + New revenue streams
Services * Improved cash utilisation + Robust dividend

* Increased market penetration * Balanced risk

1 Savilies \World Research 2015, Housing and Ageing Popuiation
2 Bafl, Meatal (2011), Housing Markets in Ofd Age, Henley Business School, University of Reading
3 WP (2019)

Flease nate that FY19is a 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 menth year endmg 31 August unless otherwise siated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repart
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Our Strategy update

On track to deliver our strategic objectives, the Group’s main priority this year was to start
delivering on its three year programme of business optimisation. The strategy will deliver:

Stage 1 FY19-FY21: Optimisation of operations

Three year programme of business optimisation with focus on delivering >15% RQOCE, >15% operating

profit margin by FY21 and cumulative cash savings of >£90m across the life of the plan. The Group’s strategy
is being delivered through four key workstreams - workflow realignment, rightsizing the business, establishing
an efficient sales and marketing model and delivering build cost reductions. This strategy remains on track and
is expected to deliver ¢.£40m cost savings which will be weighted towards delivery in FY21 due to its focus

on build cost savings.

04

Operating profit margin

ENDECIE)) =

Return On Capital Employed
Fr18 10% >> FY19 10% >WW>; Fr21 >15% E I

Annual cost savings delivered

AR )

OL,

Cash savings
DR

McCarthy & Stone plc Please nota that FY191s a 14 manth penod and any comparatives are for a 12 menth yedr enchng 31 August urless otherwise slated
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Significant progress has been made with our long-term strategic initiatives:

Stage 2 FY19-FY23: Leveraging strategic opportunities

The Group’s three long-term strategic initiatives designed 1o leverage the long-term opportunities in this sector;
Choice of tenure, where the new rental proposition is gaining significant momentum; Flexibility of services,

where the Group has now taken full ownership of its care and services operation and is therefore now one of
the largest operators in the Housing with Care Sector; and Affordability of product, with the Group's first
development using Modern Methods of Construction (MMC) set to start construction during FY20.

Developing a new asset class through multi-tenure

[ ] Sales™ B ] Shared I~ ] Rental:
O hip:
2,301 wnership 101
Graphicremoved Graphic removed 47 Graphic removed New professional
Choice rental team in place
L _ L _ L -

Growing Management, Care and Wellbeing Services to 5% of Group Revenue

e ds e 2% prep > yrm>by >

% v YourLife Management services brought fully in-house v Expanded care offering, with flexible
care options now also available in
select Retirerment Living developments

Flexibility v New senvices introduced, including bistro restaurants
and car clubs

Streamlined, contemporary and compact affordable designs

¥v" New and more contemporary product ¥ Increased market penetration
designs rolled out through lower cost product offering
@ v Volumetric and panelised designs ¥ Modern methods of construction
developed (MMC} partners being considered

Affordability

Making a difference

¥ Customers are healthier and happier v Brownfield sites are being developed
v Reduced burden and costs to the NHS to create beautiful communities
@ v Families feel comforted knowing parents ¥ Improved local commerce
are safe and cared for ¥ Employment opportunities created
¥ Unlocks the secondary housing market v Improved margins and increased ROCE by FY23

“Includes Shared Ownarship

Please nole that FY1S 15 a 14 month penog and any comparatives are for 8 12 month year snding 31 August uniess othenwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement

_

Graphic removed
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Transformation in progress

The fast financial year marked the first year of a transformation
strategy for McCarthy & Stone as the Group began the
implementation of its two-stage strategy to become a
developer, owner and manager of retirement communities.

Significant progress has been made in both stages of the
strategy during the year. As part of the first stage of operations
optimisation (FY19 - FY21), the Group delivered £15m of
annualised savings. Overheads were optimised and its
structure realigned to drive increased focus on the customer
by bringing sales and services closer together and reframing
the development part of the business to deliver increased
value in our development pipeline. These two core activities
are led by our two Chief Operating Officers appointed in
January 2019: Mike Lloyd (COO - Services & Customers) and
Nigel Turner (COO - Build). There has also been significant
focus on improving margins on cur FY21 schemes which

are now set up to deliver savings in Y21 as planned.

Good progress was also made with the Group’s second stage
of the strategy focused on leveraging strategic opportunities

“Significant progress has been
made in both stages of the
strategy during the year”

Paul Lester, CBE Group Non-Executive Chairman

|

(FY19 - FY23), through providing customers with Choice
of tenure, Flexibility of service and Affordability of products.
Following successful incubator trials early in the year, the
newly launched rental and mukti-tenure offering is gaining
strong momentum, with a total of 169 rental and shared
ownership transactions having been completed, helping the
Group to address a challenging secondary housing market
and enabling it to tap into broader demand for retirement
housing. Rental and multi-tenure offering is expected

to form a larger proportion of overall volumes in FY20

and beyond as the Group progresses towards securing
third-party investment and builds a new asset class.

From the outset, the Board has been of the view that the
delivery of the Group's strategy and its transformation

with greater focus on providing customers with choice of
services and tenure, requires an exceptional leadership team
with the right skills and capability and the appointment of
the two exceptional candidates as COOs were critical to
achieving this, as demonstrated by the significant progress
made during the first year of the five year strategy.

£725m £43m  5.4p

Revenue Profit before tax Dividend per share
{FY18: 5.4p)

FY18: £672m) FY18; £58m)}

£

06 McCarthy & Stone plc Prease note that FY19 is a 14 month perod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwise stafed
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2019 performance

Despite continuing subdued secondary housing market
conditions and strategic structural changes to the business,
during the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019 the
Group delivered revenue of £725m (2018: £672m) reflecting
a 3% improvement in average selling price to £308k {2018:
£300k) and legal completions of 2,301 units {2018: 2,134).

During the 14 manth period, the Group achieved an
underlying operating profit of £68m (2018; £68m)}, while the
Group's undertying operating profit margin reduced to 9%
(2018: 10%}) in line with expectations, primarily as a result
of an increased usage of part-exchange and incentives to
counteract the subdued secondary housing market.

As we become a more customer led business, the Group is
particularly proud to lead the sector on customer satisfaction
and continues to be the only developer of any size or

type to have received the full five star rating in the Home
Builders Federation {HBF) customer satisfaction survey for
14 consecutive years, in which mare than 92.8% of our
customers would recommend the Group to a friend.

Sector fundamentals and the UK
economic and political environment

The market for retirement communities remains highly attractive,
underpinned by high demand and a chronic under-supply of
suitable housing opticns for older people. According to the
Office of National Statistics (ONS) national population projection,
the number of people aged 65 or over will rise by 43% to 17.4
million and people aged 85 or over by 87% to 3 million by 2043
and yet just €.8,000 new retirement units came to the market
across all tenures in 2019 against an estimated demand of up
to 30,000 units per year, according to EAC (2019) and Knight
Frank (2016} reports. Demand for adult social care services is
also set to rige significantly from ¢, 700,000 people in 2020 to
¢.1.2 million in 2040, according to the PSSRU 2018 report.

In addition, the Group's own annual survey of 3,011
people aged 65 and over living in the UK, undertaken in
conjunction with YouGov in 2019, found that 33% would
consider downsizing, equating to ¢.4 million people.

Despite these strong fundamentals, trading conditions
during the reporting period remained challenging due to
the impact of ongoing pdlitical and economic uncertainty
on the secondary housing market, which constrains the
ability of our customers to sell their own property. Additional
uncertainty over potential stamp duty changes also

dented transaction levels. The Group's reservation rates
were also impacted by five weeks of campaigning ahead

of the General Flection held on 12 December 2019.

1 Savilles World Research 2015, Housing and Ageing Population

Looking ahead, the results of the General Election are likely
to somewhat remove the overhang of political uncertainty,
but economic uncertainty linked to the outcome of
negotiations on the UK future relationship with the EU is
expected to continue throughout the new financial year.

Making a real difference as a
responsible and sustainable business

The Group is focused on creating retirement communities,
enriching the lives of its customers and employees and
this influences all of its activities, from identifying and
buying suitable land, to designing, building, selling and
managing high quality, age-exclusive communities.

As a result, the Group has a positive impact on its customers
and their families by removing burdens and worries of
looking after large family homes, providing high quality care
and support, helping to build new friendships and giving
families peace of mind that their loved ones are cared for.

The Group’s land buying activities have

a significant positive impact on towns

and local communities by bringing

life back to town centres. 97% of
development sites are brownfields and
¢.80% of residents in our communities
use local shops almost daily.
]

The Group’s care services have also been shown to reduce
pressure on the health and social care service, saving
¢.£3,500 per parson per year according to WPl 2019 data.

Through providing appropriate housing for downsizers,
the Group also unlocks housing supply, as each

sale results in around two to three further moves’,
supporting first time buyers and young families, and
increasing stamp duty revenue for the Treasury.

The Group’s land buying activities have a significant
positive impact on towns and local communities by
bringing life back to town centres, 97% of development
sites are brownfield and ¢.80%? of customers in our
communities use local shops almost daily.

2 Bal, Metal (2011), Housing Markets in Old Age, Henley Business Schoal, University of Reading

Please note that FY19 15 a 14 month penod and any comparaives are for & 12 month yegr ending 31 August uniess othenwise staled
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Chairman’s Statement continuea

The Group is committed to running the business in a
responsible and sustainable manner when it comes to

the environment, C.97% of construction site waste is
currently recycled, new envircnmentally friendly Modern
Methods of Construction are on trial as part of our new
transformation strategy and we are looking to optimise
parking requirements for all new developments given their
central locations. A trial involving an electric shared car peol
is also underway with initial favourable customer feedback.

During 2020, there will be an increased Board focus on
sustainability through a newly formed Board Comporate and
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee chaired by Geeta
Nanda. This will be an independent committee overseeing
the work of the existing CSR committee at the Executive
level. The Board Committee will be responsible for making
recommendations regarding the Group's employees,
environmental, societal and community engagement and
its sustainability activities. It will also review health and
safety arrangements and make any recommendations
necessary to the Health and Safoty Committee.

Dividend

We continued our focus on careful cash management
throughout the year and this has enabled the Directors to
propose a final dividend of 3.5p per share (2018: 3.5p per
share), making the total dividend for the 14 month period 5.4p
per share (2018 5.4p per sharg). This payrment is in line with
the dividend paid in the prior year despite the Group’s lower
profits and signals the Board's confidence in its new strategy.

Board changes

We continue to strengthen our leadership team and have
made the following Board changes during the year:

1.January 2019 Mike Lloyd appointed to the Board
as COO - Services & Customers

1 January 2019 Nigel Turner appointed to the Board as
COQ - Build

10 April 2019 Gill Barr was appointed a Non-Executive
Director and Chair of The Remuneration
Committee

22 May 2019 John Carter, existing Non-Executive

Director, assumed the newly formed role
of Company designated Non-Executive
Director for engagement with the
workforee

31 October 2019  Mike Parsons stepped down as
Independeant Non-Executive Director

a8 McCarthy & Stone plc

Post year end changes

15 January 2020 Geeta Nanda existing Non-Executive
Director, assumed the newly formed
role of Chair of Corporate and Social
Responsibility Committee

20 January 2020 Adam Batty appointed as new General
Counsel and Company Secretary

Proposed changes to remuneration
policy for FY20-22

The current remuneration policy was put in place at the time
of the Company’s IPO. Since that time the UK Corporate
Governance Code has been updated and market practice
and investor views have evolved. The Group also appointed
Gill Barr as the new Chair of the Remuneration Committee
in April 2019, The policy has therefore been updated to
take account of these developments as well as to clarify
and refine some of the more widealy drawn aspects of

the policy that are not required for the next policy period,
namely pension contributions, discretion and clawback

as well as shareholding requirerments for Executive
Directors. Full details of the incentive plan payments for
FY19 and proposed changes to the remuneration policy
can be found in the Remuneration Report in the Annual
Report which will be published in February 2020,

tn conclusion, | would like to express our gratitude to all
stakeholders for their continued support of the Group during
these challenging years. McCarthy & Stone has unparalleled
knowledge of the market with over 40 years' experience,

a highly skilled workforce, a talented leadership team and

a national presence, which combined with exceptionally
strong fundamentals, a rapidly ageing population and
success so far with the new strategy means that the Group
has a more resilient business model and is well-placed to
respond positively when market conditions improve.

Paul Lester, CBE
Group Non-Executive Chairman
27 January 2020

Please nore that FY18 15 a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month vear ending 31 August unless otherwise Stated
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Beanstalk
Our charity partner - inspiring the next generation of readers

— 1

Graphic removed

Graphic removed
Graphic removed
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Beanstalk are a national children’s literacy charity who provide

one-to-one support to disadvantaged children who struggle

to read. We are delighted to have raised ¢.£200,000 for our

chosen charity partner for the last 12 months and we thank L

our employees, customers and partners for raising money

for this important charity. J

Graphic removed

As part of this fundraising, we were pleased to raise ¢.£70,000 [_ __}
in one evening at the McCarthy & Stone ‘Supplier Gala Dinner’,
which was held at Coombe Abbey in Coventry, Graphic removed

L _

Above feft: Beanstaik cheque presentation af the North East office Winter Ball
Above right: Ginny Lunin, Beanstalk CEQ and John Tonkiss at the "Supphier Gala Dinner’

Please note that FY15 is a 14 month penod and ary comMparatives are for a 12 month vear anding 31 August urfess otherwrse stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 09



Chief Executive Officer’s operational review

_
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Our results

The Group's new strategy has driven a solid FY 18 trading
performance, against a backdrop of ancther challenging year
in the secondary housing market during the 14 month period
ended 31 October 2019, The Group delivered revenue of
£725m (2018: £672m), supported by a 3% improvermnent in
average selling price, which increased during the period to
£308k {2018: £300k) reflecting improvements in the quality
and locations of our developments.

Trading volumes remained resilient during the period, despite
more: challenging conditions within the secondary housing
market, largely due to the continuing political and economic
uncertainty, as evidenced by persistently low levels of national
housing transactions and a declining consumer confidence
index. Additional uncertainty over possible stamp duty changes,
which were trialled as part of the Government’s plans over

the summer, created further customer inertia and impacted
transaction levels, making trading conditions more challenging.
Despite this, however, the Group delivered 2,301 legal
completions during the 14 maonth period {(2018: 2,134).

2308k

Average selling price
(FY18: £300K)

Land bank
(FY18: 9,797 units)

10 McCarthy & Stone plc

“The Group’s strategy has driven
a solid FY19 trading performance
against a backdrop of another
challenging year in the secondary
housing market”

John Tonkiss, Chief Executive Officer

]

Market demand

The structural imbalance between supply and demand within
the housing market continues to provide us with an exceptional
market opportunity over the medium and long-term, and

the Group welcomes the recent commitments from the new
Government to deliver more homes. This structural imbalance
is particularly acute in the market for retirement housing where
the dernand is estimated at 30,000 retirement units per annum
against a supply of just ¢.8,000? units across all tenures.

To address this imbalance and as part of our strategy, we

see tremendous opportunity in providing a greater choice for
customers through multi-tenure solutions. According to the
English Housing Survey 2019, around one in five households
(19%;} in England live in the private rented sector, which is
equivalent to 4.5 million households, making it the second
largest tenure after home ownership, and a part of the market
that has grown significantly in recent years. By comparison,
17% (4 million) live in the social rented sector and 64% (14.8
million) are owner occupiers.

7,695units 92.8%

Customer satisfaction
(FY18: 93.5%)

1 EAC 20719}
2 Knight Frank (2016}

Flease note that FYT9 s & 14 month penod and any comparatves are for a 12 menth vesr encing 31 August undess otherwrse stafed
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QOur own research also suggests that 50% of our customers
would also be happy to consider renting, many of whom are
currently owner occupiers, which suggests strong demand in
this space.

During four decades as the retirement housing market leader,
the Group has formulated a tailored approach to sales, site
acquisition, design, securing detailed planning consents and
construction that mainstream housebuilders have been unable
to replicate, We also ensure that our customers receive the
highest standards of ongomg support through our management
services offering which now provides services for ¢.20,000
customers within 434 developments - one of the largest
operations of its kind in the UK. These high barriers to entry in
our market ensure that we maintain a unique position as the
only developer capable of meeting the nationwide need for
high quality specialist communities for the growing number

of older people who are looking to move to properties more
suited to their needs and lifestyle.

Strategic update

Stage 1 FY19-FY21: Optimisation of operations

The Group’s main priority this year was to start delivering
on its three year programme of business optimisation with
focus on delivering >15% ROCE', 15% operating profit
margir? by FY21 and cumulative cash savings of >£90m
across the life of the plan. This strategy remains on track
and is expected to deliver ¢.£40m cost savings which

will be weighted towards delivery in FY21 due to its focus
on build cost savings, This part of the Group’s strategy is
being delivered through four key workstreams - workflow
realignment, nghtsizing the business, establishing an
efficient sales and marketing model and delivering build cost
reducticns. In FY19, we delivered £15m of cost savings
and £20m cash savings across these workstreams.

The Group has substantially completed its work to rightsize
the business and cptimise its operaticnal cost base to deliver
steady state volumes, resulting in an annualised cash saving
of ¢.£10m. Additional steps to optimise its operating business
in line with the Group’s strategy were also taken which will
drive increased focus on the customer by bringing sales and
services closer together and reframe the development part

of the business to deliver increased value in our development
pipeline. This realignment consolidates our operational footprint
into four development divisions and will help strengthen

the Group's oversight as well as reducing costs further.

Additional headcount savings of ¢.£2m have also been
achieved as part of our strategy 1o optimise the Group's
sales operating model and the Group's focus in FY20 now
turns te improving off-plan sales and reducing incentive costs

via strategic use of part-exchange and shared ownership
models. These key initiatives will be supported by the
Group's new salesforce CRM system which has now been
rolled out across all divisions, further marketing investment
and the recent launch of an improved new website.

The build cost reduction initiative is also progressing

well delivering £3m savings this year and with key
savings already embedded in construction budgsts for
FY20 sites. Specific plans are now in place to deliver an
average improvement of ¢.£E10k per unit across our FY21
schemes. This activity is expected to deliver more than
half of the proposed ¢.£40m cost saving in FY21.

The Group is now focusing on increasing
land optionality to ensure that the
business is well positioned to respond
when market conditions improve.
]

In line with the Group’s strategy to smoaoth its workflow
and legal completions delivery, during the 14 month period
the Group delivered 53 high quality first occupations
(2018: 68), 38 planning consents {2018: 37), 34 land
exchanges (2018: 54} and 40 build starts {(2018: 53) during
the period. The Group is now focusing on increasing land
optionality to ensure that the business is well positioned

to respond when market conditions improve.

Year end finished stock levels reduced to 1,828 (2018: 1,785)
and are expected to reduce further by the end of FY20 given
the lower level of planned FY20 first occupations (¢.37) (2019:
53) and the increased focus on selling down recently released
finished inventory (c.90% of stock is under 2 years old). This
is in line with our new strategy and underpins a strong cash
position by the end of the year in line with our strategic plan.

1 Return On Capital Employed (ROCE) is calculated by dividing underlying operating profit by the average
Tangible Gross Asset Value at the beginning and end of the periad. TGAV is calculated as TNAV less net debt

2 Caiculated as undarlying operating profit divided by revenue for the year

Please nole that FY 195 a 14 month perod and any comparaltives are for & 12 month year endmg 31 August unless otherwise statex
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Chief Executive Officer’s operational review continues

Stage 2 FY19-FY23: Leveraging strategic opportunities Affordability

During the period, the Group has also made good progress * \We have been working with potential partners in the

with its three long-term strategic initiatives to provide volumetric and panelised development industry to progress

custormers with increased Choice, Flexibility and Affordability our plans to deveiop a new and more contemporary product

and leverage the long-term opportunities in this sector, with a more efficient layout utilising Modern Methods of
Construction (MMC) to accelerate construction times,

Choice improve build guality further, reduce costs and ultimately

lower average selling prices to help maintain our mass

* We made excellent progress with our new multi-tenure market appeal

offering, giving our customers a choice of ownership, with

a professional rental team now in place. This was rolled out * Asa result, our first development to be built using
to more than 70 developments nationally by the end of the MMGC is set to start construction during FY20.
reporting period, following successful trials in the spring
that confirmed strong demand for rental acrass both the Land bank |
Retirement Living and Retirement Living PLUS products. During the 14 month period, we invested £111m (2018
* As of 26 January 2020, the rulti-tenure offering was live £112m) in land and our landbank now stands at 7,695 units
across all our developments with 175 rental, 43 rent to buy (2018: 9,797 units), which equates to 3.7 years’ supply (2018:
and 75 part-buy part-rert reservations since this initiative 4.7 years’ supply) based on current unit sales volumes. 34 high
commenced. quality sites with attractive embedded margins were added

to the landbank during the year {2018: 54). This is in line with
our new strategy focusing on a more measured trajectory and
srmocther workflow objectives.

* Good progress has been made in building a ‘seed
investment portfolio’ of =100 rentals with attractive gross
rental yields' of ¢.6%-8%. The Group has mandated
Rothschilds & Co to secure high quality third-party capital
partners to co-invest in the Group's retirement rental strategy Qur focus on quality
and to create a portfolio of scale up to an asset value
of ¢.£300rm over the next three years with strong yields
and low occupancy churn focused entirely on the hugely
underserved retirement living sector. This workstream is well
progressed and the Group has now received investment
proposals from high quality funding partners with commercial
negotiations ongoing. We have a strong pipeline wilh
potential to develop into a full Build to Rent (BTR) strategy.

We are delighted to report that, once again, we achieved

the full five star rating in the Home Builders Federation

{HBF) customer satisfaction survey for 2019. This marks the
fourteenth consecutive year in which we have achieved a five
star rating and this year 92.8% of our customers have said

that they would recommend us to a friend. We are the only
developer of any size or type to win this award every year since
it was introduced in 2005. This sustained recognition by our

* Following this successful roll out and ramp up in H2 FY19, customers of the quality of product and service we deliver is a
we now expect an increased proportion of our 2,100 strong endorsement of our continued desire to design, build,
targeted volumes to come from the new rental offering aell and manage the very best retirement developments,
during FY20.

Our employees
Flexibility Ou , ; i .
. r performance during this transformational year would not

* In July, we took full ownership of our care and services have been possibie without the dedication, enthusiasm and
operation and we are thersfore now one of the largest expertise of our people. They are critical to the continued
operators in the Housing with Care sector. We continue evolution of the business and | am personally involved in
to offer and test new services across our developments establishing employee engagement plans to support our new
while also expanding our care offering into our Retirement strategy, transitioning to a customer centric business with
Living developments and increasing cateting options. increased proportion of services. In addition, the voice of our

« This reprasents the first milestene towards the Group's employees is now represented at Board level through John
target of generating >5% of Group revenue from Carter, who became Non-Executllve Director responsible for
management services by providing flexible, future prooted engagement with our workforce in May 2019,

services that evolve with our customers’ needs.

1 Gross rental yiold: this is Rental Yield on arr iivestment Hefare any associated cosis 1or managing the investment are taken inta account

12 McCarthy & Stone ple Please note that FYTQ s a 14 month penodl and any comparalves are far 3 12 month year ending 31 August umless otherwrse stated
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During the year, we introduced a structured employee opinion
survey with an excellent response rate of 74%, exceeding

the industry standard of 80%. Our survey delivered positive
Engagement index and Culture and Transformation index
scores, and we were pleased that ¢.80% of respondents said
they felt positive about working for the company.

We are in our third year of building a culture of excellence that
provides further opportunities for development and recognises
achievermnents by regularly celebrating those employees who go
the extra mile for a customer or colleague, through our instant,
quarterty and annual PRIDE awards for Passion, Responsibility,
Innovation, Determination and Excelience. The Board is mindful
that 2019 was another particularly challenging year for the
Group and its employees and would like to place on record their
appreciation of the huge efforts undertaken by all employees
ac:rokss the Group, particularly against the backdrop of a difficult
market.

In 2019, 16 (2018: 20) of the Group's Site Managers were
quality award winners in the NHBC Pride in the Job Awards. In
addition, two of the winners went on to win Seals of Excellence
and one colleague went on 1o receive the Regional Award for
the South West. These awards are the most prestigious within
the industry and our success is testament to the hard work of
all our employees across the Group.

Health and safety

I am pleased to report that we have continued to make good
progress with developing a culture of excellence in health and
safety across the Group. Our vision remains not just to achieve
health and safety compliance, but to lead our sector with a
robust and consistent safety culture across our organisation.
Our internal manitoring regime is supported by a rigorous,
independent site inspection pragramme including regular
reporting updates to the Board,

During FY19, we were pleased to receive HNBC Health and
Safety Awards: four commended and two highly commended
awards. McCarthy & Stone is proud that the Group's high
standards of health and safety have been recognised by
extarnal inspectors across multipie sites. This reflects a 100%
increase in total NHBC awards received compared to last year
{2018: 3).

Continuing work with the Government

Throughout the year, we continued to engage with Government
departments on a variety of issues, including planning, starmp
duty, social care and ground rents, making the case for the
retirement community industry as a whole.

Please note that FY19 15 a 14 month pencd and any coipparatives are for a 12 manth year encing 31 August uriess atherwise stated

We welcomed new national planning guidance for councils on
alder and disabled people’s housing which was published by
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) on 26 June 2019. It recognised that local authorities
should do more to plan for the provision for specialist housing
for older people, noting that the need for this form of housing
has become ‘critical’. In particular, the document confirmed
that retirernent communities have a different viability model and
should be assessed differently to mainstream housing during
Section 106 discussions.

We were also pleased to see MHCLG's publication of its
response to its October 2018 consultation on ground rents

on 27 June 2019, where the government confirmed that the
retirement community sector will be given an exermption and
permitted to charge an economic ground rent after they are
reduced to zero elsewhere. We continue to discuss the detail
of the exemption with the Government and will work with them
as the proposals pass through Parliament.

Outlook

The Group's new strategy has driven a solid trading
performance in a difficult market. Although the result of

the General Election in December 2019 eased the political
uncertainty, the pre-election period impacted our performance
at the start of H1, and our H1 out-turn is expected to be lower
than the prior year. Qur full year out-turn remains in line with
expectations, weighted towards H2.

We expect to see an increased opportunity for multi-tenure,
which has made a positive start and is expected to become a
more substantial part of the Group’s overall volumes in FY20
and beyond.

Cur focus on optimising financial performance will continue
as the Group's new strategy develops throughout FY20, with
the majority of benefits coming from our build cost reduction
initiative, which will result in an improved operating margin in
Fy21.

John Tonkiss
Chief Executive Officer
27 Jdanuary 2020
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QOur Market
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Neptune and Triton House, Worthing, West Sussex

We have unparalleled knowledge of our market, a highly An ageing population
skilled and experienced workforce and a national presence

. The UK's population continues to age rapidly. The number of
operating across England, Scotland and Wales. pop ge rapicy.

people aged 65 or over in 2018 stood at 12.2 million, and will

We lead a sector with exceptionally strong fundamentals, rise to 17.4 million by 2043, a 43% increase, Those aged 85
including a rapidly ageing population and a fong-term or over will rise from 1.6 million 1o 3.0 million over this period,
undersupply of high quality and appropriate housing for an 87% increase’, This suggests strong and ongoing demand
older people. for retirernent communities.

Key statistics

= Number of pecple aged 65 and over in the
UK in 2018: 12.2 million'

» Estimated growth in the number of people
aged 65 and over by 2043: 43%"

* Number of people aged 65 and over who

Projected UK population growth' {million)

2018

2043

would consider downsizing: ¢.4 million? Aged 65+ Aged 85+

* New retirement properties built in 2U19: ¢.8,000°

= Estimated annual demand for retirernent Linked to this, demand for adult social care services Is also
properties: 30,000¢ set to rise significantly, from ¢.700,000 people in 2020 to

¢.1.2 million in 2040°,

Projected number of older service users (thousands) in England 2020-2040

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Change %

Community care

Direct payments 48 54 62 70 76 58%
Publicly funded care 214 249 299 355 390 82%
Privately funded care 126 135 144 152 167 33%
Residential care

Publicly funded residents 167 187 202 238 262 57%
Privately funded residents 163 182 221 255 280 72%
Total 718 807 828 1,070 1,175 64%

Source: PSSRL (2018)

1 ONS National Population Projections (2018-based) 4 Kmght Frank (2076)
2 YouGov Survey for McCarthy & Stone (2019) 5 PSSRU (2018}
3 EAC {20719}

14 McCarthy & Stone plc Please note that FY19.s 2 14 month penod and any cornparatves are for 3 12 month year enting 37 August uivass olferwise stated
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An under-supply of suitable housing options

Despite this, the UK retirerment community market remains
under-supplied. Just ¢.8,000" new units came to the market
across all tenures in 2019, which is set against demand that

is estimated to be up to 30,00C? units a year. This creates a
significant annual shortfall and the number of older people living

Strong demand to downsize

We also continue to see strong demand from potential
customers to move. Our annual survey of 3,011 people
aged 65 and over in the UK with YouGov in 2019 found that
33%° would consider downsizing, eguating to more than 4
millicn people.

in the UK far exceeds the supply of suitable retirement housing.
]

We continue to see strong demand from
potential customers to move. In 2019

we found that more than 4 million older
people would consider downsizing.
- ___________________________________________ ]

This shortage remains one part of the wider housing crisis.

It is estimated that England alone needs ¢.300,000° new homes
a year to match demand, but there were just ¢.241,000° net
additions in 2018/19,

Specialist retirement housging? {units to market in 2019)

For 2,557

Rent

For 4,517
Sale

For Shared

Ownership

Subdued housing market conditions

Despite these strong fundamentals, trading conditions in FY19 were challenging due to the impact of ongoing political and
economic uncertainty on the secondary housing market, which affects the ability of our customers to sell their own property.
Additional uncertainty over potential stamp duty changes also dented transaction levels, particularly in the South East.

Residential transactions in 2019 decreased compared to the two previous years® and price increases in 2019 were just 0.5%,
with prices falling in London’.

Residential property transactions year-to-date comparison {(2010-11 to 2019-20}

1,000,000
800,000
2]
5
'*(:cé 600,000 . Non-seasonally Adjusted
o
5 B scasonally Adiusted
= 400,000
200,000
O 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-18 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2018-20
1 EAC (2018) 3 HM Treasury (2017) &5 YouGov survey for 6 HMRC (Septamber 2019)

McCarthy & Stone (2019)

2 Knight Frank (2016) 4 MHCLG (2019) 7 Savilis (2019)

Please note that FY19 is a 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 Augest uniess otherwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 15



Our Market continued

Tapping into the broader retirement housing market

Our new multi-tenure options have helped to address these In rosponse, and as part of our strategy, we are maximising
subdued conditions. Around one in five households (19%) in this opportunity to provide a greater chaice for our customers
England live in the private rented sector, which is equivalent by offering multi-tenure solutions including:

t0 4.5 million households, making it the second largest tenure

after home ownership and this is the part of the market that * Outright ownership

has grown significantly in recent years. By comparison, 17% * Shared ownership
{4 million) five in the social rented sector and 64% (14.8 million) * Rental
are owner occupiers'.
* Rent to buy
Our own research suggests that 50% of our customers
would also be happy to consider renting, many of whom are
currently owner accupiers, which suggests strong demand in
this space.
UK housing tenure trends - rise of renting
80%
70% T ———— _.'_
&) |
: \—\__* wsee,,,
B80% : Trnttes
= ’ 17,850,630: 63%
= {17,450,600: 59% )
g 50% : - Qwner Occupiers
[o} !
K | .
= 40% — == Private Renters
- :
g 30% : = Social Renters
-— >3 v .
& 5,600,200; 20% ; 0:980.240: 28%
& 20% — e
4,760170:17% | 4,940170: 17%
10% —
0%

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2M4Q 2012 2014 2018 2018 2020 2022

Source: Jones Lang LaSalle IP Inc, EHS (2016-2017}

30,000 50% £3.5«

estimated demand of our customers savings for the NHS and
for retirerment would be happy to social care system per
properties? consider renting® yeatr, per person living in

a retirement community*

1 English Housing Survey (2019} 3 YouGov Survey for McCarthy & Stone (2019)
2 Knight Frank (2016] 4 WP 2019)

16 McCarthy & Stone plc Please note that FY19.5 a 14 manth pencd and any comparatves are for a 12 manth yeer ending 31 ALGust uriess otherwise stated
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Spending by older consumers

Older households are also set to dominate consumer spending in the years ahead. Their share of total spending in the UK will rise
from 54% in 2018 to 63% in 2040. Households aged 65 and over are also the fastest growing consumer group’.

This supports our strategy to increase revenue from our Management, Care and Wellbeing Services and to set up a range of new

services as part of our Flexibility strategic pillar.

2001 to 2040: total household spending, by age groups'

300

N .-o-uo..-o.-.--o:.#' - Under 30
250 e ——
\/-fn sanees®®” easesetttt »»+s Forecast under 30
. ..-o-"' ...o
: .-.I' --oo  souo

200

W ] ,-“'.‘ ssse Forecast 30-49
150

«see FoOrecast 50-64

100 /

Estimated and projected annual
household expenditure (£ bn)

- 05 and over

asssasuned
50 Wﬂ""“""""" ’ =sse Forecast 65 and over

o :
EN 4 S A D N
S & FSF S F S

Government support

FFES LS E S

The Government continues to support the supply of retirement To help promote the many benefits of retirement living, we

communities. There were two key developments in FY19:

+ New national planning guidance for councils on older and
disabled pecple’'s housing was published by the Ministry

of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
on 26 June 2019. The new guidance recognised that local
authorities should do more to plan for the provision for
specialist housing for older people, noting that the need for
this form of housing has become ‘critical’, In particular, the
document confirmed that retirement communities have a
different viability model and should be assessed differently
to mainstream housing during Section 106 discussions.

On 27 June 2019, MHCLG also published its response

to its October 2018 consultation on ground rents, The
Government confirmed that the retirement community
sector will be given an exemption and permitted to charge
an economic ground rent after they are reduced to zero
elsewhere. We continue to discuss the detail of the
exemption with the government and will work with
MHCLG as the proposals pass through Parliament.

have formed a new consortium with other retirement operators
called Hornes for Later Living (H4LL). In September 2019,
HA4LL published ‘Healthier and Happier’, the first of three
planned reports on the positive sacio-economic impact

of retirernent communities. The report found that each

person living in a retirement community saves the NHS and
social care system £3.5k a year?. The next two repotts, on
downsizing and community benefits, will be published in 2020,

[ N

Graphic removed

L |

Housing Minister Esther McVey MP, pictured here alongside CEQ John Tonkiss
celebrating the second anniversary of the opening of Lawson Grange, Wilmslow

T ILC, 2019, Maximising the longevity dividend
2 WPI (2019)

Prease note that FYT9 s & 14 month penod and any COMPANaNves are for a 12 month year enchng 31 August LMess otherwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 17



Our Communities

?
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How do we help to create communities?

McCarthy & Stone designs and builds homes specificaily
for people over the age of 60. We provide management,
care and wellbeing services for our customers and
appreciate that their needs evolve over time.

We are responding to those changing needs within

our strategy by providing more flexible services and this
alfows us to create longer-fasting and deeper relationships
with our custormers.

18 McCarthy & Stone plc

Graphic removed

|

We build beautiful homes We have happier customers
* Retirement Living s ‘Welcorming
(over 80s) s Friendly
* Retirement Living PLUS
{over 70s) * Safe
¢ Healthier

* Bungalows

We provide flexible We have passionate people

ervi i
services * A professional workforce

* Property management * Customer focused staff
* Qutstanding care

» Excellont wellbeing services » Determination to provide

excellent customer service

Prease note that FY191s a 14 month perod and any comgaratives are for & 12 month year encing 31 August unless otherwise stated
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What makes our communities special”?

Our Homes

>

Graphic removed

* Communities proven
to promote happier
and healthier lives

¢ Beautifully designed
homes and
communal areas

* Fabulous landscaped
gardens

¢ High quality buildings

Our Customers

=

* Fantastic locations close .

to local amenities

* Excellent accessibility
inside and out

* Energy efficient designs
e (Camera door entry

Our Services'’

e

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphicremoved

L

High quality property
management

» Dedicated on-site House
and Estate Managers
providing help, security
and reassurance

= A range of activities
and social events

* Tailored domestic
assistance and
personal care suppoit

Please refer to page 22-25

Graphic removed

* Provide a welcoming
environment

* Help make new
friendships

* Encourage each other
to get involved

¢ Our biggest advocates

1 Facilities and services may vary by srfe

* Engage with the wider

local cornmunity through

our Beanstalk charity
support initiative

* Participate in community

and social activities

Our People

N

* Restaurants or bistros
run by high guality chefs

¢ Car clubs in partrership
with Enterprise Car Rental,
reducing overall car usage

* Tailored exercise classes

Please refer to page 26-27

-

Graphic removed
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* A qualified care and
support team

* A determined and
respansible workforce
who put our customers
first, providing the highest
levels of customer service

+ Innovative employees who
continually identify ways
to improve our services

Please refer to page 28-29

Top left: Lantern Court, lifracormbe, Devon
Bottomn right: McCarthy & Stone Resales team

Please nole that FYi2.s g 14 month period and any compgraiives are for & 12 month year enaing 31 Avgust unfess othenwmge sfated

]

* All employees follow the
McCarthy & Stone ways
of working guidelines
to ensure a positive
environment is embedded
within our communities
and places of work

& Qur 24/7 team within our
Retirement Living PLUS
developments provide
care and reassurance
for our customers

Please refer 1o page 30-31

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 18
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Case study: Ron Daykin, Milward Place, Redditch

“The option to rent was extremely
welcome as it allowed me to keep the
level of flexibility | desired. While | have
a job at the moment and work from
home several days a week, at some
point in the future | will want to retire.
Not yet admittedly!”

Ron Daykin (63), moved to McCarthy & Stone'’s Milward
Place development at the end of October, where he now
rents an apartment.

Having lived in the Redditch area for over 40 years, Ron,
who previously lived on his own, was keen to move into

a community with like-minded people of a similar age. The
location of Milward Place was perfect for him as it allowed
him to continue his work as a Policy Advisor for a local
authority. Homeownership was not an opticn for Ran,
who at 83 did riot want to be tied in to another mortgage.

Ron comments, “l lived by myself in a residential apartment
where you don't know or see your neighbours. There was

a wide range of ages with people at different points in their
lives, and | began to feel quite isolated and a bit lonely. The
sacialisation aspect of McCarthy & Stone was very appealing
to me, as it opened up the opportunity to meet new people.
The option to rent was extremely welcome as it allowed me
to keep the level of flexibility | desired.

20 McCarthy & Stone plc

|

“| didn't want to be burdened with having to move again and
the stresses this can bring. Taking the decision to move into
a retirement community sooner and not waiting until | was
slightly older, meant getting myself in the best position,
whatever the future might hold.

“It has allowed me to have the perfect balance of private
and sacial life, as well as being able to continue to work,
It's the best of both worlds and it’s allowed me fo get back
out theret”

Since moving to Milward Place, Ron has been getting to
know the other residents.

“l was one of the very first people to get the keys to their
apartment”, say Ron. "I have been getting tc know names,
we've been chatting over a coffee in the shated lounge,
and my neighbour has invited me round to their apartment
so I'm already starting to see some of the benefits.”

Ron was aware of Milward Place before building started
there and kept a close eye on its progress. He attended a
discovery day at a local hotel where he chatted through the
various options available to him with the McCarthy & Stone
team, and decided to sign up on the spot.

Ron comments, “The way people all knew each other and
would plan activities and events as a community, was really
encouraging and gave me confidence that | had made the
right choice in renting an apartment at Milward Place.”

Please note that FY1915 a 14 month penog and any comparaties are for & 12 month year enciing 37 August unless othenwse stated
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Making a real difference to our customers

What is the purpose of our communities?

Woe design homes specifically for people over the age of 60 and with our customers at the heart of our decision making. We create
our communities with our customers' long-term interests in mind, as we appreciate their needs will evolve over time. We also have
Management, Care and Wellbeing Services to provide our customers with the desired level of care and support to meet their

personal needs.

Independence
¢ To be in close proximity to transport and local services

* Have privacy and their own outdoor space

Support

* Social activities which they can take part in when they want

¢ Healthcare provision it and when required

Convenience
* Easy to use features which enhance their lifestyle and safety

Community

* Helping our customers to remain an active part of
their community

Affordability

* Value for money

We provide choice, flexibility and affordability for our customers

Choice of tenure options

What are our tenure options?
= Ownership - Purchase a property cutright
* Rent - A monthly rental charge to live in a property

* Rent to buy - An initial rental period for customers
with the option to buy a property outright

*» Shared ownership - Purchasing and owning a
percentage of a property, whilst also paying a monthly
rental charge

Affordability enables us to
@ be more competitive and

Affordability

How are we improving?
* More contemporary designs

* Accelerated construction times through Modern
Methods of Construction (MMC)

* Reduction in selling price of properties due to
more efficient processes

* A wider mass market appeal through more
affordable housing being available

made available for customers

attractive to a wider market

Flexibility of services

% that respond to changing
customer requirements

Flexibility

What are the features of flexibility?

* Extended care offering full support

* Integrated technology enabled services
* New partnerships with gyms and clubs
e Enterprise Car Clubs to reduce car use

* A variety of payment options available including
a deferred management fee

¢ Option to purchase food and beverages from restaurants
and bistros in Retirement Living PLUS developments

n ]

Graphic removed
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Menus from The Pebbile Bistro

Fiease note that FY19 s a 14 month penod and any comparatives are far @ 12 month year encing 37 AUGUST urVess othanwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 21
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Case study: Sylvie Morgan, Paxton Court, Tenby

Friendly, bubbly and a volunteer in
her local community, Sylvie Morgan
embraces a new way of life at
McCarthy & Stone's Paxton Court
in Tenby.

“After my husband passed away from Parkinson's disease
in 2014 there was a realisation on my part that | was now
properly alone”, says Sylvie,

Believing that she needed to take charge of her life and do
something preactive on her own terms, Sylvie organised a trip
to Tenby in Wales with her local Parkingon's group, who had

31 1,272

uhits sofd in FY19
(FY18: 1,412y

PN

developments
braught to market
in FY18 FY18: 447"

22 McCarthy & Stone pic

units rented in FY19
FY18: rva)*

A\ [ A

|

supported her throughout her husband's illtess, “l went there
a couple of months beforehand just to check out the hotel
and quite by accident, | came across McCarthy & Stone's
developrnent.”

"The idea of moving had never crossed my mind but

when | saw the retirement properties available there, | felt
this sudden rush of exciternent. It represented a challenge.”
Shortly afterwards, Sylvie took the decision to sell her
cottage in Tetbury, and move to a two bedroom retirement
Living apartment at Paxton Court.

Two vears later Sylvie says she has no regrets. "I'm active.
I've got a busy social life and a partner. Sometimes my
grandchildren tell me I've got a busier social life than them!”

28

units part bought part
rented (shared ownership)
in FY19 (FY18: 2"

*Retiremnent Living homes

“Includes sites which were
originaily Lifestyle Living developed

Flagse note that FY19:s a 14 month period and any comparatves are for a 12 month year ending 37 August unless otherwise stated
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Our Homes - Retirement Living

l_ Our Retirement Living homes feature either one, two or three
_I bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted kitchens, level access,
extra storage, en-suite bathrooms for our classic designs
and typically private outside space in the form of balconies,
terraces or patios, Every aspect is specifically designed with
our customers’ needs in mind, including slip-resistant flooring
in bathrooms, lever taps for easier usage and electric plug

Graphic removed sockets at a convenient height.

They also feature generous communal spaces to help
develop a sense of community. This includes a shared lounge,
a guest suite to accommodate friends and family visiting and
landscaped grounds. They also include a camera door entry
and a 24-hour emergency call system with pendarnt alarms.

-
L

Each of our Retirement Living developments has a dedicated
House Manager working five days a week during office hours,
managing the day-to-day running of the development while
—| also helping to facilitate a range of social activities.

—

Key features

For those aged 60+

On-site House Manager

Communal lounge

Guest suite

Extensive landscaped grounds
Typically, between 30-50 homes per site

Bungalows and cottages are an option
at selected sites’

Graphic removed

—

Swindor Court, Datington, County Durkam

N -

Graphic removed
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Swinden Court, Communal Lounge

1 Facilities and services may vary by site

Please note that FY19 is a 14 marith perod and any comparatives are far & 12 month year ending 371 August uniess otherwise stated Mo Uartty & Stars ple Annual Report 23
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Case study: Mary Jones, with her daughter Julie,
at Lambrook Court, Bath

14 865

units sold in FY19
(FY18: 583)"

developments
brought to market
in FY19 (FY18: 18)"

A (AN
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53

units rented in FY19
(FY18: n/a)*
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Bath retiree, Mary Jones, made
McCarthy & Stone's Lambrook Court
development her nome last year at

the age of 90. Having settled into her
new Retirement Living PLUS apartment,
Mary says it was definitely the best

move for her.

Already aware of McCarthy & Stone and having considered
the option of downsizing from her three bedroom home, Mary
visited Lambrook Court in Bath with her two daughters to
meet the team and see for herself what life would be like at
the development,

After Mary had experienced a fall at home, her daughters
Julie and Tracey wanted to ensure their mother could
maintain her independence ih safe surroundings - in a
community of like-minded retirees, where bespoke support
and care was available when needed. Commenting on her
move to Lambroock Court, Mary said, “My daughter, Julie,
lives in Bath and it was important for me to stay close to her.

“There is a great community and plenty of differerit activities
to get involved in, such as coffee mornings, film nights and
even exercise classes - there's always something to join in
with. | really like that, by having your own apartment, you can
choose when you want to spend time with others and be part
of activities - and wlen you want time to yoursclf.

“All of the staff at Lambrook Court are marvellous, | really
couldn't fault them. Qur Estate Manager is very halpful,
kind and | know she is available to help me if | ever need it.”

Mary decided at 91 years of age that she no longer wants
to cook for herself, and so the on-site bistro is perfect for
her to enjoy a range of different foods, without lifting a finger!

Commenting on her mother's move, Julie said, “Life has
changed for Mum since she joined the community at
Lambrook Court. She has become much more independent
and has noticeably gained in confidence, which is fantastic.
There is someone on site round the clock, which gives me
peace of mind that she is in a safe environment.”

16

Retirernent Living PLUS
units part bought part
rented {shared ownership)
in FY18 (FY18: 1)*

P

“Retirement Living PLUS homes

Please note that FY19 15 8 14 month penod and any comparatves are for 8 12 month year ending 31 August unfess otherwise stafed
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Our Homes - Retirement Living PLUS
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Hawkasbury Place, Stow-on-the-Wold, Gloucestershire
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The Pebble Bistro

1 Facilities and services may vary by site

Qur Retirement Living PLUS developments offer retirement
properties with management services, domestic assistance
and personal care on site. They are an attractive alternative
for people seeking additional support while maintaining
their independence.

Developments are similar to Retirement Living but have a
number of additional features, including a full table service
restaurant or bistro with meals freshly prepared on site,

a function room, laundry and a secure mobility scooter
store room.

As with Retirement Living, bungalows are aiso an option
within Retirement Living PLUS developments at selected sites’.

There is also a dedicated estate management team on-site
24-hours a day, 365 days a year, which is led by the Estate
Manager. They provide extra support if and when it is needed,
whether it is shopping, cleaning or care services, Tailored and
flexible care and support packages mean customers only pay
for the additional help they use.

Key features

B For those aged 70+

B House or Estate Manager and on-site team
# Communal lounge

@ Restaurant/bistro - some with a fully licensed bar
E Wellbeing suite

M Built to Wheelchair Accessibility Standards
W Mobility scooter store

B CQC registered, 24-hour support

W Typically, between 50-60 homes per site

W Bungalows as an option at selected sites’

Please riote that FY19 is a 14 month penod and any comparatives &r for & 12 month year ending 31 August uriess ofherwise staled st 4 e pic Annual Report 25



QOur Communities continued

Our Management, Care and Wellbeing Services

Management, Care and Wellbeing Services are provided to make a positive difference to the lives of our customers. Our service
offering is at the heart of our ethos, operating our communities to enrich the quality of life for our customers and enable them to
live their retirement to the full. We feel this service offering epitornises why we are more than just a housebuilder.

What we offer

Management Services

Qur high quality property
management senvices reduce
concerns around maintenance

Care Services

Qur care services support

our customers’ evolving needs.
We provide the right level of care
and support for our customers
when reguired

Wellbeing Services

Wellbeing services enhance our
customers’ tives through innovative
activities and services. We are
determined that our customers
feel safe and comfortable within
our developments

“Avaifable at selected sites

26 McCarthy & Stone plc

Features*

General Maintenance
* Cleaning - windows/spring cleans

* Landscaped areas and scenic gardens

= Lifts

* Plumbing and drainage

¢ Electrical testing and routine maintenance

Management of accounts
and service charges
+ Development accounting

* Senvice charges managed

Care and Support Services

* Medication reminder visits

¢ On-site treatments

e 24-hour emergency call system
s Care when needed

+ Support with dressing, shopping
and assistance with perscnal care

* Rehabilitation assistance

Social

* Social activities including book
clubs, coffee clubs and day trips

» Voluntary activities in the community
+ Digital skills training
+ Tailored exercise classes

Catering
+ Restaurants and bistros

* Meal planning and nutrition

Please note that FYT9.s a 14 month penod andt any comparatves are for a 12 menth vear ending 37 August uniess othenwise stated

Benefits

¥ Remove worries over property
maintenance, while appreciating
the beautiful surroundings, including
gardens and communal spaces

¥" A safe, clean and hygienic
environment

¥ Reassurance to our custormers by
preparing transparent accounts and
a clear breakdown of the service
charge

v Services that are readily accessible

¥ Reassurance for customers that
their health needs are being
adequately catered for

v Families happy knowing loved
ones arg cared for

¥" Engaged in their community
v Healihy and active
v New friendships

¥ Wide variety of choice with
food ang beverages
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Our Services

Developing our services for the future I—

Graphic removed

,_ Graphic removed —|
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Transportation Technology-backed care
¥ New car club partnership

with Enterprise Car Rental
to reduce car usage

¥ First all-glectric car club
introcduced in March 2019

¥ Rolling out an additicnal
20 Car Clubs for FY20

¥" Began a pilot with industry experts MySense, who have
developed an artificial intelligence-powered wellbeing system

¥ Monitors a customer’s daily pattern identifying any change
in health

v’ [The MySense wristband tracks information such as step
ount and heatt rate

v’ Passive sensors fitted in apartments, manitors a change in
behaviour and alerts loved ones or the McCarthy & Stone
team if action is required

v We will also be embedding Appello emergency call systems

into our developrnents in FY20
Graphic removed

Pebble

A new generation of Pebble Bistros were
launched in Worthing at Neptune House
and Triton House in FY19,

Pebble offers:

¥ Longer opening hours

¥ A barista coffee service

v Alicensed bar

v A newly designed menu

¥ A monthly gastronomic supper club

Graphicremoved

| ]
Fit for life

v Partnered with Oomph Wellness with
suppart from Sport England, who
deliver tailored exercise classes

v Feedback from customers tell us
there is a positive contribution
to customers' wellbeing

Please note that FY'19 15 a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for @ 12 manth year encing 31 August uniess othenwse stated McCarthy & Stone plec Annual Report 27



Our Communities continued
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What our customers want
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Left: Wingfield Court Book Club, Sherborne, Dorset
Right: Lionel Peters, Goldwyn House, Borehamwood, Hertfordshire

We are centring our approach on what our customers value:

Independence

Like proximity to
transportation, privacy
and outdocr space.

Support

During life transiticns,
including social activities
and healthcare.

1%

of aur customers have
good access to local
amenities and facilities

.9/10

customers take part in
organised events within
our communities

<9/10

of our customers said their
new property improved
their quality of lifes

92.8%

of our customers
would recommend
us to a friend’

28 McCarthy & Stone plc

Convenience

Customers value
features that are
easy to use and
enhance their
lifestyle and safety.

94

of our customers feel
their new property is
easy to maintain

Community

‘| don't want to be
isolated, if you are
older and you don’t
have good heatfth,

the community is vital”.

Affordability

Affordable housing
and flexible care.

are nat concerned about
service costs and half

and socialise more would consider renting

83%

of our customers
said they experienced
a sense of community
in their new property®

96%

of our customers said
they feel safe and secure
in their new property®

20,000

customers that make
our communities
come alive™

Please note that FY19.:5 a 14 manit period and any comparalives are for 8 12 month year ending 31 August uniess otherwise stated
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QOur Customers

QOur customers make our communities |— —|
and our communities are making a real
difference to them and their families

Customer satisfaction is our priority

Our commitment to quality and customer service continues

1o be recognised by our customers. In March 2019, we again

received the full five star rating for customer satisfaction from Graphic removed
the independent industry survey by the Home Builders

Federation and NHBC.

We are alsc pleased that almost nine out of ten of cur
customers feel that moving to one of our developments has
improved their quality of life. As well as the general lifestyle

we provide, this is testament to our sales approach and our
management, care and wellbeing teams’ expertise that ensure
custormers and their families are supported and guided through
the purchasing process and receive all the support they need

while living with us.
Our customers are our community

Qur beautiful homes, passionate people and excellent

wellbeing services set the scene for the creation our

communities. However, it is our customers who are the |— ——|
vital component needed to make our communities thrive.

Inspiring a new generation cf readers - Beanstalk, cur 2013 charity

Our customers help each other, they learn new skills together,
they engage with their communities and they:

* Participate in social and wellbeing events

« Supporting the wider community and engaging with
charitable events such as Beanstalk, our charity of the year

* Learn new skills, including art, design and dance

Graphicremoved

During the year, many community and charitable events were |_ J

organised. They included: Keeping fit and active with "Qomph!”

+ Story Readers' Day

. Our customers and their families - making
+ Raising money for Beanstalk

) - a real difference
+ Silver Sunday - many of our developments participated

in this national event to celebrate with older people

L . . Before After moving in
Communicating with our customers - Emerald Magazine
The Emerald magazine, published quarterly for our customers, ¢ %ﬂﬁlr hg:%gfr?é?-,r;: * New friendships
is packed with stories, ideas, events and future activities to bl Sl . Rermove burdons
fill our customers' diaries. The levels of participation in these y and worries
events within our communities is a testament to how valued » Maintenance concerns
our communities are to our customers. s Care and support

* Concerned about on hand

their parents
* Families have confidence

* Providing informal care parents are cared for

* Feelings of guilt * Peace of mind

1, 2, 3, 4,9 Homeowrner Survey for McCarthy & Stone (2017) 7 Survey of new homsowners by the NHBC and HBF (2018)
5 McCarthy & Stone Non take-up research (2017) 8 McCarthy & Stone homeowners survey (2017} and research by Demos {20716)
6 HBF new horne customer satisfaction survey (2018} 10 internal Reporting

Please note that FY15 15 a 14 month perod and any comparaives are for a 12 rmonth year ending 31 August uniess othenwise stared McCanhy & Stone plc Annual Report 29
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Top left: Sycamore Court, Scarborough, charity walk, Top right: Back House, Isleworth sales team
Above left: Waverley Court, Carlisle, charity walk. Above right: North London Beanstalk biks ride

Culture

Qur values, which were chosen by our employees, are the We celebrate and recognise employees who demonstrate
standards to which we hold ourselves responsible and reflect our values and go the extra mile for a customer or colleague,
the way we work, the way we communicate and the way we through our quarterly and annual PRIDE awards.

act. Our values are: . .
Any staff member can nominate a colleague for an instant

. PRIDE award, which is judged by our PRIDE champions.
Elassmn i During FY19, 896 PRIDE awards (FY18: 681) including 79
E| espon sibility quarterly awards (FY18: 53) were presented.

X As always, our thanks go te all the hard working people at
nbn ovation P R I D E McCarthy & Stone.

3] ctermination
EHixcelence |
16,500 93% 100
recorded visits of employees curent members of staff
on iLearn in used iLearn will be undertaking a care
H2 ot FY19 worker apprenticeship

30 McCarthy & Stone plc Please nole that FY15 15 & 14 month penod and any comparatves are for a 12 monif year ending 31 August unless otherwsse stated
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Our People

Enabling employees to have a voice and
listening to them

Employee communication has grown in importance as a key
part of supporting our people. We have been implermenting
major strategic changes in 2019 and recognise the impartance
of ensuring our employees remain positively engaged
throughout a process of business transformation.

We ran a structured employee opinion survey in April this
year with an excellent response rate of 74%, better than the
industry benchmark of c.60%. The survey concentrated on
the key issues of maintaining employee engagement and on
leading people through our transformational changes. In both
regards we were pleased to see gocd results. Our survey
delivered positive Engagement, Culture and Transformation
index scores. Overall, we were pleased to see that 80% of
respondents said they were very happy about working

for McCarthy & Stone.

We introduced a structured employee

opinion survey in April this year with an
excellent response rate of 74%, better
than the industry benchmark of ¢.60%.

The survey highlighted the need for employees to feel
better informed of change and how the business is
performing. Actions have been put in place to address
this, including intranet based performance updates and
monthly videos from the CEO which are available to

all employees.

During FY19 we formed a network of formal staff survey
groups to help us understand how the results can lead to
opportunities to improve both the way we support our
people and our ways of working.

Half yearly employee opinion surveys are planned for FY20
and we have set targets to help improve our results.

The Board appointed John Carter as the dedicated
Non-Executive Director for engagement with the workforce
with responsibility for championing the employee voice. His
role includes bringing the key feedback from our employee
survey groups to the Board. John was appointed to cur Board
in 2017, having previously been CEQ of Travis Perkins pic.

He brings a wealth of leadership experience in this area.

John has already held a number of sessions with employees
around the business and fed back to the Board the insight
gained.

Please note that FY79:s a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unfess otherwise stated

From equal opportunities to equality,
diversity and inclusion for all

The Group has established a strong reputation for treating
people fairly and providing all its employees with equal
opportunities to develop their careers. We have built on

this by launching a new menopause support procedure and
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Pclicy which is overseen
by our EBI Champion Nigel Turner. The policy underiines our
commitment to creating an environment that enables every
individual employee to be themselves, feel valued and able
to perform to their best,

Gender Diversity at McCarthy & Stone

The charts below show that we have a higher proportion
of men in senior management positions than women. We
launched a number of initiatives to address this including
improvernents to maternity pay, a women's leadership
network group and leadership developrment training

for women.

Employees in senior management positions
{including Directors of related undertakings)

Female {(FY19) Male (FY19)
21 (26%) 61 (74%)

Female {(FY18) Male (FY18)
29 (22%) 103 (78%)

It can also be seen that female staff represent 75% of our
waorkforce. Cur Management, Care and Wellbeing Services
businass employ significantly more females than males.

Total Employees of the Group
(excluding Non-Executive Directors)

Female (FY19) Male (FY19)
1,904 (75%) 618 (25%)
Female (FY18) Male (FY18)
1,736 (69%) 776 (31%)

During FY19 we introduced a new enhanced maternity and
paternity policy to help address our gender balance and
suppolt new parents.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report
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Our People continued

Gender Diversity at McCarthy & Stone continued

The table below shows total employees excluding
Nan-Executive Directors by age group:

Employees by age analysis (FY19)
Total employees of the Group aged 25 and under {FY18: 189)

149 (6%}

Total employees of the Group aged 26 - 49 (FY18: 1,227)

‘ 1,208 (48%)

Total employees of the Group 50 and over (FY18: 1,096)

| 1,166 (46%)

Employee split by business area

FY19

Management, Care and Wellbeing Services 1,684 (67 %)

839 (33%)

Development

Fy18

Management, Gare and Wellbeing Services 1,418 (56%)

Development 1,094 {44%)

Our standards of working

We are alsc committed to achieving the highest legal and
ethical standards and it is our policy to conduct business
in a fair, honest and cpen way without the use of bribery
or corrupt practices in order to obtain an unfair advantage.

The Group has policies in relation to whistleblowing,
anti-bribery and corruption, fraud and anti-money
laundering and all staff are required to undertake training
on these matters. In addition, we also have a confidential,
externally provided whistleblowing hotline.

The Group's policy statement in relation to slavery and
hurnan trafficking as required under the Modern Slavery
Act 2015 is available to view on our website.

32 McCarthy & Stone plc

Achievements and Awards
HBF five star Customer Satisfaction Award’

The Group sustained industry leading levels of customer
satistaction and is proud to be the only developer of any size
or type to receive the full five star rating from the HBF for 14
consecutive years.

EAC Housing Awards?

We were delighted to receive three national silver awards
and 18 regional awards at the EAC (Elderly Accommodation
Counsel} housing awards. These awards represent the best
specialist housing for older people.

Sharon Gratten, one of cur House Managers, was also
recognised as one of nine heroes by the EAC based an her
significant contribution to the quality of life in our Rockhaven
Court development in Bolton.

NHBC Health and Safety Awards?

We were very pleased to receive four commended and two
highly commended awards this year. We are proud that our
high standards of health and safety have been recognised by
external inspectors across multiple sites. This reflects a 100%
increase in total NHBC awards received compared 1o last year
(FY18: three).

NHBC Pride in the Job Awards*

In 2019, 10 of the Group’s Site Managers were quality award
winners in the NHBC Pride in the Job Awards. We are proud
lhal cur High standards dre recognised exlernally.

In addition, two of the winners went on to win Seals of
Excellence. Furthermore, Jeff Blackman went on to receive
the Regional Award for the South West and was a nominee
for the Naticnal Awards.

These awards are the industry’s most prestigious awards
programme. They recognise the Site Managers who achieve
the highest standards of housebuilding and demonstrate
excellent qualities in workmanship, leadership, technical
expentise and health and safety awareness.

HBF/Housebuilder Awards?

We were finalist for three awards as well as being commended
for the Best Community Initiative for cur intergenerational
project. This project aims to encourage customers to spend
tine with children from their local primary school.

Please note that FY'18.15 a T4 mantn penod and any comparatves are fof 4 12 month yaar enging 31 August unless otherwise stated
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WeQual Awards 2019°

The WeQual awards recognises the top 24 fermale senior
managers who are direct reports to an executive committee
member in a FTSE 250 company. We are proud that Lisa
Greenwood, our Directar of Organisational Development,
was ranked in the top 24 female senior managers.

T 2 “ ]
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Learning and Professional Development

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to training and professional
development. Performance against objectives is reviewed
regularly and provides our employees with the opportunity

to discuss their learning requirements and self-developrnent.
This improves effectiveness in their current roles and supports
career progression.

All employess have access to a range of both internal and
external training and professional qualification courses.

Apprenticeship Schemes

Wa recognise the importance of developing our pecple

to ensure continuous improvement in the quality of service
we offer to our customers and high levels of employee
engagement, In support of this objective, we have launched
a core apprenticeship scheme. We have identified over

100 people who work in our developments and live in the
surrounding communities 1o be funded through a level 2 and
level 3 lead adult care worker apprenticeship. This is not a
Gare Quality Commission {CQC) requirement but we strongly
beligve in providing industry leading care for our customers,
whilst providing our employees with the opportunity to gain
qualifications which support their professional development.

1 HBF five star Home Builder Custormer Satisfaction Award
2 EAC (Eiderty Accommodation Counsel) Housing Awards
3 NHBC Heafth and Safety Awards

Piease note that FY79 55 a 14 month period and any comgaratives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless othenwise stated

We are funding 12 new entry apprentices in 2020 in our
build division, who will rotate through our construction,
commercial and development functions. On completion
of their apprenticeship, they will be given the opportunity
to specialise in their chosen discipling, while completing
both a Higher National Certificate (HNC) and a Chartered
Management Institute (CMI) qualification.

We are mindful of the skills shortage in the construction
industry and are actively involved in the Home Builders
Federation (HBF) Skills Partnership initiative, including working
with women in construction to develop pathways into the
industry, providing placerments and opportunities to join our
apprenticeship programimes.

Placement students

The Group acknowledges the importance of identifying
capable individuals with the potential to develop and progress
at McCarthy & Stone. We have a number of placement
students in a wide spectrum of functions across the business.
We place value on supporting the development of students,
recognising the opportunity to enhance their knowledge in the
construction and care industries from a young age, We hope
from their experience at McCarthy & Stone they will return
once they have finished their studies.

iLearn

In May 2019, an online platform was created by
McCarthy & Stone for our employees to help with
their learning and professional development.

* C.93% of employees actively used iLearn in H2 of FY19
* (.1,300 available training topics
* (C.20,000 visits were recorded over H2 of FY19

CMI Centre

McCarthy & Stone are an approved CMI Centre, meaning we
can deliver CMI gualifications. People attending management
development workshops have the chance to continue their
development and progress to a Level 3 or Level 5 CMI
Certificate or a Diploma in Leadership and Management.

Professional qualifications

We provide our employees with the opportunity to study
and complete their job specific gualifications. We currently
fund over 20 employees to undertake Association of
Accounting Technicians {AAT), Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) and Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA} qualifications, as well as
payroll qualifications. We are also supporting a number of
employees, who are enrclled on the Chartered Institute of
Personnel Development (CIPD) and the Chartered Institute
of Marketing (CIM).

4 NHBC Pride it the Job Awards
& HBF/Housebuilder Awards
6 WeQual Awards 2019
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How we create communities

£,

How we fund our business

Our business is funded from cash generated through
renting and selling retirement properties, freehold reversions
and providing management, care and wellbeing services.
From time to time we also issue promissory notes to fund
the acquisition of selected land sites. Additionally, we have
in place a Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF’) which matures

in March 2023.

The levels of drawdown fluctuate during the year, refiecting
the Group's seasonality in revenue and working capital
requirements to fund our investrment in property, land,
build and sales and marketing expenditure.

How we operate

‘The McCarthy & Stone Way' will significantly
improve business performance by ensuring
that we:

e Support our people

+ Work consistently and continue
to improve

« Develop our brand
* Meet our objectives

A customer led
business

By ensuring that our customers are
at the heart of our business and by
creating longer-term relationships,
we will continue to create value
for all our stakeholders.

How we manage risk

Risk management is a fundamental aspect of
our business model and is embedded within
every aspect of our crganisation.

How we create value

* |nvest in and create communities for
our customers

* Pay dividends to our shareholders

* Provide employment, pay, reward
and professional development for
our employees

* Support local and national suppliers,
subcontractors and consultants

* Pay taxes to national and local
Government

* Improve environments in which

we operate

Responsibility for risk management sits with
every employee across our entire business

and they are helping to identify, assess and
manage risks that are facing the Group.

34 McCarthy & Stone plc Please nole that FY19 15 @ 14 manth penod and any comoaratives are for 8 12 month year endng 31 Augus! unless othenwise stated
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Our Business Model
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Targeted Land Acquisition

]
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How we create
our communities

Qur business model is built on five important
core components - each designed to provide

the very best properties and services for
our customers.

By ensuring that our customers are at the
very heart of what we do, we will continue
to evolve the business model as their needs . i .
and values change over time. Effective Planning and Design

Graphic removed
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The McCarthy ’

& Stone Way \h‘
‘The McCarthy & Stone Way' describes .

the approach we take to improve business =
performance through consistent ways of
working, ensuring that:

Graphic removed
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High Quality and Safe Construction
* Everything we do is focused on what our
customers value

* Customers are at the heart of everything
we do

* We operate efficiently, effectively and in Graphic removed

a safe environment

]
L.

We work together to promote our vision
o create even deeper and longer-lasting N .
relationships with our custormers. Specialist Sales and Marketing

m Graphicremoved
Graphicremoved \ L

Management, Care and Wellbeing Services

=

I

VvV VvV VY

Please nofe that FY19 15 & 14 month perfod and any comparatives are for a 12 monin year endng 31 August Unless otherwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 35



QOur Business Model contived

[ BB ]

Graphicremoved Graphic removed

L L _

Scott Place, Lichfield, Staffordshire Hardwick Grange, Penwartham, Lancashire
Our Process
We identify and secure high quality sites to create retirement There are four key elements that differentiate our land
communities that are located within towns and cities, close acquisition model from our peer group:

to amenities and which meet the needs of our custormers

and their families. 1. Less competition for our sites from housebuilders, who

tend to be tocused on larger, usually greentield tocatlons
The market for land remains refatively benign and competition
for our typical brownfield sites is still highly fragmented.
However, the business continues to maintain operational
focus and discipline in the assessment of its land purchases
to ensure that returns continue to flow to shareholders. 3. Strict site purchase criteria:

2. Significant planning and design expertise in developing
homes for older people which helps assess the risk at the
point of 1and acquisition and promote sustainable bids

* Optimised development density through reduced
on-site parking and amenity space

* Limited on-site affordable housing requirements
and mitigated impact of Section 106 and Community
Infrastructure Levy (‘CIL) payments

4. Conditionality of our purchase agreements

34 7,695 E£111m 3.7

Number of Number of Investment in land Number of years
land exchanges land bank units during the year of land supply®
(FY18: 54} (FY18: 9,797) FY18: £112m) {Fri8:4.7)

36 McCarthy & Stone plc Plaase note that FY1915 @ 14 month penod and any comperatives are for 2 12 month year ending 37 August unvess otherwrse stated
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Targeted Land Acquisition

Highlights in the year

34 high quality sites were added to the land bank in FY19
{FY18: 54). The 34 sites secured in the year accord with
the more measured trajectory and smoother workflow
objectives in iine with the Group strategy.

Of the 34 land exchanges, 14 sites were secured by means
of low cost Option Agreements and 20 sites were secured
under conditional contracts (the principal condition being
obtaining a satisfactory planning consent} with seven of these
having a non-viability clause and/or other flexibility in the
contract terms enabling termination at our discretion.

Although investment in land during the financial year was
£111m {FY18: £112m}, land bank units reduced to 7,695
(FY18: 9,797), following the strategic review of the land held,
this equates to 3.7 vears of supply’ (FY18: 4.7 years).

in June 2019, the Government issued a report providing

its response 1o the extensive consultation undertaken on

its proposed reforms to the leasehold system and to the
abolition of ground rents. While that response re-confirmed
the Government's intention to proceed with the proposal to
exermnpt retirement housing from the restriction of new ground
rent, the Government still needs to bring forward legislation
to Pariament in order to embed the changes. We have
therefore continued with a more cautious approach towards
land buying, with all sites secured in the year making no
allowance for ground rents in the financial appraisals. We will
continue to adopt caution in our land acquisition appraisals
until the Government has passed the appropriate legislation.

In line with our vision tc create even deeper and fonger
relationships with our customers, an additional site has
been acquired in Otley, West Yorkshire, which will be
developed to create a community that includes Retirement
Living, Retirement Living PLUS, bungalows and a care
home to cater for the evolving needs of our customers
throughout their time with McCarthy & Stone.

A Managing Director of Special Projects & Strategic
Partnerships was appointed at the end of FY19, with the
focused objective of identifying and managing new types

of land aimed at developing opportunities in the affordable
housing market and our mutti-tenure offering which will help
to expand our market penetration and increase our appeal
to more customers,

Strategic focus - workflow realignment

As part of the Group strategy, a comprehensive review
of our land bank has been completed. Sites that failed to
meet increased hurdle rates have been deemed unviable
and subsequently written off at a cost totalling £7.2m.

Increase land optionality to ensure that the business is well
positioned to respond when market conditions improve.

Qur strengths that differentiate us

¥ Significant local knowledge through
established agency networks

¥v" Comprehensive understanding of our
customers’ needs and aspirations in
terms of locality, community and amenities

¥ Well established and taillored approach
to land acquisition

v Expertise in securing optionality in conditional
land acquisition contracts

¥ Ability to make best use of constrained centrally
located brownfield sites

Our impact

v 97% of sites acquired are |
brownfield (previously developed), ’f‘-
reducing pressure for greenfield sites

v Convenience for our customers due to
locality of land purchased and convenient
accessibility to essential services

v Rejuvenation of land, buildings and high streets

v Highly sustainable use of developments
with optimised densities on brownfield sites

¥ Payment of taxes and charges to Government
including Stamp Duty on land acguisitions

Our risks, challenges and uncertainties

BErEEER N
BARRO

_.__:

Turn to pages 50-55

Our objectives

¥ Leverage our data and customer insights to
build competitive advantage in land buying

W«

v Optimise the balance sheet and cash flow
by smoothing land exchanges and build
starts during the year

v Reduce the time taken between land exchange and build
start through volume and optionality in land contracts

¥ Increase land buying activities at higher hurdle rates
and optionality

1 Calculated by dividing the number of units in the land bank by the
strategic chjective of 2,100 units to be completed on a smoathed annual basis

Please note that FY19 fs a 14 month penod and any comparatves are for & 12 rmonth year endmg 31 August unless otherwise stated
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The Boathouse, Southarmpton, Hampshire Hawkesbury Place, Stow-on-the-Wold, Gloucestershire
Our Process
We operate an effective planning process and design high in savings to the NHS. For these reasons, revised National
quality homes which meet our customers’ evolving needs Planning policy Guidance continues to refer to housing for
and improve their quality of life. older people as being “critical”, this remaining the only form

. . ) f housing that is referred to in this way.
Our plans and designs integrate with the surroundings and ofnousing ¥

foster both the community in which we build new homes and Through our public affairs initiatives and our representations
deeper and longer-lasting relationships with our customers. on emerging policy, the Group continues to wark closely with
Government to achieve even greater appreciation of the social
and economic benefits of retirement housing and to reduce
some of the barriers that can hamper delivery.

The Group’s in-house specialist planning team deals with all
aspects of the planning process, including monitoring and
influencing emerging relevant national and local planning
policies, informing, preparing and executing its planning The Group has continued to work with some of our
apptications and addressing appeals when necessary. competitors, pooling expertise and resources to present
a combined response to emerging Government policies

Our planners are involved in a site from the initial high level on behalf of the industry.

: suitability appraisal and then work with our design team to
| develop proposals for beautiful homes for our customers The planning system currently hinders achieving timely

; that will achieve a planning consent as quickly as is possible. planning permissions, the ground rent issue, a lack of
resources in local planning authorities and the increasing
ernphasis on design and viability assessments have all
contributed to additional reviews of our proposals and
submitted schemes and subsequently, delays in
planning approval.

The Government is increasingly recognising the rcle of housing
for older people in addressing the national housing shortfal
through efficiently providing more housing and unlocking
existing supply. There is also increasing understanding

of the health and social benefits that come with it and in turn
the savings that this presents to the public purse, particularly

38 19.7

Detailed planning Development cycle
consents time in months’
(FY18: 37) FY18: 18,3}
i U

Em ) ( [z2
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Effective Planning and Design

Highlights in the year

In line with our strategic cbjectives, planning applications
have been reduced to 45 (FY18: 58).

A new and more contemporary apartment design has also
been finalised resulting in a simplified product line, more
efficient layouts and optimised accommeodation space.

During FY19, 38 detailed planning consents were granted,
compared with 37 in FY18.

The development cycle time increased from 18.3 months

for FY18 to 19.7 months’ for FY19, as a direct result of the
business performing a comprehensive review of land held and
sites in the pipeline to ensure they achieve the increased hurdle
rates, fit with our strategic objectives and mest the needs of
our customers. In addition, the planning system also adversely
impacts the development cycle time due to extended delays
for approving applications.

The ‘Homes for Later Living’ conscrtium has been set up
with other retirement developers to promote greater choice,
availability and quality of housing specifically for older pecple
by making representations to Government and to ensure a
stronger heating and influence.

The consortium produced the report *Healthier and Happier',
an analysis of the fiscal and wellbeing benefits of building more
homes for later living which has been positively received.

Strategic focus - build cost reduction

New contemporary product designs have been
developed with more efficient layouts that pramote

the use of Modern Methods of Construction (MMC).
These designs will reduce the average selling price of
our homes and help promote the Group's mass market
appeal without compromising on quality.

These more efficient designs have been implemented
across new sites acquired during FY'19. All sites in

the pipeline have been subject to a design review panel
to ensure best practice and design assurance in line with
the new efficient solutions and are expected to reduce
cost per apartment by ¢c.£10k by 2021.

Strategic partnerships are being developed to drive
forward the roll out of MMC across future sites. A light
gauge steel fully panelised approach and volumetric
designs are being developed, which will significantly
reduce defects, build time and cost. It will also have a
positive impact on the environment in which we operate
through reduced wastage.

Qur strengths that differentiate us

v Specialist in-house planning team with
a strong reputation with central and
local Government

v Comprehensive local knowledge

v Increased Government recognition of the
social and economic benefits of our products

v Design teams that understand the needs of
our customers, with significant industry experience

¥ Planning team inputs on site specific pianning
strategies at pre-land acquisition

Our impact

v Designs include communal areas j,
for customers which provide for more ’f
sccial interaction and reduce loneliness

v Environmental ergonomics are considerably
improved for both customers and communities

v Climate friendly designs, by reducing car parking
spaces and promoting communal living

¥ Optimisation of centrally located brownfield sites,
including regeneration of underutilised land

Our risks, challenges and uncertainties

/\
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’

Turn to pages 50-55

Our objectives

v" To achieve the best possible planning
consents while ensuring an appropriate
balance between our workflow, margin
ohijectives and customer requirements

e

v Build cost reduction through simplified
designs that support MMC

¥ Affordable and fully compliant product designs
offering which appeals to the mass market

v Creation of new in-house Design Bureau

v Formalise relationship with MMC strategic partner

-

Flease note that FY18 is a 14 month perfod and any comparalives are for @ 12 month year encing 37 August uniess atherwise stated

Caiculated as the time taken between land exchange and build starts for our developments
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Our Process

We consistently deliver exceptional build quality while
maintaining robust health and safety standards and operating
in a socialiy responsible, sustainable and ethical way.

Health and Safety

Health and safety continues to be our top priority. We
encourage a proactive approach to health and safety as well
as reinforcing the individual responsibility that every site worker
has for thair own and their colleagues’ wellbeing. Employeas
and contractors are required to have adequate heallh and
safety qualifications before starting work on our sites and

all contractors are required to hold valid Construction Skills
Certification Scheme cards.

The Board receives regular updates on health and safety
including our Annual injury Incidence Rate {AlIR), Reparting

of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Qccurrences Regulations
{RIDDORSs) reportable events and our perforrmance against the
NHBC All Advisor Average.

40 14.2

337

Linden Piace, Solihull, Wast Midlands

McCarthy & Stone's AlIR was 337 for the year until 31 March
2019, a 47% improvement on the year ending 31 March 2018
(FY18: 643) and eight RIDDORs (FY18: 20}. This significant
reduction in accidents during the year is as a direct result

of our *Raising the Bar" campaign which focused on key
areas and activities to reduce incidents, including improved
construction manuals, video inductions and focused training
for staff and contractors.

NHBC carry out monthly independent health and safety
nspections on all our live corslruclion sites and raport their
findings. The data these reports provide allow us to compare
our sites against other housebuilders through their system of
All Advisor Average comparison.

Reducing injuries in the workplace Annual Injury Incidence Rate

2019 2018
McCarthy & Stone 337 643
Homebuilder Peer Group® 287 328
HSE Construction industry Average 366 358

5 Star

Buitd starts in the year Build cycle in months Annual Injury Retained customer
(FY18: 53) (FY18: 13.9) Incidence Rate (AlIR) satisfaction rating
(FY18: 643) (FY18: 5 Star)

EH

40 McCarthy & Stone plc

Please note that FY19 /s a 14 month penod and any comparaives are for a8 12 monih vear ending 31 August uriess otherwise stated
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High Quality and Safe Construction 'S

Environmental Policy

The Group's Environmental Policy is designed to minimise
our impact on the environment and promote a sustainable
and ethical approach to managing business activities.

There are clear environmental and businass benefits to
designing energy efficient homes, using responsibly sourced
and efficient materials and minimising the amount of waste
sent to landfill. Having a clear understanding of where our
money is being spent and how much waste we create during
the construction and operation of our developments allows us
to make better informed business decisions while ensuring we
minimise our environmental impact.

We are committed to minimising levels of waste generated

by our construction sites as this brings both financial and
environmental benefits. Gf the 21,592 tonnes of waste
generated in FY19 (FY18: 26,655), just 658 tonnes went to
landfill (FY18: 485). This equates to 3% (FY18: 2%) with the
remainder being recycled, We continue to work with our waste
management companies to try and improve this figure, as well
as with our suppliers to reduce waste further up the

supply chain.

Highlights in the year

The high quality of our constructions and the after care
provided is the driving force behind McCarthy & Stone being
the only developer of any type to achieve a five star rating in
the HBF Customer Satisfaction Survays for the last 14 years
since its inception.

During FY19, construction commenced on 40 sites compared
to 53 in FY18, reflecting our strategy to smooth workflow

and volume requirements. Also, as part of the strateqy, new
standard ways of working have been introduced across all
sites which resulted in an increase in the build cycle time to
14.2 months (FY18:13.9), this is expected to improve during
FY20 when the new procedures are fully embedded.

Strategic focus - build cost reduction

During FY20, we will commence with our first Modern
Methods of Construction development, which is a
cost-effective, efficient and quality building solution that
will drive improvements to the build process, accelerate
build timescales, reduce build costs and enhance margins
in line with our build cost reduction strategic objective.

Fundamental o operational efficiency, workflow will
centinue to be smoothed in line with the Group strategy
to ensure steady volumes and stock of finished homes
are in line with forecasts.

-

Home Buiiders Federation

Flegse nofe that FY19 1s a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 manth year enging 31 August unless otherwise stated

The McCarthy & Stone Way was introduced during the year
and provides best practice guidance for use on all our sites,
including new construction manuals, commercial ways of
working processes and standards required to meet health
and safety, quality and environmental targets.

Volumes of stock reduced from 1,785 in FY181to 1,628 in

FY18, which is in line with our strategic objectives.

Our strengths that differentiate us

¥ Significant experience building
quality homes for our customers

v Five star customer satisfaction rating for
our homes over 14 consecutive years

v Network of experienced subcontractors
and an established supply chain

Our impact

v Provision of employment for local contractors 1
2\

v Payment of VAT on supplies, employment
related and indirect taxes

Our risks, challenges and uncertainties

Our objectives

¥ Provide quality and more affordable homes
that enrich the quality of life for our customers
and their families

v Deliver build cost savings in line with strategic timeline
¥ Streamline procurement practices

¥ Ensure steady state workflow and volumes

¥ Develop a new estimating approach

¥ Progress finished stock levels to strategic targets

¥ Panelised scheme build to start in FY20

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report a1
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Our Process

Graphicremoved

Our approach to sales and marketing is focused on ensuning Our sales consultants can help make the process as

our customers are at the heart of what we do and that they streamlined as possible by offering additional support in
have the best possible experience, from expressing an interest the way of our part-exchange scheme and a smooth move,
in a McCarthy & Stone home and our services, right the way which helps with the packing and moving. Both schemes
through to maoving in and enjoying fiving in the years to come. take away some of the hassle associated with moving.
Whether customers choose to rent, buy or take advantage Other services available include:

of our shared ownership scheme in order to move into a new
home, they and their families are fully supported throughout

* Financial contribution towards estate agency and legal fees

the whole process by our dedicated on-site sales consultants. * Try before you buy

42

£308«

average selling price
FY18: £300K)

McCarthy & Stone pic

2,301

legal completions (units}
(Fy18: 2,134

* Propetty resales

38% 101

off-plan reservaticn rate rerntal completions '
(FY18: 49%) {units}

Gl (&

Plaase note that FY19 s a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for 8 12 ionth year ending 31 August upiess otherwise stated



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘

Specialist Sales and Marketing

Highlights in the year

During FY18, we made substantial changes to our sales and
rmarketing operating model in order to make it more cost effective
and efficient for our customers to move into their new home.

We piloted and rolled out salesforce as our core Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) and sales platform. Salesforce
has enabled us to improve quality standards and control and offer
an enhanced customer experisnce.

Salesforce also provides up to the minute data to our marketing
team and is driving smarter, more efficient decisions with
enhanced customer insight as well as improved and focused
marketing activity.

The Group delivered full year revenue of £725m (FY18; £672m),
supported by a 3% improvement in average selling price, which
increased during the year to £308k {FY18: £300k) and 2,301
legal completions (FY18: 2,134).

ncluded within the 2,301 completions, there were 47 units
sold on our shared ownership scheme. In addition, a further
101 units wera rented and 21 occupied on a rent to buy scheme.,

113 units wers in a bulk sale and lease back transaction with
Waverstone LLP, where McCarthy & Stone is a non-controlling
member and these unit sales are also included within the
2,301 completions.,

Continued ecanomic uncertainty coupled with a slower
secondary housing market and softening of pricing, particutarly
in the South East, impacted the volurnes, increased the use of
discounting and sales incentives at 8% (FY18:; 7%) and had

an adverse impact on our off-plan reservation rates at 38%
which reduced from 49% in FY18.

Strategic focus -
efficient sales and marketing

A core part of the Group strategy has been to increase
the capacity and utilisation of our part-exchange scheme.
This scheme allows us to purchase customers’ cumrent
property, enabling them to move into a new McCarthy

& Stone home ahead of marketing and selling their own
property. This has been a great success, with 1,130
custormers opting to use our part-exchange scheme
during FY19 (FY18: 753).

Our focus on providing choice to our customers

saw the pilot and roll-out of our multi-tenure options.
Customer dermand and take-up has been stronger than
anticipated, with 101 rental completions by the end of
FY19, Strong growth into FY20 is anticipated across
these options as we roll-out multi-tenure choices for our
customers across all our developments and integrate the
offer within aur marketing campaigns for FY20.

The Group’s in-house resales team has generated 283 sales
of customer owned properties during the year, helping to

secure good resale values for them and their families.

Our strengths that differentiate us

v Comprehensive customer insight and
knowledge with significant experience
of fulfiling our customers’ and their
families’ needs

v Market leader with unrivalled customer
satisfaction ratings

v No pressure sales techniques and priority to
ensure our customers are suppored throughout
the sales journey

Our impact

¥ We help our customers
to make the right decisions

v 283 resale completions on behalf of
our customers and their families

v Creating liguidity in the housing market

Qur risks, challenges and uncertainties

i E2 £ 6]

Qur objectives

v Invest in building a deeper
understanding of our customers

Turn to pages 50-556

A3 A
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v Complete brand review and refresh
marketing strategy

v Leverage data and investment to drive
direct response marketing

¥ Provide flexibility to our customers with new
ways to pay for our proposition and services

v Improve off-plan sales rates and reduce
incentive costs

¥ Deliver our rental, re-rental and shared
ownership strategy

Prease note that FY19 15 a 14 month pertod and any comparatives are for @ 12 manth year ending 31 August uniess othenwise stated
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Our Process

QOur services business is at the heart of delivering our
customer led ethos and the operation of our retirement
communities to enrich the quality of life for cur customers.

Three core functicns make up our management, care and
wellbeing services business:

* Property management and maintenance
* Technology enabled care services
¢ Community and welfbeing

All management, care and wellbeing services are provided
by our dedicated in-house teams, Our care services business
is known as Yourlife Management Services.

434 20,000

Q6%

At both our Retirement Living and Retirement Living PLUS
developments, our House or Estate Managers act as our
eves and ears. They are the friendly faces taking care of
the practicalities of running the development. But just as
importantly, they are also thers to help facilitate the social
activities our customers can choose to get involved with,
while living their later years to the full.

We work with local tradespeople to deliver first class
maintenance and beautiful gardens for all our managed
developments. Additionally, we have a number of national
contracts for our maintenance services for specialist items
such as lifts and health and safety equipment.

<9/10

deveiopments customers supported by CQC scare custormers say that their
under management Management, Care and rated “Good” quality of life has improved
{FY18: 379) Wellbeing services (Fy18: 98%)' after living with us for

(FY18: ¢.17.000)

nine menths?

1 Coc

2 Survey of new homeowners by
the NHBC and HBF (2018}

44 MecCarthy & Stone plc

Please note thal FY19.8 a 14 month penad and any comparatves are for @ 12 month year ending 31 August unfess otherwise stated
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Management, Care and Wellbeing Services =,

Highlights in the year

Qur services business has focused on the creation of a
flexible offering that enhances the sense of community
within our developments and supports our customers to
maintain their independence.

We worked with our customers at a selection of developments
to co-create and test service improverents and new product
offerings across a wide range of categories.

In FY19, our management, care and wellbeing teams
provided our customers with over:

* (C.38,000 hours of care and support per month
* (C.76,300 meals prepared monthly by our in-house chefs
* (C.10,000 social events and activities per month

From July 2018, all regulated care, domestic support

and property management services provided in our 99
Retirement Living PLUS developments have been delivered
directly by McCarthy & Stone after we concluded our
successful partnership with Somerset Care. Our partnership
with Somerset Care helped us to become one of the largest
operators in the housing with care sector and made a
profound difference to the guality of life of thousands of

our customers,

Now that cur care service is at significant scale and the
partnership with Somerset Care has concluded, we have
an exciting opportunity to develop the next generation of
praducts and services in line with our strategy. In order
to facilitate this, we have a new partnership with Appello
to improve the technology support and attention for

our customers.

We launched our Regulated Qualifications Framework (RQF)
apprenticeship programime in which 11 of our care team
have now enrolled on the level two and level three Adult Care
worker and Lead Adult Care worker programmes. We hope
to train a further ¢.100 team members over the next two
years, demonstrating our commitment to providing quality
care for our custormers.

In total, we help and support ¢.20,000 customers across 434
developments and are proud to have achieved a CQC ‘Good’
rating of 96% (FY18: 98%).

Our strengths that differentiate us

v Well respected brand and customer 9
satisfaction rating c
¥ High guality services with 96% of
RBLP sites achieved “Good" CQC ratings

v" 1,684 team members providing management,
care and wellbeing services across our estate

¥ One of the largest housing with care providers in the UK

Qur impact
v Removal of the burdens and worries 1
of property maintenance ’

¥ Care and support on hand and
confidence parents are safe and cared for

v (C.£3.5k saving per person per year to the
NHS and social services

¥ Employment and significant use of local
tradespeopie and professionals

Our risks, challenges and uncertainties

AREOR N
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Turn to pages 50-55
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Strategic focus -
flexibility for our customers

in FY20, we wil continue to expand our offering to

provide greater flexibility around the payment of service
charges, provide more choice of additional lifestyle support
and activities and increase opportunities to open our
developments for wider community use.

Our objectives

¥ Growth in Management, Care and
Wellbeing Services revenue

ASN Y
(N

¥ Increased choice for our customers with new
ways to pay for our proposition and services

Develop a new charging model

v

v Unlock demand for our existing services
v Developing our food and beverage offer
v

Increase the use of technology to improve the
quality of life for our customers and their families

¥ Implement a more robust operaticnal platform
to deliver our management, care and wellbeing
services more efficiently

Please noie that FY 19 55 a 14 month penod and any comparatives ara tor a 12 month vear ending 31 August untess othenwise stated
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As part of the business transformation strategy announced
en 25 September 2018, the Directors decided to change the
Group's financial year end from 31 August to 31 October.
FY19 was the first financial year reporied to 31 Cctober

and therefore was a 14 month period of account.

Our performance

During the 14 month period ended 31 Cctober 2613, the
Group delivered a solid trading performance despit the
challenging underlying trading conditions resulting from
the impact of ongoing political and economic unceartainty
on the secondary housing market. Additional uncertainty
over potential stamp duty changes also dented transaction
levels, particularly in the South East, resulting in higher
discount and incentive levels compared to the prior year.

Revenue

During the 14 month pericd snded 31 Octeber 2019,
the Group defivered revenue of £725m (2018: £672m),
reflecting a 3% improvement in average selling price to

£725m

Revenue
(FY18: £672m)

3

McCarthy & Stone pic

£48m

Operating profit
FY18: £64m)

486

“The Group maintained ROCE

at 10% and delivered £68m
underlying operating profit during
the 14 month period (2018; £68m)”

Rowan Baker, Chief Financial Officer

]

£308k (2018: £300K) and legal completions of 2,301 units
(2018: 2,134) supported by higher opening stock levels
and art increased use of part-exchange. Our revernue

for the 14 manth period included Freehold Reversionary
Interest (FRI) revenue of £30m (2018: £29m).

As a result of the Group adopting IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ at the start of FY19, there have
been presentational changes regarding the treatment of
part-exchange properties. Under the new standard, any
provisions against the purchased part-exchange properties
have been accounted for as a deduction from the completions
revenus, Due to their ancillary nature, the proceeds from
the subseguent resale have been reclassified as other
operating income, while the associated costs have been
reclassified as other operating expenses. The adoption

of the new standard resulted in re-classifying of certain
customer incentive costs from cost of sales to a reduction
against revenue. Total adjustments resulted in c.£10m
reduction in revenue to £725m. As the adjustments were
solely presentational, comparatives were not restated.

10%

ROCE

FY18: 10%)

£

Flease nole that FY13 15 @ 7 month penod and any comparatves are for a 12 month year ending 37 August unless otherwise stated
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The Group delivered 2,301 (2018: 2,134} legal completions
during the pericd, including the sale and lease back of 113
sales offices and show flats to Waverstone LLP, where
McCarthy & Stone is a non-controlling memioer. In addition,
the Group delivered 101 rentat transactions together with a
further 21 rent to buy and 47 shared ownership transactions.

Profit

Underlying operating profit for the 14 month period was
£688m (2018: £68m), whilst our underlying operating
profit margin decreased to 9% {2018: 10%). This
reduction in margin percentage was mainly driven by
an increased usage of part-exchange and incentives

to counteract subdued market conditions.

The Group maintains a robust risk
management framework, providing

a clear link between its strategy and
the strategic, operational and financial
risks faced by the business.

During the period, the Board approved an increase in the
Group's in-house part-exchangs capacity to 15% of TNAV
{previously 10%). This continues to be a key tool in converting
reservations to sales more quickly and cost effectively in the
cumrent challenging market. We therefore saw an increase

in the volume of part-exchange transactions to 48% of legal
completions (2018: 35%). 783 of these transactions were on
balance sheet PX (2018: 335) resulting from the increased
national roll-out of in-house part-exchange solutions, This
translated intc a saving of ¢.£13m (2018: ¢.£7m} compared
to the use of third-party PX with average capital employed
of £53m (2018: £27m) over the financial year. 783 properties
{2018: 335 properties) were purchased during the year at

an average of 97% (2018: 96%) of market value with 648
properties (2018: 302 properties) re-sold within the year.

The average time taken to resell these properties was

12.3 weeks (2018: 13.1 weeks) which is well within our
internal target of 13 weeks. Strict part-exchange controls
have been mairitained within the business, with processes
now centralised to support the increased roll out,

Total administrative expenses for the 14 month period
amounted to £44m (2018: £40m), excluding exceptional
items and amortisation of brand and remained at the same
proporttion of revenue as last year of 6% (2018: 6%).

Plaase note that £Y13 is & 14 month pericd and any comparalives are for a 12 month year enaing 31 August unless otherwise stated

Statutory operating profit for the 14 month period decreased
to £48m (2018: £64m) impacted by £17m (2018: £2m) of
exceptional costs incurred in relation to delivering our business
transformation programme. This in turn impacted our statutory
operating profit margin which decreased to 7% (2018: 9%).

Similarly, underying profit before tax for the 14 month period
increased to £63m {2018; £62m) whilst the statutory profit
before tax of £43m (2018: £58m) has also been impacted
by £17m (2018: £2m} of exceptional costs incured in

FY19 to deliver our business transformation programme.

Investment properties

During the second half of FY19, the Group launched a
multi-tenure approach, offering a rental product to new
customers alongside the option to buy or part-buy
part-rent {shared ownership). As at 31 Cctober 2019,

the Group held a portfolic of 101 let retirement rental units.
This portfolio of rental assets has been accounted on the
balance sheet as investment properties and valued at ¢.£28m
based on a valuation carried out by independent valuation
consultants. The associated revaluation uplift of £5.9m
(2018: £nil) has been recognised within ‘other operating
income’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group has mandated Rothschilds & Co to secure

high quality third-party capital partners to co-invest in rental
proposition with clear path to grow to ¢.£300m portfalio
over 3 years, Initial proposals received from high quality
funding partners with comimercial negotiations ongoing.

Capital structure and interest

The Group saw its tangible gross asset value decrease 10
£678m (2018: £692m). This was primarily driven by a £93m
decrease in inventory, in line with the Group's strategy to
establish a more measured growth trajectory, achieve a
smocth workflow and reduce the levels of finished stock.

A decrease in trade and other receivables due in less than one
year from £22m in FY18 to £13m in FY19, primarily reflects a
receivable balance due from heylo housing for the bulk sale
transaction at the end of FY18. An increase in trade and other
receivables due in greater than one year from £28m in FY18 to
£43m in FY19 is due to a receivable balance with Waverstone
LLP for the bulk sale of show flats and sales offices which
took place prior to the period end. Trade and other payables
have decreased from £115min FY18 to £95min FY19 due to
a lower level of accruals resulting from the lower level of build
activity at the end of FY19.
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Financial Review continued

Capital Structure and Interest continued

The Group has a strong balance sheet and maintains a
continuing focus on careful cash management, This careful
cash management helped us close the period with a net cash
of £25m (2018: £4m) as at 31 Qctober 2019, notwithstanding
higher levels of part-exchange and a seed portfolio of 101
rentals on the balance sheet. This resutted in a negative gearing
of 3% {2018: 2%) at the end of the period.

In April 2019, the Group extended the maturity date of its
existing £200m revolving credit facility from May 2021 to March
2023 with Barclays, HSBC and RBS. The nominal interest rate
of this facility has increased froma 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR +
1.6% to a 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1.7% depending on the
length of the drawdown. The level of drawdown fluctuated
during the 14 month period with the maximum drawdown of
£145m in June 2019 (2018: £195m in June 2018}, reflecting the
Group's working capital requirements to fund our investment in
land, build and sales and marketing expenditure. The average
drawdown during the period was £102m {(2018: £137m).

The Group's net finance expenses during the 14 month period
remained at £5m (2018: £5m).

Exceptional costs

Exceptional costs of £17m (2018: £2m) were incumed during
FY18. They represented the cost of land which will no ionger
be developed net of any residual land value to be recovered
of £7m, redundancy costs of £4m and consultants' fees in
relation to the strategic review of £6m.

Taxation

The effective tax rate was close to the statutory rate during

the 14 month pericd. The total tax charge for the pericd was
£9m (2018: £12mj which represented an effective tax rate of
20% (2018: 20%) based on a profit before tax for the 14 month
period of £43m (2018: £58m).

Earnings per share and dividend

Underlying basic earnings per share increased by 3% 10 9.5p
(2018: 9.2p} reflecting an increase in underlying profit before tax
from £62m in FY18 to £63m in FY19. Basic earnings per share
for FY19 were 6.5p {2018: 8.6p). Details of the calculation of
underlying earnings per share and earnings per share can be
found in notes 7 and 13 to the financial staternents.

The Directors are proposing a final dividend of 3.5p (2018;
3.5p) per share. This follows the interim dividend of 1.9p (2018:
1.9p) per share, giving a total dividend for the year of 5.4p

per share (2018 5.4p per share). This maintains our dividend
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at the same level as the prior year despite the lower level

of profitabifity and reflects the Board's confidence in its new
strategy. The proposed total annual dividend is covered 1.8
times by FY'19 earnings (2018: 1.7 times} and this reflects the
Board's intention ta grow the ordinary dividend cover to around
2x earnings over the medium-term. Subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM'), the dividend
will be paid on 3 April 2020 to sharsholders on the register at

8 March 2020.

The cost of the dividends paid within the financial period
amounted to £29m (2018: £30m).

Target returns

The Group maintained ROCE at 10% (2018: 10%) and a stable
capital turn at 1.0x (2018: 1.0x). Our strategy remains on

track to deliver the targets set out below, but it is the Board's
expectation that this improvernent will be heavily weighted
towards FY21.

Qur FY21 strategic targets as reported an 25 September 2018
are as follows:

* ROCE improvernent to greater than 15%
* Improvement in operating margins to more than 15%
¢ Total cost savings of more than £40m per annum

» Total cumulative cash savings in excess of £90m between
FY19-Fy21

* The Group will focus on a reduction of its capital employed
by at least £70m between FY18 and FY21

Related party transaction

During the year, the Group completed the sale of a portfolio
of 113 show flats and sales offices to Waverstone LLP

and subsequent leaseback for a maximum of 12 months.
Waverstone LLP is an entity between Waverley Investments
Limnited and McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Limited, where
McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Living Limited holds a non-
controlling 49% equity interest and therefore has been treated
as an associate in the Group financial statements. Waverstone
LLP was created to facilitate the purchase, management and
disposal of various assets built by the Group. Waverstone
LLP has appointed McCarthy & Stone Management

Services Limited a property manager and a sales agent.

The transaction resulted in an additional FY18 cash flow for
the Group of ¢.£17m with the remaining balance of ¢.£16m
expected to be paid over 2 years. FY19 underlying operating
profit for the Group includes ¢.£3m profit from the trangaction,
after taking account of unrealised profit and fair value
adjustments in relation to the outstanding receivable balance.

Please nole thal FY19 g a 14 month pennd and any comparatves are for a 12 month year encing 31 August uniess otherwise stated
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Qutlook

* Jotal volume expectations remain unchanged at ¢.2,100 at
an ASP of ¢.£300k

* |ncreased proportion of ¢.2,100 target volumes expected
to come from rental offering during FY20

* We will continue to allocate a proportion of the balance
sheet to rental until investment partner secured

¢ (Cash and profit impact expected to be similar to tranche
sales with further guidance provided once rental
investment secured

* (.37 first occupations expected in FY20 with all sites under
construction

* FRI sales assumed te go ahsad as planned

* House price inflation expected toc remain subdued and
build cost inflation expected to remain at ¢.3-4% level

* Total exceptional costs of ¢.£25m still anticipated across
the life of the transformation program with ¢.£19m incurred
to FY19

* [ntention toc grow ordinary dividend cover to around
2x underlying earnings over the medium-term

* Continued focus on cash generation with FY20 year
end net cash position expected to be in excess of FY19
* H1 out turn expected to be lower than prior vear,
impacted by slower start to the financial year due to
the General Election

« Full year out turn expected to rerain in line with market
expectations, weighted towards H2

Risk management

The Group maintains a robust risk management framework,
providing a clear link between its strategy and the strategic,
operational and financial risks faced by the business. The
approach to risk is set by the Board, which maintains a close
involvernent in identifying and mitigating risk and menitors

certain key risk indicators at Board meetings on a regular basis.

Please note that FY'19 15 a 14 month period and any comparalives are for a 12 month pear ending 37 August unless otherwise stated

As part of managing the financial risk in the business, the
potential impact of a downturn in the housing market or the
broader UK economic environment is regularly evaluated
and we have a number of key risk indicators that are used
at Board level in order to assess this. Our geographic
coverage and diversified portfolio of land ensures that we
are not overly dependent on particular local markets or
individual developments. In addition, our distinct business
maodel helps to insulate our business from a downturn,
with land acquisition normally contracted subject to
planning and also often subject to commercial viability or
by way of option, enabling us to review land acquisition
decisicns in light of planning cutcomes and latest market
conditions prior to committing significant capital.

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
27 January 2020
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Risk Management

Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Group

Risk management is integral to the successful delivery of our strategy and could also have
an adverse impact on our stakeholders and the Group reputation if not managed effectively

Risk management overview

Risk is managed through

a robust Risk Management
framework, which incorporates
a five step risk management
process, led by the Board,
supported by the Risk and
Audit Committee and
managed through the Risk
and Internal Audit team and
Operational Management.

Key Risk
Indicators

The maintenance of formal risk dashboards, risk scorecards,
the management of key control frameworks, the monitoring

of risk indlicators against agreed risk appstites for the principal
risks and the pursuit of a broad assurance pregramme provide
all levels of management with a clear framework within which
to operate,

Divisional management perform a regular assessment of its
exposure to risk, uncertainties and emerging threats and
opporunities and this information is escalated up through the
crganisation to the Board.

Principal risks, uncertainties and appetite for these are formally
identified, reviewed and agreed by the Executive Committee
every six months using a risk scoring methodology. Each risk
is categorised based an likelihood and potential impact. Once
agreed with the Executive Committee, the risks are plotted

on a risk heat map and submitted to the Risk and Audit
Committee for approval and subseguently to the Board.
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Assurance
Programme

Board
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Review

Risk
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Risk

Monitor
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Tolerate or Scorecards

Transfer Risk

Key Controls
Framework

The Executive Committee have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties facing

the Group, including those that would threaten our reputation,
business model, achieverment of strategic objectives, soivency
and liquidity.

The Executive Committee monitor on a monthly basis

the status of risk exposure to identity whether any principal
risks are approaching or are beyond the pre-determined risk
appetite and determine actions that are required to address
the position.

Assurance is provided over the effective design and
operation of the risk framework through a formal programme
of assurance activity performed by the Risk and Internal Audit
team and functional key control testing.

Preasa nate what FY19s @ 14 month penod amd any comganatves are for @ 12 month year srding 81 Sugust wless otherwise staled
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How we manage the risks to our business

Emerging and reducing risks

The business has continued to face a number of market
headwinds including government policy and economic
uncertainty following the outcome of the vote to leave the
European Union (EU) and the failure to leave the EU at the
end of March 2019.

These headwinds have resulted in a challenging economic
backdrop, lower consumer confidence and reduced volumes
in the secondary housing market since 2015.

Additionally, uncertainty over potential stamp duty changes
continue to hinder sales rates,

The introduction of and fast take up of multi-tenure choices
for our customers to move inte a McCarthy & Stone home
also introduces enhanced pressures on cash liquidity which
are actively managed through forecasting and engagement
with lenders. The number of units available and |et for rent or
shared ownership are monitcred on a frequent basis to ensure
there is no breach in limits set for both volumes and pricing.

The introduction of and fast take up of
multi-tenure choices for our customers
to move into a McCarthy & Stone home
introduces enhanced pressures on cash
tiquidity which are actively managed
through forecasting and engagement
with lenders.

The effects of climate change and associated future legislative
requirements may potentially have an impact on our business
model and the way we work in the future, therefore, the
Executive Committee will consider further the inclusion of
Climate Change as a principal risk during FY20.

Regulatory changes are expected from Government in relation
to ground rents. The changes have already been considered
and are unlikely to have a significant negative impact on the
Group, consequently, this risk has decreased in severity,

Frease note that FY'19 1s 2 14 month penied and any comparatives are for a 12 months year encing 37 August uniess othenwise stated

Viability statement

The Directors have assessed the prospects and financial
viability of the Group, taking into account both its current
position and principal risks. The Directors consider a three year
period is appropriate for this assessment as our land pipeline
provides us with sufficient land under control to meet sales
targets for the next three years. Accordingly, we consider it
appropriate that cur viability review period is broadly aligned
with the expected longevity of our owned land supply.

Our land pipeline provides us with
sufficient land under control to meet
sales targets for the next three years.
Accordingly, we consider it appropriate
that our viability review period is broadly
aligned with the expected longevity of
our owned land supply.

The Group is subject to a number of principal risks (as set out
in more detail overleaf) and the Directors’ viability statement
review considered the impact that these risks might have on
the Group’s ability to meet its targets. This was undertaken
through the modelling of a combined set of sensitivities, by
applying a reasonably possible downside to sales volumes
and pricing, rental pricing, build costs, planning risk and FRI
income. This sensitivity analysis reflects a severe but plausible
impact, assuming that the appropriate steps are taken to
mitigate the impact of the downside and continuing availability
of the RCF throughout the assessment period, which has been
extended until March 2023,

Based on this review, the Directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
three year assessment period.
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R|Sk Management continued

Economic ~
conditions

Risk description

Housebuilding is cyclical and refiant on the broader economy.

A detericration in the economic outlook, including economic growth,
inflation, interest rates and buyer confidence, could have a significant
impact on the Groups financial performance and ability to sell or rent
bath retirement apartments and the properties acquired as part of the
in-house part-exchange scheme.

The uncertainty in the economy and specifically the secondary
housebuilding market folowing the EU referendum is likely to continue
in the short to medium term as the UK exits the EU.

Mitigating actions

The Group closely moniters industry indicators and assesses the
potential impact of different economic scenarios. Decisions to allocate
capital to land, build and investment property are managed centrally
through the Group Investment Committee. The Group aims to maintain
a geographical and product spread of developments to ensure that it is
nct reliant on one locality, product or service type.

The operation of an in-house part-exchange scheme is subject to strict
controls tender cavenants and divisional limits.

The roll out of mutti-tenure, including the rental and shared ownership
offerings will help to offset any potential impact of a downturn in the
secendary housing market.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Desian [
Construction m Sales & Marketing

Services

..-.1-.-. Government
tI27  Ilegistation >
Risk description

Like any other business, the Group is affected by changes in
Gavernment legislation. The Government consultation on unfair
leasehold practices in FY18 had an adverse impact on the Group's
business model.

Mitigating actions

MHCLG published its response to its October 2018 consukation

on ground rents on 27 June 2019, where the Government confirmed
that the retirernent cormmunity sector will be given an exemption and
permitted to charge an economic ground rent after they are reduced
10 zero elsewhere. We continue to discuss the detail of the exemption
with the Government and will work with them as the proposals pass
through Parliament,

The Group has carried out an impact assessment of lower and no
ground rents and reviewed its land appraisal process accordingly.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction m Sales & Marketing

Services m
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Liquidity 5
and funding

Risk description

The Group requires appropriate facifties for its short term liquicity
and long term funding in order to deliver its strategic objectives
and stakeholder value.

Mitigating actions

Clear and concise forecasts and budgets are agreed at Board
tevel, suitable banking and finance faclities with covenants and
adeguate headroom are in place and reviewed routinely and
regular communication with investors and lenders is maintainad.

During the financial period the revolving credit facility was extended
1o March 2023,

Business area impacted

Land Buying Plarining & Design
Construction m Sales & Marketing

Services m

Delivery of
] strategic objectives >

Risk description

Prolonged business disruption and/or failure to achieve the targeted
savings could result in adverse financial deterioration and insuthcient
level of funding required to support working capital, which may
negatively impact the viability of the Group.

Mitigating actions

Clear and congcise objectives have been developed to deliver

the targets as defined in the Group strategy. The Transformation
Committee which is chaired by the CEQ closely monitor progress
against the objectives, holds COOs and divisional management
to account and takes remedial action in order to ensure delivery
against agreed timelines and objectives.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction m Sales & Marketing

Services [ 44 |

Please nafe that FY19 .15 a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month vear ending 31 August unless otherwise stated
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Principal Risks

Land acquisition
and planning ’

Risk description

Poor quality land and/or location could resutt in programme/cost over-
runs and difficulty in selling. Failure to abtain timely planning consents
will adversely affect workflow, resulting in failure to meet targeted sales
and/or cash flow.

Mitigating actions

Divisional fand buying teams are in place providing local knowledge
and expertise. These teams are targeted on land exchange and
completion as part of their reward structure.

Land is acquired with a high degree of conditionality, sc as to
not commit to purchase without having appropriate planning
agreements in place.

Divisicnal planning teams have the support and oversight of the
COO for build and the Group Investrent Committee.

Business area impacted

Planning & Design

Land Buying

Build programmes 5
and cost

Risk description

The Group's financial performance is dependent on its ability to deliver
build prograrmmmes on time and on budget. Build programme or cost
over-runs could result in slower sales or reduced margins.

Significant potential for cost reduction through standardisation, design
efficiencies and procurement practices have been identified as part of
the Group's strategy. Achievement of the build cost reduction will be
critical to the Group delivering on its strategic objectives.

Mitigating actions

Build progress and costs are reviewed regularly by dedicated
divisional commercial tearns, as well as being reported to divisional
management at formal Civision Board meetings and the Executive
Committee. The Group Investment Committee has oversight over
all construction budgets and independent assurance is provided by
the internal audit team whao perform commercial internal audits of
developments under construction to assess whether risks are being
effectively managed. Framework agreements have been established
with key subcontractors and suppliers to provide greater certainty of
price and supply.

Business area impacted

Construction m

Please note that FY19 15 & 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 month year encing 31 August uniess othenwse stated

Workfl

Risk description

The Group has historically suffered from a bias towards achieving

the majority of its completions and profits in the second half of the

financial year. Hence, any political uncertainty or adverse market

conditions during this pericd could adversely impact the Group’s

annual performance.

Mitigating actions

The Group is re-aligning workflow towards a steady state preduction

through the following actions:

* Targeting a stable monthly flow of land exchanges

« Ensuring stable monthly flow of build starts and first occupations

* Reducing the number of sites in development

* Introducing an incentive scheme designed to deliver
smoaothened workflow

Workflow is closely monitored by divisional management, the Executive
Committee and the Board.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction Sales & Marketing

Sales
ﬁ I performance

Risk description

The Group's business plan assumes selling and charging for its
products and services at attractive prices. Any volume shertfall or
pricing weakness could have a significant impact on the Group's
financial performance.

Mitigating actions

Detailed, regular and efficient reporting enables the Group to
monitor sales volumes, revenue and pricing at a development,

site and unit level. Performance against expectation is reviewed by
the OO for Services and Customers and the Commercial Director
with Divisional Sales Directors at monthly Divisional Revenue Board
meetings and at the Executive Committee meetings to ensure
performance is being effectivety managed and action taken in order
to address any potential performance issue,

A strict approval process exists for pricing adjustments and the
awarding of discounts and incentives in excess of certain thresholds.

Business area impacted

Sales & Marketing Services m
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Risk Management continved

Employees

Risk description

The Group's employees are central to the achievernent of the
Group’s objectives. Failure to recruit and retain sufficient staff
resource of the right quality could adversely impact the business.

Mitigating actions

The Group has put in place attractive reward machanisms and
provides extensive opportunities for professional development

and training, both of which are regularly reviewed against peer
housebuilders and cther employers in local markets. Resource
requirements are assessed against annual budgets and recruitment
processes are designed to ensure talent attraction and retention to
deliver the Group's strategic objectives.

Investrnent in learning and development across the Group will also
help to reduce the rigk associated with ermployee retention.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Censtruction m Sales & Marketing

Services m

Carrying value of inventory A~
r and investment property
Risk description
The net realisable value of inventory and investment property owned
by the Group may decline due to changes in the property market or

other conditions, or the Group being unable to secure detailed planning
consent on land purchased unconditionally.

Mitigating actions
Whenever possible, contracts to purchase land are via option

agreement or are conditional on the Group obtaining detailed
planning consent and/or & commercial viability clause.

The Group performs impairment reviews in line with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘' IFRS") requirements, on a half yearly
basis to ensure the value of inventory and investment property is
correctly reported.

Reqular independent valuations of investment property are also
performed to ensure carrying values are accurate.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction m Sales & Marketing
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7 R >

Risk description

Construction sites are inherently risky and could expose individuals to
the risk of serious injury or fatality.

Customers in the developments the Group manages are ageing and
sometimes frail, with the risk that they can be more susceptible to injury.

Mitigating actions

The Group strives for excelence in health and safety and considers

it to be a top priority. This is supported by a rigorous, independent
site inspection process which routinely assesses and reports on
standards, Regular reporting on key metrics and emerging issues are
reviewed monthly by the COO-Build and submitted to the Executive
Committee for further review.

Care Quality Cormmission inspections are performed across all
Retirernent Living PLUS developments and actions are tracked
to address any potential weaknesses in process.

Business area impacted

Planning & Design Construction m

Services m

Cyber Attack / IT failure

Risk description

Failure of the Group’s IT systems, in particular those relating to customer
data and cther market sensitive information such as surveying and
inventory or investment property valuations, could adversely impact the
performance and reputation of the Group.

Mitigating actions

The Group maintains central IT systems and has a robust cyber
gecurity programme in place. Dedicated resources and regular reviews
seek to reduce the risk of successful cyber attacks and a disaster
recovery programme is in place and regularly tested. Comphiance with
the GDPR legislation forms a core part of our policies and procedures.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Canstruction m Sales & Marketing

Services

Plaase note that FY19 15 & 14 month penod and any camparatves are for a 12 month vear encimg 31 August unless otherwise stated
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Principal Risks

Reputation and ~
customer satisfaction

Risk description

The Group builds, sells and rents a quality product to an ageing and
sometimes frail customer base and provides ongoing management,
care and wellbeing services. Any issues with the products or services
the Group provides could impact on reputation or customer satisfaction
to the detriment of the Group.

Adverse national pubiicity with respect to resales, especially older
non-managed properties and those sold just prior to the housing
market crash in 2008, can result in lower resale values, which in turn
can adversely impact our abilty to sell new retirement apartments,

Mitigating actions

The Group enforces strict procedures over the handover of
developments for occupation and the handover of specific
apartments to individual customers. Cngoing management, care
and wellbeing services are provided within a robust framework of
controls which are closely monitored.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspects our Retirement Living
PLUS developments and provides constructive feedback which is
also used to ensure that we are meeting applicable care standards.

The business has a dedicated customer services team and tracks
customer satisfaction through NHBC, HBF and internal surveys.

An in-house estate agency supports the resates process for customers
in our managed developments on the general housing market, with the
aim of speeding up the sales process and maximising value on resale.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction Sales & Marketing

Services m

E Operational I

Risk description

The risk of loss to the Group from inadequate or failed processes,
systems, human factors or due to external events, for example fraud.

Mitigating actions

Key Control framework and associated controls are operated and
tested on a routine basis with assurance obtained on a quarterly basis
to ensure effectiveness and operaticn of all operational key controls.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design
Construction Sales & Marketing

Services

Prgase note thet FY13 15 a 14 mont perod and any comparalives are for a 12 montf: year ending 31 August untess atherwise stated

Risk Management Key
Change from previous year

No

Increased Decreased New
risk change risk risk

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 55



Graphic removed

L |
N N

Graphic removed

L |

Linden Place, Solinull, West Midlands
Edward Place, Walton-on-Thames, Surtey



STRATEGIG REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I Corporate Governance

Board of Directors 58
Comorate Governance Statement 60
Nomination Committee Report 68
Risk and Audit Committee Report 72
Directors” Remuneration Report 78
Directors’ Report 108
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 116

Graphicremoved

N
L

Graphicremoved

L _|

Brooke Dene Court, Cleckheaton, YWest Yorkshire
Brooke Dene Gourt, opened by David Harper of Antiques Roadshow

“eCart e & sirve ple Annual Report 57



Board of Directors

Paul Lester, CBE
Group Non-Exetutive Chairman

Appointed; 3 January 2018
Committees: Chair of the Nomination
Comimittee and a member of the
Remuneration and Disclosure Committees

Experience

Paul is a highly expatienced Chairman and is currently
also the Chairman of Essentra PLC, Readypower Ltd,
FirstPart Ltd and Appello Ltd, Formerly a director of
Forterra PLC, Invensys PLC and Group Managing Director
of Balfour Beatty PLC before becoming Chiet Executive
of the support services company VT Group PLC in 2002,
Payl was alse Chairman of the John Laing Infrastructure
Fund until September 2017,

Skills and Contribution
= Laadership « Strategic * Sector

Paul brings a wealth of experience in leading companies.
Since his appointment, Paul has delivered strong and
decisive leadership, which has reset the tone of Board
discussions, encouraging cpen debate and constructive
challenge, He has been instrumental in working with the
Board in setting the Group's strategy.

John Tonkiss

Chisf Executive Officer
Appointed CEQ: Septermber 2018
Appointed: 5 November 2015

Committees:

Member of the Nomination, Disclosure,
Allotment and Health and Safety
Committaes

Experience

John worked for ten years for The Unite Group, the UK's
largest provider of purpase-built studient accommodation,
becoming Group Chief Qperating Officer in 2008, While
at Unite he introduced new models of investrment and
construction for student housing that transformed the
business. John was previously Chisf Executive Officer of
Human Recognition Systerns, the UK's leading biometric
solutions provider, John joined McCarthy & Stone in
2014 and held a nurmber of roles including Group Chief
Operating Officer.

Skills and Contribution

» Sector + Leadership * Strategic

John brings extensive skills and industry expenence

to McCartny & Stone, which have been gained in senior
operational and strategic roles.

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 6 January 2017
Committees:

NMarmiber of the Disclosure
ang Allotment Cornmnittees

Experience

Bafare joining McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various
rofes in industry and private practice, most notably at
Barclays plc and PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Raowan buiilt a deep understanding of the business
through previous roles held including Group Financial
Caontroller. Rowan is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accourtants of England and Wales and an associate of
the Chartered Institute of Taxation.

Skilis and Contribution

= Financial = Technical & Strategic

Rowan brings a wealth of financial experience and
technical expertise to the Board.

Rowan played a lead role in the Company's successful
IPQ in 2015 and has a deep and comprehensive
understanding of the business.

-

L

Mike Lloyd
GChief Operating Officer
Services and Custormers

Agppointed: 1 January 2019

Graphic removed

Experience
Mike is an experienced Director and has worked
with a wide range of businesses and across sectors.

Prior to joining McCarthy & Stone, Mike was Chief
Executive of AA Insurance Services and Chief
Commercial Officer of The AA. He led a number of
the AR's divisions, as well as its sales contact centres,
marketing and digital functions.

Mike started his career at Oliver Wyman, which he
joined in 2001 and became a Partner in 2011 until 2014,

—

]

Skills and Contribution

* Services Operations * Transformation
* Sales and Markesting

Mike brings to McCarthy & Stone a deep knowledge

and understanding of consumer businesses, with focus
on sales and marketing, services operations and broader
transformation and strategy.

Nigel Turner

Chiet Operating Officer
Build

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Committees:
Chait of the Health and Safety Cornmittee

Experience

Nigel has more than 30 years of leadership and delivery
exparience in the real estate and senvices sectors.
Previously the Developments Property Services Director
and a board rmember at Kier Group plc, responsible for
Kier's developmert and resicential activities, strategy.
asset management ang procurament, Prior 10 joining
Kiar, Nigel was Developrment Director at Laing Progerty
Limitad where he led the development of a new
industrial business stream. Nigel is a member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Skills and Contribution

= Sector « Strategic * Operational

Nigel has considerable experience in the property

and asset management sectors. His industry expertise
has snabled hirn to make a valuable contribution to the
execution of the Group's strategy, in particutar driving
down build costs and achieving mora standardised and
afficient designs.

Plegse note thal FY19 is @ 14 manth penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August uriess otherwise stated
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Experience Skills and Contribution
John Carter 6 John was the Chief Executive of Travis Perkins plc until * Sector » Operational * Colleague Wellbeing
Independent Non-Executive Director August 2018, a position he held since 2014, Having joined j5hy's commercial and sector experience brings valuabls
Appointed: 1 October 2017 Travis Perkins In 1978, he was appainted to the Board insight to the Board, particularly in the areas of leadership,

P ed r in 2001 and was 1he dnwrjg force behind th_e creation change management and people related issues, such

Committees: and growth of Travis Perkins plc sector leading global as engagement, health and safety, diversity and equality.
Member of the Rermuneration and sourcing and supply chain functions. John was heavily He is also able 1o apply these skills and experiences to
Nomination Committees, Company invotved in driving & broader and more diverse workdorce,  hig formal role of designated Non-Executive Director for
designated Non-Executive Director creating a better and gafer w_orllqng environment and»led engagement with the workforce.
for engagement with the workforce the integration of Travis Perkins' three largest strategic

acquisitions of Keyline, Wickes and BSS.

Experience Skills and Gontribution
Arun Nagwaney 7 Arunis the Managing Director and Global Head of * Commercial « Strategic e Transformation
Non-independent Portfoiio Group at Anchorage. Prior to joining Ancharage,  ann has a deep understanding of the business and

- ive Di Arun was Director and Co-Founding Sharehaider at brings additional strategic thinking to the Board.

Non-Executive Director Papierwerke Lenk AG and Director and Co-Founding 9 g 9
Appointed: 17 May 2018 Shareholder at Plastics Capital Plc. During that time, Arun
Committees: was also the Vice-Chair of the Supervisory Board at Beta
Mermber of the Nomination Committee Systerns Software AG. Prior to Lenk and Plastics Capital,

he was a Principal at KKR Capstone Europe. Anun serves

as a board director at some of Anchorage's portfolio

companies including PHS Greup and ldeal Standard.

Experience Skills and Contribution
Gill Barr 8  Gill has held senicr strategic, marketing and business * Strategy * Sales and Marketing » Remuneration
Independent development posttions at John Lewis. Kingfisher, KPMG — qp prings & focus on executive rermunsration, customer

Non-Executive Director

Appuointed: 10 April 2019

Committees: Chair of the Rermuneration
Committee and a mermber of the
Normination and Risk and Audit Cormmittees

and MasterCard. Most recently, she was Group Marketing
Director of The Co-operative Group. Gill is currently a
Nen-Executive Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee at N Brown Group plc and a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Rermuneration Committee
at PayPoint plc and Wincanton plc. Gill was previously a
Non-Executive Directer at Morgan Sindall plc and chaired
their Remuneration Cammittee.

strategy, proposition development and communication
including effective use of digital channels which adds to
the skillset of the Board.

-

[

Frank Nelson
Senior Independent Director

Appointed: 18 November 2013

Committees: Chair of the Risk and
Audit Committee and a member cf the
Remuneration and Norminaticn Committees

7 Graphicremoved 8

Experience

Frank is a gualified accountant with 30 years' experience
in the housebuilding, infrastructure and energy sectors.
He was Finance Director of Galliford Try plc from 2000
until 2012 and was also responsible for its PFI/PPP
activities. He was previously Finance Director of the Try
Groupz pic from 1887, leading the company through its
flotation in 1988 and subsequent merger with Galliford.

Frank is currantly the Senior Independent Director of
HICL Infrastructure Company Limited and Eurocell plc.

|

Skills and Contribution
* Financia * Risk Managemeni = Sector

Frank's significant housebuilding and financial knowladge
make him an sffective member of the Board and a strong
Chair for our Risk and Audit Committee. He is always
prepared to challenge financial perfermance and to
promote good risk management and financial practice.

Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 1 Aprl 2015
Committees:

10

Chair of Corporate, Social and Responsibility

Committes, Member of the Risk and Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Experience

Geeta has more than 30 years' experience in the housing
sactor and as a Chief Executive Officer of Metropolitan
Thames Valley Housing Association Limited (TVHAY). In
2013, Geeta was awarded an OBE for her achieverments
to social housing.

Geeta is a Director of Fizzy Enterprises which she
launched in 2012, as a branded market rent proposition.
Sha has 24 years’ experienca in non-executive roles.

Please note that FY18 55 & 14 month penod and any comparatives arg for 2 12 month year enting 31 August uniess othermse stated

Skills and Contribution

* Sector « Societal * Leadership

Having extensive experience in the public and privale
housing sectors, Geeta has significant knowledge of
strategy, operations and organisational change and
her varied experience allows her to bring a different
perspective to Board discussions.
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Dear Shareholder

As Chairman, my principal roie is to lead the Board and
ensure that it continues to operate effectively to help deliver
shareholder value and promote the success of the Group.
In this section of the Annual Report we explain how the
business is structured and managed to promote high
standards of governance across the Group.

Governance and Culture

The Board recognises the importance of ensuring that high
standards of governance and business practice are upheld
throughout the Group and welcomes the Financial Reporting
Council's 2018 Corporate Governance Code (the ‘new

Code’). The new Code brings about significant changes

in the requirements for listed companies and the Board

and its Committees have spent significant time during FY19
considering how to build upon and further strengthen the
existing governance framework to meet the requirements of
the new Code. Actions that have been undertaken and ongoing
by the Board to ensure compliance with the new Code include:

* Strengthening the Board's direct engagement with our
workforce, The Board feels that a designated Non-Executive
Director is the most appropriate method for engagement
at this time and has appointed John Carter, Independent
Non-Executive Director, to take up the role

* Feedback relating to worldorce engagernent and other key
information will be reported to the Board and its Committees

* Changing primary responsibility for monitoring whistleblowing
arrangements from the Risk and Audit Committee to a matter
reserved for the Board

“The Board provides clear,
entrepreneurial and responsible
leadership in order to promote the

long term success of the Group, whilst
ensuring a robust risk and internal control
framework, adequate resources and
appropriate values and standards are

in place to deliver its strategic objectives”

Paul Lester, CBE, Group Non-Executive Chairman

J

* Practical steps are also baeing considered to embed our
obligations refating to section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
which will apply to the Group for the first time in FY2Q.

The Board intends 1o review the content of Board papers to
ensure it is getting the information it needs to discharge its
section 172 duties. The Company Secretary will update the
Board of its obligations under section 172 and facilitate a
compliance action plan

+ Directors are now also required to inform the Board and
seek approval before taking on any additional board level
responsibilities

+ During 2020, there wil be increased focus on sustainability
and corporate responsibility through a reformed Corporate
and Social Respensibility Committee structure, Geeta Nanda
will chair the Committee at Board level on a quarterly basis
and this Committee will be supported at an operational level
by a monthly Committee meeting chaired by John Tonkiss.

Board Changes

The Board has undergone some significant changes during

the year and up to the date of this report. As part of succession
planning and to drive the execution of the strategy, two Chief
Operating Officers were appointed on 1 January 2019. Mike
Uoyd, who is respensible for services and customers and Nigel
Turner, who is responsible for build, including health and safety.

Gill Barr commenced her Board role on 23 May 2019,

following her appaintment on 10 April 2019 as an independent
Non-Executive Director and she brings with her considerable
board level and remuneration committee experience. Mike
Parsons left the Board at the end of October 2019 and a search
is underway to find a suitable replacement.
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Corporate Governance Framework

The Board of Directors

Chairman: Paul Lester, CBE

The Board is ultimately respensible for all activities of the Group. It has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for its approval and has
delegated some of its responsibilities to the Committees of the Board and Senior Management. In addition, certain Committees have been
established to oversee some of the operational activitles of the Group, including the Executive Committee which meets on a monthiy basis
to discharge responsibilities delegated to it by the Board and execute the Group’s strategy.

Disclosure Committee Corporate and Social Transformation
Chair: John Tonkiss Responsibility Commitiee Committee
Respansible for timely and | | Chair: Geeta Nanda, OBE _| Chair: John Tonkiss
accurate disclosure of all Responsible for making recormmendations regarding Responsible for the execution
information required to be the Group's employees, environmental, societal of the Group's strategy and
disclosed to meet the Group's and community engagerment responsibilities and its transformation programrme.
legal and regulatory obligations. sustainability activities. It also reviews health and safety

arrangerments and makes any recommendations

necessary 1o the Health and Safety Committee.

Nomination Committee
Chair: Paul Lester, CBE

Assists the Board in reviewing the
structure, size and composition of
the Beard and has responsibility
for making recommendations

to the Beoard in respect of
appointments to the Board and
to the Committees of the Board.

Risk and Audit
Committee

Chair: Frank Nelson
Responsible for monitoring the
integrity of the Group's financial
statements and the effectiveness
of the internal audit function,
internal contrels, risk management

and fraud systems in place It is also responsible for reviewing
within the Group. It also reviews The Boa rd succession plans for the Board
the effectiveness of the external and Senior Management of the
auditors, Group.
Group Investment Remuneration
Committee Committee
Chair: Gary Day Chair: Gill Barr
Responsible for reviewing and Responsible for designing and
approving all land acquisitions. Executive Committee implementing the Group's overall
Major investment decisions and Chair: John Tonki remuneration strategy and policy
acquisitions not in the ordinary air: John fonkiss and determining the levels of
course of business are referred The Executive Committee supports the CEQC in remuneration of the members
up to the Board in line with the the execution of the Group’s strategy and in the of the Board and other Senior
matters reserved schedule. management of the day-te-day activities of the Group. Management of the Group.
| [
[ I
Operations Board Health and Safety Committee Operations Board
Land and Development Chair: Nigel Turner Services and Customers
Chair: Nigel Turner Develops the health and safety strategy and ensures that Chair: Mike Lloyd
Responsible for delivery of health and safety policies and procedures are adequately Respansible for delivery of
operational and strategic implemented and adhered to throughout the Group. operational and strategic
objectives for land and Monitors the effectiveness of the Group’s health and cbjectives for services and
development. safety systerms and keeps up-to-date with changes in customers.
legislation surrounding health and safety.

“The term Senior Management used in this report refers lo the Executive Committee and their direct reports

Please note that FY13 15 a 14 monti perfod and any comparalives ave 1or a 12 manth year ending 31 August unless otherwise stated Lty & Store plo Annual Report



Corporate Governance Statement continued

Compliance statement

Throughout the financial year ended 31 October 2019 and to the date of this report the Group has applied the principles and
complied with the provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code as revised in April 2016 (the 'Code’), except as
disclosed below. The Cade is issued by the FRC and is available for review on the FRC website: www.frc.org.uk

Following the launch of the Group’s strategy in Septernber 2018 the need for additional Executive Directar support was identified.

A search was undertaken and on 1 January 2019 Nigel Turner and Mike Uloyd both joined the Group and Board as Chief Operating
Officers. Although these appointments resulted in the Group’s Board not being compliant with Provision B.1.2 of the Code, the Board
felt it was justified as these appointments were crucial to the effective execution of the Group’s strategy. The Board commenced an
immediate search for a suitably experienced independent Non-Exscutive Director to bring the Board in compliance with the Code and
on 10 April 2019 Gill Barr was appointed and commenced her Board responsibilities from 23 May 2019, However, on 31 October
2019 Mike Parsons stepped down from the Board meaning the Group was again nat in compliance with Provision B.1.2 of the Code.
The Board is mindful of its responsibilities under the Code and a search is currently underway to find a suitable replacement to bring
the Group in compliance with the Code. Other than as disclosed above the Group has been compliant with the Code throughout the
financial year ended 31 October 2019 and to the date of this report.

The Board considers that this Annual Report, notably this section and the Board Committee sections, pravides the information
stakeholders need to evaluate how we have complied with our current obligations under the Code.

Leadership roles and division of responsibilities

Chairman

* | eadership of the Board in setting the Purpose, Vision,
Strategic direction of the Group and Board agenda

* | eading constructive challenge of the Executive Committee

* Ensuring the Board determines the nature and extent of the
Group's risk appetite

* Promoting high standards of corporate governance

* Facilitates constructive relations between Executive and
Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

* Review proposals put forward by the Executive Committee

* Bring external perspective and independent challenge to
the Executive Directors

« Monitor the Group's performance and execution of the
Group’s strategy
Chief Executive Officer

s QOwverall responsibility for management of the operational
activities of the Group

* Development and innovation of the Group’s strategy

* lmplements the strategies and objectives agreed by the
Board to deliver operational performance and success

* Monitors the Group's performance

* Ensures effective communication with all stakeholders,
in order to understand their issues and concems, and
communicate findings to the Board

Chief Operating Officers
* Responsible for the execution of the Group’s strategy
* Drive efficiency and effectiveness initiatives

* Ensure McCarthy & Stone maintains its Customer
Satisfaction ratings

Senior Independent Director
s | eads the appraisal of the Chairman’s performance

* Supports and deputises for the Chairman and is available to
communicate with shareholders in the Chaitman’s absence

General Counsel and Company Secretary’
* Advises the Board on matters of corporate governance

* Responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed

* Responsible for ensuring that applicable laws, rules and
regulations are complied with

» The principal point of contact for investors on matters
of corporate governance

Chief Financial Officer

¢ Provides strategic and financial guidance to ensure the
Group's financial commitments are met

* Responsible for the Group’s financial and accounting
records and systems

* Devises the financial and tax strategies of the Group in
line with the agreed risk appetite

+ Responsible for producing the Group's budget

Executive Committee
* Supports the CEQ in execution of the Group's strategy

* Supports the CEQ in management of the operational
activities and risk management of the Group

* Supports the CEC in monitoring Group’s performance
and delivery of the Group's financial performance

* Oversees employee communication and development
of talent

1 Patrick Hole resigned from McCarthy & Stone on 31 Decernber 2019. Rowan Baker was the interim
Company Secretary urtil Adam Batty the new General Counsel and Company Secretary started on 20 January 2020
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Summary of Board activities and priorities in FY19

The Board provides clear, entrepreneurial and responsible leadership to the Group in order to promote its long term success,
whilst ensuring the Group has in place a robust risk and internal control framework, adequate resources and appropriate values
and standards to deliver its strategic objectives. Specifically, the agenda cycle makes provision for updates on the key areas of the
Group’'s business model and functions, including Human Resources, [T and Finance, Set out below is a summary of key activities
covered during the course of the FY19 Board cycle and to the date of this report:

In line with the Code, there is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, which is set

out in writing and has been agreed by the Board.

Strategy

Governance and risk management

* Monitoring the implementation and execution of the
Group's strategy through regular Transformation
Committee updates

* Determining the Group's approach to the proposed
government reform of leasehold and ground rents

* Oversight and approval of strategic land acquisitions

* Monitoring company culture and introducing the
‘McCarthy & Stone Way'

* Reviewing Investor Perceptions Report

* Monitoring Group's engagement with Government,
MPs, officials and journalists

* Approval of the transaction with Waverstone LLP

Review and approval of the:

Modern Slavery Act statement

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion policy

Cyber security arrangements

Principal risks, including Brexit and mitigation planning
The risk and control environment

The effectiveness of the external auditor

Board evaluation outputs

Whistleblowing reports

Gender pay report

Director appointments

Financial performance

Review and approval of the:

= Board succession planning and appointment of the
new NED and COOs

* Salary and incentives for the Board and Senior
Management

« NED appeintment to the role of Company designated
Non-Executive Director for engagement with the
workforce in accordance with the revised Code

* Appointment of NED as Chair of reformed
CSR Committee

Flease note thal FY191s a 14 menth period and any comparatives are for a 12 month year enaing 31 August uriess otherwise stated

Review and approval of the:

Group's new Accounting Reference date

Half year and year end results

Annual budget

Revised three year plan

Annual Report

Going concern and viability status

Interim dividend and recommendation of final dividend
Group’s Capital Allocation policy

Remuneration Committee recommendations

“AoDarty A Stera ole Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Statement contiuea

Meetings and atlendance

During FY19, there were ten formal Board mestings. The Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, as well as the meetings of the
three main Board Committees are shown in the table below:

Risk and Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Board Committee Committee Committee
Board meeting attendance$
Paul Lester 10/10 n/a 4/4 5/5
Gill Barr? 4/4 2/2 3/3 n/a
John Tonkiss 10/10 n/a n/a 5/5
Rowan Baker 10/10 n/a n/a n/a
Mike Uoyd® 8/8 n/a n/‘a n/a
Nigel Turner? 8/8 n/a va n/a
Geeta Nanda 9/10 4/5 4/4 4/5
Frank Nelson 10/1C 5/5 4/4 5/6
Mike Parsons® B/10 375 1/4 3/5
John Carter 1010 n/a 4/4 n/a
Arun Nagwaney 1016 n/a n/a 5/5

Notes:

1 Meetings attended/total number of meetings eligitle to attend, Only attendance of formal members of the meetings are included
2 Gilf Barr was appointed with effact from 10 Aprit 2019 and commenced Board activities from 23 May 2018

3 Mike Lioyd was appoirted to the Board with effect from 1 January 2019

4 Nigel Turner was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 January 2019

5 Mike Parsons has resigned from the Board with effect from 31 October 2019

6 Pre-existing commitments resufted in a number of meetings being held without full attendance, in such cases comments
and feedback were provided by Directors prior to the meeting taking place

The Board’s Role

The Board is responsible for operational contral of the Group, including all strategic, financial, organisational, legal and regulatory
matters. These responsibiliies are set out in the schedule of matters reserved for the Board which is updated and approved
annually and includes:

* Approval of the Group’s Strategy, objectives, values and standards

+ Approval of the business model

* Oversight of the Group’s pperations to ensure scund, competent and prudent management
* Approval of major changes to the Group’s structure and internal control environment

¢ Ensuring that an effective system of internal control and risk management is maintained

* Approval of shareholder communications

* Approval of major land acquisitions

The types of decisions delegated to Senior Management relate to the day-to-day running of the business and execution of the
Group's strategy.

84 Seftnri 3 oo pis Prease note that FY19 15 a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwise stated
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Board Committees

In accordance with the Code, the Board has established
three Board Committees: Risk and Audit, Remuneration

and Nomination. The membership of each of the Committees
complies with the requirements of the Code and the terms of
reference of the Committees are included on our corporate
website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/
corporate-governance

Details of the Comimittees and their activities during the year
are set out in the separate Committee reports on pages 68 to
1086, which are incorporated into the Corporate Governance
Statement by reference.

Board composition and appointments

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Executive Committee

The role of the Executive Committee is to support the CEC in
delivering the Group’s strategy and to manage the day-to-day
operations of the business. A review of Executive Committee
rmembership was undertaken during the ysar and in order to
improve its effectiveness, the membership has been reduced
and now consists of the following members:

* Chief Executive Officer

* Chief Financial Officer

* Chief Operating Officer - Build

* Chief Operating Officer - Senvices and Customers
* Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
* Group Human Resources Director

The Board currently comprises a Non-Executive Chairman (who was independent on appointment), four Executive Directors, four
independent Non-Executive Directors and one other Non-Executive Director who is not independent. A search is currently underway
to recruit an additional independent Non-Executive Director. Notwithstanding this, the Company considers there to be an appropriate
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, The Board has delegated responsibility to the Nomination Committee to lead
the process of selecting new Directors before making recommendations to the Board, The Nomination Committee report can be
found on pages 68 to 71. The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment set out the time commitment expected to fulfil
their role. The Board is satisfied that each of the Directors has committed sufficient time and input during the year to enable them te
fulfil their duties as evidenced by the high attendance at Board and Committee meetings throughout the year.

Board Diversity’

® Male
® Female

1 Excludes Mike Parsons wha resigned from the Board with effect of 31 October 2019

Please note that FY18 s a 74 month perod and any comparatives are ior a 12 month year ending 37 August unless otherwise stated

Board Composition’

O 0

® Executive Director
® Independent Non-Executive 0-3 4-8
@® Nominee Director

Board Tenure'

o

Number of Directors
Qo = N W B O @ N R D

Length of tenure (years)
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Conflicts of interest and independence

No individual or group of individuals dominates the Board's
decision making process. The Board has an established
process to review and, if appropriate, authorise any conflict
of interest. Directors are excluded from voting on any matters
in which they have an interest. During the year the Board
authorised the situational conflict of Arun Nagwaney as the
Nominee Director under the Relationship Agreement, Under
the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
Arun Nagwaney is not considered to be an independent
Non-Executive Director. Any transactional conflicts are
reviewed as they arise and there is a standing item at

all meetings to review any potential conflict of interest.

Paul Lester resigned from the board of Forterra plc on 20 May
2019 and John Carter resigned as CEO of Travis Perkins with
effect from 5 August 2019. The Board ne longer considers
there to be a potential conflict of interest for either Paul or
John regarding their previous directorships.

For the purposes of the Code the Board considers Frank
Nelson, Geeta Nanda, Gill Barr and John Carter to be
independent Non-Executive Directors.

Induction, development and support

On joining the Board, each Director is provided with a
personalised induction to the business including meetings
with Senior Management and visits to some of the Group's
developments in order to provide a broader understanding of
the business. In order to assist the Directors in their ongoing
understanding of the Group, Board meetings are held acruss
different divisional offices throughout the year to provide an
opportunity for the Directors to meet local management.
They are provided with access 10 a detailed information pack
covering Group policies, directors’ duties and responsibilities
as well as other key governance documents, which they

can also access through an online Board reporting portal.
Mike Lioyd, Nigel Turaer and Gill Barr, who were all appointed
during the year, have received an induction to the business in
line with the above.

Board meetings are held across

different divisional offices throughout

the year to provide an opportunity

for the Directors to meet local
management and assist the Directors

in their understanding of the Group.
|
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All Directors are encouraged to undertake additional training
whete it is considered appropriate for them to do so and a
summary of relevant training opportunities is communicated
to the Directors annually.

Board papers are circulated in a timely manner to enable
the Directors to undertake full and detailedt consideration of
agenda iterns in advance of meetings. Each of the Directors
has access to the services of the Company Secretary and
independent external legal and professional advice can also
be taken when it is necessary t0 do so.

Board evaluation

An evaluation of the performance of the Board, its

members and Committees was externally facilitated in FY19.
The Nomination Cornmittee led the process and the findings
are included in the Nomination Committee report on pages
68 to 71.

Promoting the Company’s success is
the driving factor behind all decisions
made by the Board. Decision making
processes are structured to enable
directors to evaluate the merit of
proposed business activities and the
likely consequences of its decisions
over the short, medium and long term.

Promoting the success of the Company

Promgating the Company's success is the driving factor behind
all decisions made by the Board. Decision making processes
are structured to enable directors to evaluate the merit of
proposed business activities and the likely consequences

of its decisions over the short, medium and long term. The
Board carefully considers the impact of the business on the
communities and environments in which the Group operates.
Due consideration is paid to the Group’s stakeholders,
including but not limited to our customers, suppliers, business
partners, employees, shareholders and also the wider !
environmental and societal impacts. In all its activities, and
those of the Group, the Board requires that our employees
and partners conduct business with the highest ethical and
professional standards.

Plaase note that FY18.15 & 14 month perod and any comparaives are for a 12 month year ending 371 August undess othenwise stated
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Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s overall intemal
control environment and risk management framework

which are designed to manage the risks faced by the Group.
The Executive Committee, Risk and Audit Committee and
the risk and internal audit function identified the principal risks
facing the Group and established a framework and systems
for evaluating and managing those risks. The framework and
internal control procedures have been in place for the entire
year under review and up to the date of this report, They are
designed to manage rather than efiminate risk and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or 0ss, Details of Aisk management
and the principal risks facing the Group are set out on pages
50 to 55, Further information can also be found in the Risk
and Audit Committee report on pages 72 to 77.

Relations with shareholders

The Chairmnan, Board and the Executive Directors are
committed to open and transparent dialogue with shareholders.
Although most direct shareholder contact is facilitated by the
Exsacutive Directors, feedback is communicated to the other
Directors primarily through reports to the Board, feedback

from brokers and external advisors and copies of analysts’
presentations.

The Chairman, Senior Independent Director and other
members of the Board are available to meet with institutional
investors if required. During the year, a number of meetings
and presentations were held with the Company’s largest
investors as part of discussions surrounding the Group's
strategy. In addition, in her capacity as Chalr of the
Remuneration Committee and as part of her induction

to the role, Gill Barr met with a number of key investors
shortly after her appointment in April 2019,

The AGM provides an opportunity for the Chairman to

explain the Company’s progress and, along with other
members of the Board, to answer any guestions raised

by shareholders. All of the Directors, who were members

of the Board at that time, attended the AGM in January 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Paul Lester, CBE
Group Non-Executive Chairman
27 January 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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“The Board has been through
a period of transition and has
evolved considerably during FY19”

Paul Lester, CBE Chair of the Nomination Committee

]

| am pleased to present the report of the Nomination Committee (the ‘Committee’)
in respect of FY19 and a summary of the on going work of the Committee.

The Beard has been through a period of transition and has
evolved considerably during FY18. Two new Executive Directors
have been appointed to strengthen the leadership team and
provide additional leadership bandwidth and capability in order
to deliver the Group's strategy.

A new independent Non-Executive Director with significant
remuneration committee experience was also appointed during
the year, addressing one of the key opportunities identified as
part of last year's Board evaluation exercise.

Mike Parsons resigned from the Group with effect from
31 October 2019, we are currently in the process of recruiting
a replacement independent Non-Executive Director.

68 SAcCarth, & Stere pls

Additicnally, | have now been Chairmnan for nearty two years
and Arun Nagwaney has been an the Board for over one year
as the representative of our largest shareholder, Anchorage
Capital Group "Anchorage’. Maintaining s righil Ladance of
skills and knowledge is key to achieving the Group's strategic
objectives and in light of these changes the Comrmittee has
again engaged external consultants to facilitate the Board
evaluation this year.

Looking ahead, Committee members are mindful of the

developments made in relation to the new Code, particularly
those in relation to purpose and culture, and this will form an
important part of the Committee’s activity over the next year.

Prease note that FY19s a 14 month penod and any comparaives ave for a 12 month yesr encing 37 August uniless othenwise stated



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Membership and attendance

FY19 has been a busy period for the Committee with five
formal meetings held, The members of the Cornmittee and
their attendance during FY 13 is shown below:

Director Nominaticn Committee attendance?
Paul Lester 5/5
Frank Nelson 5/6
Geeta Nanda 4/5
Mike Parsons’ 3/5
Arun Nagwaney 5/5
John Tonkiss 5/5

in accordance with the Code, a majority of members of the
Committee are independent Non-Executive Directors.

Career profiles of the Committee members can be found in
the Board of Directors section on pages 58 and 59.

Summary of key activities during FY19

Recruitment and appointments

Board evaluation

* New Chief Operating Officers appointed

* Additional Non-Executive Director appointed

* Considered and changed the Committee's composition
* Recommended Directors for election or re-election

* Appointment of designated Non-Executive Director for
engagement with the workforce

* Commenced search for replacement Non-Exacutive
Director following Mike Parsons’ resignation

* Appointment of NED to Chair the CSR Committes

* Participated in and reviewed the output of the 2019
external Board evaluation process

* Considered Board members' external appointments, in
particular any potential overboarding or risk of conflict

Succession planning

Diversity

* Considered succession planning arrangements

* Reviewed current initiatives in respect of the wider
talent pipeline

* Ensured sufficient contingencies are in place to respond
to sudden or unexpected unavailability of Directors and
Senior Management

* Considered ongoing internal initiatives in respect of
diversity and inclusion

* Reviewed and implemented new Equality, Diversity
and Inclusion Policy

* Considered gender diversity of Executive Directors
and Senior Management

1 Mike Parsons resigned from the Nomination Committee with effect from 31 October 2012

2 Due to pre-existing cornmitments a number of meetings did not have full attendance, in such
instances Directors provided comments and questions in advance of the meeting they were unable to attend

Flease note thal FY19 is a 14 month penod and any comparaiives are for a 12 month year ending 31 Augusi unless otherwise staied
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Key responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Committee are set out in its
written terms of reference which are available under the
Corporate Governance section on the Company’s corporate
website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/
corporate-governance, and include:

* Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and its Committees

* Ensuring that the skills and experience of the Board
remain appropriate and balanced

* Recommending appointments and re-election to the
Board and its Committees

* Succession planning for the Directors and Senior
Management

* Reviewing the results of the Board and Committee
performance evaluation

Succession planning

This year the Committee has continued to focus on succession
planning and in light of its increased responsibility under the
new Code has focused on the quality and development of

the Group's wider Senior Management pipeline. At its June
meeting, the Committee reviewed and was satisfied with

the arrangements in place for succession for the Executive
Directors and Senior Management.

Emergency succession

During the year, the Committee also considered emergency
succession arrangerments in the event of sudden changes

in the availability of Executive Directors and key members of
Senior Management. Historically, the business has successfully
promoted from within the Group to key Senior Management
and Executive Director positions. As part of its succession
planning arrangements, during the year the Committee was
able to clearly identify, in most cases, potential candidates ta
immediately cover for key personnel should the need arise.
However, the use of external recruitment wauld be utilised
where there was no obvious existing immediate cover within
the business.

Board appointments

The Committee adopts a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors t¢ the Board, External
consultants are used to assist in identifying suitable Board
candidates, based on a written specification for each
appeintment. In accordance with the Code, the Nomination
Committes is led by the Senior Independent Director when
dealing with the appointment of a successor to the Board
chairmanship.
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Much of the Committee’s time during FY19 and up to the
date of this report was spent on the recruitment and induction
of one new Non-Executive Director and the two new COOs.

Disclosures on the recruitment process for John Tonkiss'
appointment as CEO in September 2018 can be found in
the FY18 Annual Report.

Taking account of the changes in
Board membership during the year,
the female representation on the
Board at the date of this report is 30%.

COO Appointments

Foliowing the announcement and launch of the Group’s
strategy in September 2018, the Board identified a need

for additional executive leadership to deliver the strategy.
Accordingly, Korm Ferry an independent external search firm
undertook a search to identify two new Executive Directors,
internal and external candidates were considered as part of
the process and a shortlist of candidates was identified.

The Committee recommended that Mike Lloyd and

Nigel Turner be appointed to the roles of COO - Services

and Customners and Build respectively. In making their
recommendation, the Committee considered the knowledge,
expertence and skills required for the roles. The Board met
on 6 November 2018 to review the recommendations of the
Committee and unanimously approved the appcintments. On
7 December 2018, the Group annocunced the appointment of
Nigel Turner and Mike Lloyd as Chief Operating Officers and
they formally joined the Board on 1 January 2019.

Non-Executive Director Appointment

Following the FY18 Board evaluation, a need was identified to
address a fack of remuneration committee experience on the
Board, Korn Ferry were again retained to conduct a search
which was ungertaken in the first half of FY'19 to identify a
suitable candidate. The Committee concluded that Gill Basr
was the most compelling candidate for the role and formally
approved her appointment at its meeting held on 9 April 2019.
The Group announced her appointment on 10 April 2019 and
Gill commenced Board activities from 23 May 2019. She

was also appointed as Chair of the Remuneration and as a
member of the Risk and Audit Committes with effect from the
same date.

Please note that FY719 s a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for & 12 monih year ending 31 August Lniess otherwise stafed
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Diversity

It is in the best interests of the Company and shareholders

to establish a cohesive and representative Board with differing
backgrounds, viewpoints and approaches. Accordingly, the
Committee considers carefully in relation to all appointments
to the Board and Committees, the benefits of greater diversity,
whilst also ensuring that it fulfils its obligations to shareholders
and the Company to recruit the best candidate for the role, on
merit. To this end, appointments are not prescriptive to any
critaria which do not relate directly to the ability to perform

the role.

The Committee also recognises the importance of diversity
across the Group as a whole and as such, diversity has been
a key consideration throughout the year, not only in relation
o new appointments to the Board, but also in relfation to the
Executive Committee and below.

Taking account of the changes in Board membership during
the year, the female representation on the Board at the date
of this report is 30% with two independent Non-Executive
Directors and one Executive Director being female. Diversity
is also monitored across the Group including in relation to
gender and age, details of which can be found on pages 30
and 33.

The Committee also recognises

the importance of diversity across the
Group as a whole and as such, diversity
has been a key consideration throughout
the year, not only in relation to new
appointments to the Board, but also

in relation to the Executive Committee
and below.

Board evaluation

The Beard and its Committees undertake an annual evaluation
of their performance and effectiveness. Given the number of
changes to the Board over the year, the Committee decided
to engage MWM Consulting, an external independent facilitator,
to conduct the Board evaluation. Input was sought from the
Chairman and Company Secretary to ensure that questions
were appropnately tailored to the Group. A report on the
findings from the evaluation of the Board and its Committees
was prepared by MWM Consulting and shared with the

Board and its Committess for review and collective

discussion respectively.

Please nole that FY19 is 2 14 maenth penod and any comparatives are lor a 12 month year ending 31 August unless othenwise stated

The findings from the FY19 evaluation demonstrates that

the Board is aligned, well managed and has developed further
to be a collegiate, open and constructive environment that
provides for effective governance of the business,

The evaluation highlighted the ocppertunity for the Board to
enhance its focus on the longer term strategic direction of
the Group and on developing talent, capability and culture
within the organisation.

The findings from the FY19 evaluation
demonstrates that the Board is aligned,
well managed and has developed further
to be a collegiate, open and constructive
environment that provides for effective
governance of the business.

FY18 Evaluation

One of the areas highlighted from last year's evaluation
results was a need to improve the quality and timely reporting
of information to the Board. The Group engaged an extarnal
consultant, Board Intelligence, to assist in improving the
governance around meeting support, including the quality

of reports to the Board. The results from the FY19 Board
evaluation show that the Board feel they are now getting
more timely and accurate reporting.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

The Committee considers the performance of each of the
Directors standing for re-election at this year's AGM to be
fully satisfactory and is of the opinion that they continue to
provide invaluable experience, challenge and contribution to
the leadership of the Group. Therefore, the Chairman strongly
supports their re-election and recommends that shareholders
vote in favour of their re-election at the AGM,

Paul Lester, CBE
Nomination Committee Chair
27 January 2020
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Risk and Audit Committee Report

. -

“The Committee has continued
to support the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities, with specific
focus on the Group’s framework
for risk management, internal
control and monitoring the
integrity of financial reporting”

Graphicremoved

Frank Nelson, Risk and Audit Committee Chair

L ]

J am pleased to present the FY19 Risk and Audit Committee (the ‘Committee’)
report. This report describes the Committee’s ongoing responsibilities and key
activities during the year.

With the intreduction of new accounting standards, the The Committee has continued to support the Beard
transition to new auditors, new tinancial year end and U in fulfilling its responaibilitics, with spacific focus on the
ongoing transformation of McCarthy & Stone from being a Group's frarmework for risk management, internal control
houssbuilder to the UK’s leading developer and manager and monitoring the integrity of financial reporting.

of retirement communities, 2019 has been a busy year for ' . .
the Committee. The Committes has considered in dstail the Following her appaintment during the year, | am pleased
implications of the strategic initiatives on funding and financial to welcome Gill Barr to the Risk and Audit Committee.
disclosures, with significant attention to detail when reviewing Gill commenced her duties on the Committee from
and agreeing on the accaunting for exceptional items, 23 May 2019.
investment properties and joint arrangements with third parties.
In this report, | describe how the Committee has carried
out its responsibilities during the year to ensure that
we continue to comply with relevant sections of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Listing Rules, legislation
and the impact of new IFRS accounting standards.
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Membership and attendance

The members of the Committee and their attendance during
FY19 are shown bslow:

Director Risk and Audit Committee attendance®
Frank Nelson 5/6
Geeta Nanda 4/5
Mike Parsons’ 3/5
Gill Barr* 2/2

All members of the Committee are Independert Non-Executive
Directors and the Board is satisfied that the collective skills

and experience of the Committee continue to provide sufficient
financial, commercial and sector related expertise to meet the
needs of the Group and requirements of the Code.

Career profiles of the Committee members can be found in
the Board of Directors section on pages 58 and 59.

In accordance with the Committee’s terms of reference,
meetings can also be attended by other Directors and
members of the internal and external audit teams, when
deemed appropriate. The Chairman, CEO and CFO

attended all five meetings during the year, The Director of

Risk and Internal Audit attended three meetings and the
Group Financial Controller and external audit partner attended
four meetings during the year, The members of the Committee
met with the external auditor without Executive Directors or
management present at its November 2018, April 2018 and
October 2019 meetings.

Key responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Committee are set out in the
Committee's written terms of reference. These can be found
under the Corporate Governance section on the corporate
website: www.meccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/
corporate-governance and in summary are to:

* Monitor the integrity of the financial statements and any
other formal announcements refating to the Group's financial
performance and position, reviewing and reporting to the
Board on significant financial reporting issues and judgements
which they contain, having regard to matters comimunicated
to it by the external auditor

Assess whether management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements and to provide advice 1o the
Board on whether the Annual Report and financial
statements are fair, balanced and understandable

= Keep under review and monitor the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control framework

hN

Gilf Barr joined the Comrmittee with effect from 23 May 2019

[

* Monitor and review the effectiveness of the risk and intemal
audit functicn

* Monitor and review the effectiveness of the services of the
external auditor, including negotiation of the audit fee

+ Ensure compliance with the policy on the supply of non-audit
services by the external auditor

* Review the adequacy and security of the Group’s policies
and procedures on anti-bribery, corruption, fraud and
anti-money laundering

The Committee undertook its annual review of its terms of
reference at its meeting in April 2019 and concluded that
na changes were required. Responsibility for monitoring
whistleblowing arangements have subsequentty been
reserved as a matter for the Board.

Activities during the year

There were five Committee meetings during the financial year,
organised to tie in with the annual internal audit cycle ang
external audit timetable,

Summary of key activities during FY19;

* Reviewed and approved the financial statements and
associated disclosures at the half year and full year

* Assessed whether the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable, taking into consideration
key accounting judgements made by management. The
resulting Directors' Responsibilities Statement can be found
on pages 116 and 117

» Agsessed the Company’s going concern status and
medium to longer term viability. The associated Viability
Statement can be found on page 51 in the Strategic Report

» Reviewed and approved the annual internal and external
audit plans

« Reviewed the results of the internal and external audits and
monitored the timely implementation of any recommended
actions

* Reviewed the impact assessment of new accounting
standards (IFRS 9, IFRS 15, IFRS 16}, treatment of
exceptional costs, accounting for investment properties
and the transaction with Waverstone LLP

* Monitored the Group's arrangements for whistleblowing
{until responsibility transferred to the Board), anti-bribery
and anti-money laundering

« Undertook the annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group's frarmmeworks for internal control and risk
management, which the Committee also monitors
throughout the year

* Approved the external audit fees
s Considered the effectiveness of the Committee

Mike Parsons resigned from the Board and the Risk and Audit Cornmittee with effect from 31 October 2019

Due to pre-existing commitments a number of meetings did nat have full attendance, i such instances

Directors provided comments and questions in advance of the meeting they were unable to attend

Please note that FY19 is a 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwise stated
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Evaluation of the Committee

An external evaluation led by MWM Consulting was undertaken
during the year o assess the Committee’s performance, taking
into account its collective skills and experience, the work of the
Cormmittee during the vear and the effectiveness of its actions in
maintaining the Group’s risk management framework. The Board
has reviewed the svaluation findings and concluded that the
Committee has operated effectively.

During FY20, the Committee will remain focused on the areas
of activity outlined within this report with particular focus on
monitoring the Group's principal risks.

Compliance with whistleblowing, fraud,
anti-bribery and corruption and anti-money
laundering policies

During the year, the Committee received regular updates from
the Company Secretary on compliance with the policies across
the business on whistleblowing, anti-bribery and corruption,
fraud and anti-monsy laundering. No incidents have been raised
during the year and to the date of this report.

Responsiility for monitoring compliance with whistieblowing
was transferred to the main Board during the year.

Significant financial reporting issues

The Committee is responsible for reviewing whether

suitable accounting policies have been adopted and whether
management have made appropriate estimates and judgements
in the preparation of the financial staternents. Set out balow

are the significant financial reporting issues, judgements and
areas of estimation uncertainty that the Committee has reviewed
during the year and how these were addressed. The associated
accounting policies are set out on pages 133 to 139.

1} Revenue Recognition Risk

The Committee monitors the effectiveness of the internal
controls exercised over the key processes employed by the
Group to ensure the accuracy of revenue recognition and
associated disclosures. Misstatements that oceur in relation
to revenue recognition could materially affect the revenue

in the income statement, particularly in relation to revenue
being recorded in the wrong pericd, due to cut off errors or
management bias.

As outlined under 6) Impact of new accounting standards,
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, became
effective from 1 September 2018. Management reviewed
the application of the new standard to its current business
practices. Revenue included in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Incame now reflects the fair value of
consideration received or receivable on the sale of part
exchange properties, in addition to the previously reported
fair value of the consideration received or receivable on the
legal completion of a newly built property sale.
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2) Inventory Valuation and Profit Recognition

Cansiderable judgement is required from management in
assessing whether carrying amounts for land, sites in the
course of construction, finished stock and part-exchange
propetties should be written down so that inventories can
be held at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
Furthermore, the determination of cost of sales is based on
the forecast margin for each site and judgement is required
in assessing this, including key assumptions regarding
expected revenues and costs at each site.

Misstatements that occur in relation to inventory balances
and profit recognition would affect the amounts held on the
staterment of financial position and the associated cost of
sales on the income statement. There is also a risk that the
carrying value of inventory could be subject to impairment
write downs should market conditions deteriorate significantly.

The Cormmittee received a proposal from management
confirming the split of overhead costs relating to planning,
commercial, construction, product and design, interior design
and health and safsty between those that could be attributed
to the cost of the developments to inventory and those

that relate to general business overheads to expenses. The
assumptions are reviewed annually with the function heads
before being proposed to the Committee.

The carrying value of inventory is determined by reference to
a number of assumptions which are subject to management
estimation and is assessed by management for impairment
by reference to current market inputs and assumptions. The
Committee continues to monitor the Group's kay processes
pertaining to its investrment in site development activities and
the valuation of work in progress and the effectivensss of the
internal controls exercised over those processes.

During the year, management have refined the methodology
for releasing land and build costs into cost of sales. These
costs were previously released on an equalised margin basis
using a calculation that reflected actual and forecast part-
exchange incentive costs, buik discounts, rental valuation and
part-exchange provisions across the life of the development.
This led to a distorted result due to the volume of rentat and
bulk sales. The revised method excludes these costs and
reduces the leve!l of judgement on margin forecast by
removing the incentive costs, bulk discounts, rental valuation
and part-exchange provisions from this calculation and basing
it on the forecast list prices and land and build costs.

3} Shared equity receivables

The Committee reviewed the accounting treatment of future
receivables under the shared equity schemes that have been
used over the years by the Group. The assumptions used in
estimating the value of the future receivables are reviewed half
yeatly and relate to the date of the anticipated future receipt,
house price inflation, the discount rate and the new build
premium and gains or losses incurred on historic redemptions.

Please note that FY19 s a 14 manth perod and any comparalives are for a 12 manth year ending 31 August uniess atherwise stated
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4) Related party transaction

a. Acquisition of Somerset Care’s interest in YLMS

On 29 July 2019, McCarthy & Stone Management Services
(MSMS) acquired from Somerset Care Limited the remaining
50% shareholding of Yourlife Management Services Limited
(YLMS).

McCarthy & Stone had Gontrol of the business and as a result
treated it as a subsidiary prior to the acquisition. The acquisition
has been treated as an equity transaction under IFRS 10.

b. Sale and leaseback transaction with Waverstone LLP

Prior to the year end, the Group completed a transaction with
Waverstone LLF, where McCarthy & Stone is a non-controffing
member. The transaction included a sale and lease back for
12 months of 113 sales offices and show flats.

The Risk and Audit Committee has considered in detail the
commercial rationale for the transaction, the external accounting
advice, as well as any agcounting and disclosure aspects. It was
considered to generate positive ROCE and cash flow benefits
for the Group and at the same time reduced the level of finished
stock held on the balance shest.

5) Accounting considerations in relation to the
business transformation

a. Carrying value of goodwill and intangibles

Carrying value of goodwill and intangibles has been
considered in the context ot delivering the Group's strategy.
Detailed impairment testing was carried out as part of the
FY19 year end close,

As a result of the review (including downside sensitivities),
it was concluded that there is sufficient headroom within
the calculation and there are no other factors that would
indicate impairment.

b. Muiti-Tenure - Rental Portfolio

The launch of the rental proposition during the financial period
as part of the Group's strategy has resulted in 101 investment
properties on the Group's balance sheet at the year end. The
value of thase properties was based on an external valuation
carried out by independent real estate consultants.

¢. Exceplional costs

The Group’s policy in relation to exceptional items follows the

provisions of IAS1. The Risk and Audit Committee has carsfully
reviewed the costs incurred in relation to the delivery of the new
strategy and the treatment of these costs as exceptional items.

Please note that FY19 15 @ 14 monh period and any comparalives are for & 12 moanth year ending 31 August unless othanwise sfated
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6) Impact of new accounting standards

During the year, the Committee reviewed the impact of the
new accounting standards on reporting our business as

usual activities and have concluded that the level of impact is
expected to be immaterial. With the introduction of these new
standards, additional disclosures are required in the Group's
financial statements.

a. IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ replaces |AS 39

‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremerit’

and expands the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7
‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’. The Group has applied
this standard in preparing FY19 financial statements.

The Group does not presently hold any complex financial
instruments. The principal impact area for the Group is

in applying the ‘expected credit loss' (ECL) model introduced
for bad debt provisions, However, as the Group's accounting
policy is not to recognise revenue until a legal completion
has taken place, no credit losses are expected. This will
continue to be reviewed as the Group's new multi-tenure
offerings develop.

Qccasionally, the Group will sell in bulk a portfolio of
apartments to an institutional investor. As part of these
arrangements, there can be deferred payment terms.
Where payments are deferred, the Group will apply the
ECL model at each reporting date and this approach has
been reviewed by the Committee,

0On 29 October 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
leaseback transaction with a related party, Waverstone LLP
for cash and deferred consideration. Under IFRS 9, the Group
has made a prudent expected credit loss provision against
the amount owed by Waterstone LLP at the year end. This
provision is subject to review at each reporting date,

Other financial instruments impacted by IFRS € are already
held at fair value through profit or loss and therefore we do
not expect changes in their valuation or presentation.

b. IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ replaces
IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and
impacts the Group from 1 September 2018 and for the FY19
year end.

The Group recognises revenue on the sale of units when
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have
transferred to the customer, which is deemed to occur at
legal completion, IFRS 15 has not changed this recognition
criteria at the point of transfer of contral.
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Rental income arising from operating leases on investment
properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease tenm and is included in revenue. There is nc change
to this accounting freatment under IFRS 15.

The application of IFRS 15 does result in a presentational
change to the treatment of the provision held against the value
of on balance shest part-exchange properties. Under 1AS 18
the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties
ware recognised on a net basis within cost of sales. Under
IFRS 15, the requirement is to present the part-exchange
property provision as a reduction to revenue.

Upon the subsequent resale of the property, there is a
requirement to present the proceeds from resale on a gross
basis, within “other operating income” and the associated
costs within “other operating expenses”.

Additional presentational change arises in respect of Stamp
Duty tand Tax (SOLT} costs paid on behalf of customers.
Under IFRS 15, this cost is deducted from revenue rather than
included within cost of sales.

The Group reviewed the transition options and opted to apply
IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method due to the only
adjustment for the Group being presentational, and thergfore
the comparative information has not been restated.

c. IFRS 16 ‘L.eases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will impact the Group for the period
commencing 1 November 2019 and will replace the current
standard IAS 17 ‘Leases’. The standard requires the recognition
of a 'ight-of-use’ asset and a cortesponding lease liability on the
Statement of Financial Positicn of the lessee. In the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the existing operating lease charges,
which are currently recognised within operating profit, will be
replaced by a depreciation charge against the right-of-use asset
and an interest cost in relation to the lease liability which will be
recognised within finance expenses.

The Group have opted to apply IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective transition approach, whereby the Group will
measure right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities on the date of transition. As a result, we do not
expect a significant impact upon the adoption of IFRS 16,

Risk management and internal audit

The Board of Directors recogrises its overall responsibility

for the Group's frameworks for risk management and internal
control and for monitoring their effectiveness, There is an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing risk.
The controls and procedures contained within the process are
designed to manage, to the extent possible, the risk of failure
of the Group to mest its business objectives and, as such,
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstaternent or loss. Details of how the Group manages its
principal risks are set out on pages 50 to 55.
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The Board, on the recommendation of the Committee, have
remained satisfied that the risk management process and
internai control environment continued to be effective in
identifying, assessing and ranking the various risks facing the
Group, and in monitoring and reporting progress in mitigating
their potential impact on the business.

Arisk framework has been in place for the period under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report.
The Board has reviewed and approved the report on the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties set out on pages 50 to 55
of this Annual Report.

The risk and internal audit function within the Group is
responsible for:

+ The design and implementation of a robust framework for
risk management and internal control acrass the Group to
identify, monitor and manage principal risks and to establish
a risk appetite for each principal risk beyond which corrective
action is required

* The development of an assurance programme to ascertain
whether the controls around our principal nisks are designed
and operating effectively

The principal risks are tormally agreed with the Executive
Committee twice a year and are subsequently approved by
the Committes. The principal risks form the basis of the annual
internal audiit plan.

The Director of Risk and Internal Audit attended three out of
the five Committee meetings during the year and reported on
any changes to the risks faced by the business, any areas for
improvernent and he alsc regularty met separately with the Risk
and Audit Committee Chair. Other members of the Committee
and the Board also met with the Director of Risk and Internal
Audit periodically during the year and at each meéeting he
provided an update covering the internal audit activity, the
status of, and time to close management actions which
supported the Commifttee in forming a view on internal audit
effectiveness. For the meetings that the Director of Risk and
Internal audit could not attend, a member of the internal audit
team attended in his place.

The Committes, supported by the risk and internal audit team,
has continued o make progress during the year in assisting
the Board in improving risk management. Key activities
undertaken were as follows:

+ Reviewing and agreeing on new and updated principal
risks faced by the Group and the weighting of thermn

+ Reviewing and monitoring key risk indicators and the
timeliness of closure of audit actions

* Reviewing new policies and procedures which will
enhance the financial control environment of the Group

Based on the activities outlined above, the Committee is
satisfied that the quality, resources, experience and éxpertise
of the risk and internal audit function are appropriate for

the Group.
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External auditor

The Committes is responsible for recommending to the Board
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor. A resolution proposing the appointment of Ernst & Young
LLPF as the Group's external auditor for FY19 was approved by
shareholders at the AGM held on 23 January 2019. A resolution
for their re-appointment will be put forward at the AGM to be
held on the 25 March 2020.

Auditor independence and performance

The performance and effectiveness of the auditor and the work
it performs are reviewed annually following completion of the
external audit. Emst & Young LLP are required to disclose any
significant facts and matters that may reasonabty impact on their
independence or on the objectivity of the lead partner and the
audit team, No disclosures have besn made during the period
and up to the date of this report.

The Committee assessed the performance of the external
auditor and the effectiveness of the external audit for FY19.

In coming to its conclusion, the Committee reviewed amongst
other matters:

* [eedback on the effectiveness and performance of the
external audit from the CFO and the Group Financial
Controller, who were closely involved in both the half year
and full year reporting process

* Erngt & Young LLP’s fulfiiment of the agreed audit plan
for FY19

* Reports highlighting the material issues and accounting
judgements that arose during the conduct of the audit

* Ernst & Young LLP's objectivity and independence during
the process

The Committee concluded that the audit process as a whole
had been conducted robustly and that the team selected to
undertake the audit had done so thoroughly, professionally
and independently. Emst & Young LLP’s performance as
auditor to the Group during FY19 was therefore considered
to be satisfactory.

The Group has complied throughout the reporting period

with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilities)

Crder 2014.

Pfease note that FY18 is a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for & 12 month year ending 31 August wrless ctherwise stated

Policy on non-audit services

The Committee is aware of the need to ensure that the
external auditors remain independent of the Group and the
Committee carries out an annual review on the independence
of the external auditor. The external auditor is appointed

to provide audit and audit retated services, including the
annual audit of the Group, the Company and the non-dormant
subsidiary financial statements as well as the half year review.
It is the Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
work out to tender. The Board only appoint the extemal auditor
to provide non-audit services if they are satisfied that the
auditor's objectivity and independence have not been
compromised.

A policy on non-audit services has been approved by the
Committee and incorporates the requirements of the EU
Audit Directive (2014/56/EL)) and Audit Regulation (537/2014)
which came into force in the UK on 17 June 2016.

The external auditor may be selected to provide any other
services that do not fall within audit and audit related services
or that are not prohibited, subject to a competitive selection
process. In addition, the Commiittee considers and approves
all the fees that the Group pays for non-audit services from the
external auditor.

Audt fees were payable to Emst & Young LLP within FY19
in relation to the interim review, year end audit and statutory
audits of subsidiaries are detailed in note 7 to the financial
statements. There were no non-audit fees paid to Ernst &
Young LLP during the year.

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chair
27 January 2020
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Dear Shareholder,

“As the new Committee Chair,

| will ensure that we will continue
with the robust approach taken
by the Committee in the past.

We have considered carefully

the new policy following extensive
consultations with major
shareholders”

Gill Barr, Remuneration Comrmitieg Chair

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the 2019 Directors’
Remuneration Report, my first since becoming Committee Chair.

At the 2020 AGM, we must seek shareholder approval for

a new remuneration policy, the current policy having run its
three year course. Alongside the binding shareholder vote on
the new policy there will be the usual advisory vote 1o approve
the Annual Report on rernuneration. Since my appointment

| have had infroductory meetings with our largest investors
and the policy review has been the subject of a full investor
consultation. These conversations have provided very helpful
context and input for the Committee in reviewing our policy and
we remain commitied to recelving strong shareholder support
for both our policy and annual remuneration resolution relating
to our Directors’ pay approach.

T8 et 3 Sieee Dl

As the new Committee Chair, | have reviewed how we

havo oporated our policy in pravious years and have noted the
robust approach taken by the Committee, as highlighted in last
year’s report. That approach will continue and the Committee
will ensure that Executive Directors have effective incentive
plans that align to the business strategy and cnly reward for
the delivery of resulis against KPls that are in the long term
interests of shareholders.

Plaase note that FY19.s a 14 month penod and any comgaratives are for @ 12 roenth year ending 31 August uniess othenwise Stated
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Review of performance for FY19
and incentive plan payments

As explained elsewhere in this Annual Report our financial

year end was extended from 31 August 2019 to 31 October
2019, The Committes cansidered carefully the impact on the
performance conditions for the annual bonus plan and adjusted
the target ranges to neutralise the impact of this two months
extension to the year. As it happened, the performance over
the 14 month period fell short of the minimum thresholds for
the performance criteria and considering this performance there
have been no annual bonus payments to the CEQ or CFO

{who had their entire bonus based on financial performance).

The COOs joined the business four months into the financial
year (and after the 2018 Remuneration Report was signed off}.
in light of the ongoing restructuring of the business and the
desire to accelerate the execution of the strategy in relation

to services and customers (led by Mike Lloyd) and build (led
by Nigel Turner), the annual bonus plan was based 50% on
the same financial performance criteria that were set for the
Chiet Executive and Chief Financial Officer and 50% based on
individual bonus objectives set for the remainder of the year.
This provided a sharper first-year incentive to focus them on
the crtical initial strategic objectives which they were recruited
to deliver.

As noted above, their financial performance element failed to
achieve the minimum performance threshcolds, resulting in a
zero bonus under this elerment, However, performance against
the strategic objectives element was very strong, reflecting

the immediate impact made by the two COOs in delivering
the new organisational design and Group strategy. This strong
individual performance resulted in a near maximum payment
of this elernent of the bonus. The Committee is comfortable
with the bonus payments recognising that the achievement

of these strategic objectives will lay the foundation for future
years' performance. One third of the bonus has been paid in
deferred shares in line with the policy. Furthermaore, recognising
the shortfall in financial performance and to ensure that the
COOs make a strong start on achieving their shareholding
raquirerments, both have invested the entire reraining two
thirds cash element in shares.

This was a one year arrangement as the COOs joined part way
through the year. They will participate in the normal executive
bonus plan from FY20.

For the 2016 Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the Company's
three year performance in relation to EPS, ROCE and TSR
performance was below the minimum threshold for vesting
and so the awards lapsed.

The Committee is comfortable that there has been an
appropriate link between reward and performance and that
discretion has not needed to be used.

Proposed changes to our
remuneration policy for FY20-22

The current remuneration policy was put in place at the time
of the Company’s IPO and was widely and flexibly drafted.
Since that time the UK Cerporate Governance Code has been
updated and market practice and investor views have evolved.
Our new policy has been updated to take account of these
developments as well as to clarify and refine some of the more
widely drawn aspects of our policy that are not required for the
next policy period.

The Board has been clear that the delivery of our strategy is
predicated on having in place an exceptional leadership team
with the right skills and capability. The appointment to the Board
of our two new Chief Operating Officers on 1 January 2019 was
critical to this and they have already increased focus on the key
drivers of value. The Committee has now carried out a full and
detailed review of the current remuneration policy to ensure
that the new policy and its operation for FY20 drives, supports
and rewards this critical leadership team to achieve our
strategy both operationally and over the longer term providing
sustainable returns for our investors.

The Committee has concluded that fundamental changes to
the structure of the remuneration policy are not required and,
accordingly, there is no change to the quantum or structure of
incentives. However, we are taking the opportunity to tidy up
some aspects of the policy to ensure it is in line with current
investor expectations, the UK Corporate Governance Code
and best practice, as well as to clarify some of the policy detail.

Set out below is a summary of the proposed policy changes:

Pension

* Pension is currently capped at a maximum of 20% of salary.
Executive Directors voluntarily reduced their employer
pension contribution from 20% to 15% of salary in 2018
(without compensation). As part of the policy review the
Committee has looked at taking a longer term view on
its executive pension strategy and has decided to
introduce a plan, with the agreement of management,
to reduce the pension contribution by 2.5% of base salary
each year (again without compensation) until it is at the
same rate as that of the majority of the workforce. This is
currently 5% but is subject to a future review. Accordingly,
the first 2.5% reduction took effect from 1 November 2019
and will then reduce by the same amount in subsequent
years, until it achieves parity with the workforce rate

* New appointments will have a pension contribution which
is the same as the pension contribution receivable by the
majority of the workdforce {currently 5% of base salary)

Please note that FY18 is a 14 month penod 6nd any comparatrves are for & 12 month vear ending 31 August uniess otherwise staled Molartay & Store pic Annual Report 79
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Discretion and clawback

* Our ciawback and malus provisions have been broadened
to cover corporate failure and failure of risk management in
addition to the current circumnstances of misstatement, errar,
fraud, gross misconduct and reputational damage. Our policy
wording has been updated to reflect these new additions.
Plan rules, bonus and LTIP award documentation have also
been reviewed to ensure the provisions are watertight and
enforceable

* We have removed the ability for the Committee to waive
parformance conditions on bonus and LTIP awards

Shareholding requirements

* The current shareholding requirerment for Executive Directors
of 200% of safary will be maintained. The new policy will
clarify that the Executive Directors are expected to achieve
the requirement through the retention of at least 50% of
deferred bonus shares and LTIP shares (following the expiry
of the holding period). The five year pericd to achieve the
requirement will be removed

* A post-cessation of employment sharehclding requirement
will be introduced. This will require the Executive Directors to
hold the tower of the shares they hold on cessation and 200%
of salary for two years post cessation. Shares purchased by
the Executive Directors with their own funds will be excluded
from the requirement. The Committee will retain discretion to
adjust the requirement in exceptional circumstances

How we will apply the new policy in FY20

Base salaries will increase by 2.5%, inline with the average
workforce increase of 2.5%. The employer pension contribution
rate will be 12.5% of salary, as noted above.

Maxirum bonus opportunity will remain at 150% of salary for
all Executive Directors. Following a review of current bonus
measures, these will be simpiified for FY20 and focus on our
key measures of underlying operating profit and cash flow. In
addition, we are introducing a strategic objective element to
support the strategic imperatives as we refocus the business.
The measures and weighting will be 40% underlying operating
profit, 40% cash flow and 20% on strategic objectives. The
target ranges for undertying operating profit and cash flow are
likely to be lower than the ranges used for the FY19 annual
bonus. However, they are stretching in light of the business
plan and market forecasts and the sliding scale ranges will be
changed to reduce the level of threshold payment from 256%
to zero.

ROCE will be removed from the annual bonus but will continue
to be measured in the lang term incentive, removing an element
of duplication where management could be rewarded twice

for the same outcome. In light of the enhanced Committee
discretion to adjust the formulaic outturn of the bonus, the

specific operating profit and customer satisfaction underping
that were in place for FY19 will not apply, although these
matters will be considered in detail as part of the Committee's
annual review of the bonus outturn,

LTIP award levels will retumn to the normal award level of 150%
of salary for all Executive Directors. Award levels were reduced
for FY19 refiecting the Commitiee’s concern over share price
performance during the year. The Committee is comfortable
that award levels for FY20 should return to normai levels,
subject to any significant share price reduction before awards
are granted.

Vesting will continue to be determined 50% by EPS growth
and 50% by ROCE, with performance conditions set out later
in this report.

NED and Chairman fees

Fees for the Chairman will remain unchanged for FY20.
NED fess have beer increased in relation to the Chair roles
for the Remuneration and Risk and Audit Gommittees and
a new fee has been introducad for the NED role responsible
for engagement with the workforce as well as the NED role
responsible for chairing the Corporate, Social Responsibility
Comrittee.

Appointment of new Chief Operating Officers

The Board has been clear that the delivery of our strategy is
predicated on having in place an exceptional leadership team
with the right skills and capability. The appcintment to the Board
af onr two new Chief Operating Officers was critical to this.

Mike Lloyd and Nigel Turner joined the Board on 1 January
2019 as Chief Operating Officers, responsible for Services
and Customers and Build respectively. These roles are critical
to the delivery of our strategy and comprise both strategic
and operational elements, Mike's role is entirely new and
shows our commitment to place the customer at the heart

of everything we do. Nigel's role unites for the first time the
land, design, planning, commercial and construction teams
under ohe leader. The Chief Operating Officers’ remuneration
packages reflect the significance of their roles to the delivery of
our strategy as well as their calibre, skills and experience in a
very competitive recruitment market. Our new Chief Operating
Officers joined us on a base salary of £375,000, pension of
16% of salary (since reduced as part of a plan to align to the
workforce rate) and annual bonus and LTIP awards within

the normal policy limits (prorated for the proportion of the
financial year worked). The Committee is always mindful of

its responsibilities to shareholders and to be judicious in setting
salaries and overall remuneration levels. The salary levels were
equivalent to those they received at their previous employer
and other firm opportunities that they could have pursued
instead of joining us and were considered carefully against
external benchmarks. We will continue to ensure that
stretching targets are set and that bonus payments and

LTIP vesting is refiective of shareholder experience.

Plegse note that FYT97s a 14 manth penod and any comparatves e for 4 12 month year encing 31 August Unjess cthenmse Stgted
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Disclosure in this report: UK Corporate
Governance Code and new reporting
requirements

We have taken the opportunity to streamline the Directors’
Remuneration report this year, whilst at the same time
complying early with the new disclosure and reporting
requirements under the new Code and reporting regulations.
| hope that you find this report concise and clear.

Membership of the Committee

During the year Mike Parsons stepped down as a NED and
member of this Committee. | should like to thank Mike for his
contribution to the Board and for Chairing this Committee since
the IPO.

| hope that you are supportive of our approach on Directors’
remuneration and | welcome any feedback from the Company's
shareholders.

Gill Barr
Remuneration Committee Chair
27 January 2020

Flease note that FY1915 a 14 month peried and any comparatives are for a 12 month vear ending 31 August unless ctherwise stated
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Remuneration Policy

Our policy and its link to our Group strategy

The Group’s strategy is laid out between pages 10 and 13
within the Annual Report 2018 and on our corporate website:
www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Introduction

In accordance with the remuneration reporting regulations,

the policy as set cut below will, subject to shareholder approval
at the 2020 AGM on 25 March 2020, become effective at the
conclusion of that meeting and is intended to apply for the

period of up to three years from the date of approval. The changes to the current policy are summarised in the

Chair's Statement on Page 79.
Element of remuneration: Base salary

How it supports
the Group’s short
and long term
strategic objectives

Provides a base level of
remunearation to support
recruitment and retention
of Executive Directors with
the necessary experience
and expertise to deliver the
Group's strategy.

Element of remuneration:

How it supports
the Group's short
and long term
strategic objectives

Provides a market
competitive benefits
package to enable the
Company to recruit and
retain Executive Directors
and ensure business
continuity,

BAcT ity & Store ol

Operation

When determining an
appropriate level of salary,
the Committee considers:

* Remuneration practices
within the Group

* The general performance
of the Group

» Salarigs within the ranges
paid by similar companies

* Any change in scope, role
and responsibilities

* The economic environment

Benefits

Operation

The Executive Directors
typically receive private
medical insurance, fife
insurance and a car or car
allowance. The Committee
retains the flexibility to
provide other benefits.

Additional benefits may be
offered such as relocation
allowances on recruitment,

Maximum opportunity

In general, salary increases
for Executive Directors will
be in line with the increase
for employees unless

the scope of the role has
changed or to apply salary
progression for a recently
recruited Executive Director.

Maximum opportunity

The maximum will be
set at the cost of providing
the benefits described.

Performance metrics

None

Performance metrics

None

Plaase note that FY'19 is @ 14 month penod and any comparatives are for 8 12 menth year ending 31 AUQust Unfess atherwise Stated
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Element of remuneration: Pensions

How it supports
the Group’s short
and long term
strategic objectives

Operation

The Executive Directors
are entitfed to receive an
empioyer contribution

Maximum opportunity

The maximum centribution
into the Group Personal
Pension scheme or a salary

Performance metrics

None

Provides a market
competitive pension
provision to enable the
Company to recruit and
retain Executive Directors.

into the Group Personal
Pension scheme or a
salary supplement in lieu
of pension.

supplement in lieu of pension
will be 12.5% of base salary,
reducing each year over the

policy period by 2.5%.

New Executive Director

recruits will receive a pension

contribution in line with the
rate applying to the majority
of the workforce.

Element of remuneration: Annual and Deferred Bonus (ABP)

How it supports
the Group’s short
and long term
strategic objectives

The ABP provides

an incentive linked to
achisvernent in delivering
goals that are closely aligned
with the Group's strategy
and the creation of value

for shareholders.

Part payment in

deferred shares enables
Executive Directors to build
a sharsholding and provides
alignment of interest with
shareholders.

Operation

The Committee will determine
the bonus to be awarded
following the end of the
relevant financial year.

One third of any bonus will
be deferred in shares which
must be held for three years.

Dividend equivalents will be
payable on shares or awards
to the extent that they vest.

The ABP contains clawback
and malus provisions which
will be rigorously enforced.

Maximum opportunity

The maximum bonus
(including any part of the
bonus deferred into shares)
deliverable under the ABP
will not exceed 150% of a
participant’s annual base
salary.

Percentage of maximum
bonus earned for levels
of performance:

¢ Threshold: up to 25%
of maximum bonus

* Ontarget: 50% of
maximum bonus

Please note that FY1915 & 14 month penod and any comparatives are for & 12 month yesr ending 31 August uniess otherwise stated

Performance metrics

Subject to satisfying
financial, strategic,
operational or personal
performance conditions,
nomally measured over a
pericd of one financial year.

A minimum of 50% of the
bonus shall be based on
financial performance
measures.

The Committee retains

the discretion to make
downward or upward
adjustments to the amount
of bonus earned resulting
from the application of the
performance measures, if the
Committee believe that the
bonus outcomes are not a
fair and accurate reflection
of business performance
and other relevant factars.
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Element of remuneration: LTIP

How it supports
the Group’s short
and long term
strategic objectives

The LTIP incentivises,
retains and rewards
Executive Directors in
relation 10 long term
performance and
achievement of the
Group's strategy.

Payment in shares enables
Executive Directors to
build a shareholding and
provides afignment of
interest with shareholders.

Operation

Awards are granted annually
in the form of a conditional
share award or a nil-cost

option.

Awards will vest at the
end of a three year period
subject to:

¢ The Executive Director’s
continued employment
al the date of vesting

s Satisfaction of the
performance conditions

Dividend equivalents will be
payabie on awards to the
extent that they vest.

Vested awards will be
subject to a holding period
of two years.

The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions which
will ba rigorously enforced.

Maximum opportunity

Normal annual maximum
value of 150% of annual base
salary, based on the market
value at the date of grant set
in accordance with the rules
of the LTIP.

In exceptional circumstances
the Committee may grant an
award with a maximum of
200% of annual base salary.

25% of the award will vest
for threshold performance.

Element of remuneration: All employee share plans - SIP and Sharesave

How it supports
the Group’s short
and long term
strategic objectives

The SIP and Sharesave

are all employee share
ownership plans which have
been designed to encourage
all employees to become
shareholders in the Company
and thereby align their
interests with shareholders.

B84 FAL G & Stone plo

Operation

Executive Directors are
gligible to participate in
both the SIP and Sharesave.

Prease note that FY19.is a 14 month period and any comparatives are for 4 12 month year énding 31 August unless otherwise stated

Maximum opportunity

The maximum level
of participation set by
legislation from time
to time.

Performance metrics

Performance conditions will
be linked to the lohg term
business KPIs or stock
market based measures.

The Committee retains the
discretion to make downward
or upward adjustments to
the amount vesting under
the LTIR, resulting from the
application of the
performance measures if
the Committee believe that
the outcomes are not a fair
and accurate reflection of
business performance and
other relevant factors.

Performance rnetrics

In accordance with

the legislation, the

Company may impose
objective performance
conditions and/or length of
setvice/hours worked/level
of remuneration to determine
the level of awards made
under the SIF.
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Element of remuneration: Minimum shareholding requirement

Executive Directors will be required to build and maintain a shareholding equivalent to 200% of base salary. Until this threshold is
achieved Executive Directors are required to retain at least 50% of deferred bonus shares and LTIP shares {following the expiry of

the holding period}.

A post-cessation of employment shareholding requirerment will require the Executive Directors to hold the lower of the shares
they hold on cessation and 200% of salary for two years post cessation. Shares purchased by the Executive Directors with their
own funds will be excluded from the requirement. The Committee will retain discretion to adjust the requirement in exceptional
circumstances.

Mlustrations of the application of the Policy

The charts below illustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salaries at the start of
FY20, under four different performance scenarios: (i) minimum; i) on-target; (i) maximum; and (iv) maximum with 50% share price
growth, The table below these charts sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these
scenarios. The elements of remuneration have been categorised into three components: {i) fixed; (i} annual bonus (including deferred
bonus); and {iiiy LTIP. For the purposes of comparison, we have included the actual single figure for rermuneration for the Executive
Directors for FY19,

CEQ - John Tonkiss

£3,000
£2,500
. Fixed pay
§ £2,000 . Annual Bonus
“ £1,500 £1,313k . . LTIP
£1,000 B 1P value with 50%
share price growth
£500
£- Actual {Fy1g)! Fixad? On target® Maximum? Maximurr?
(Excliding share {Includng 50%
price growth) share price i

1 FY19 reiates to the 14 month period of T September 2018 to 31 October 2018
2 Based on salanes at the start of FY20 for a 12 month period

Fiease note that F¥191s a 14 month paripd and any comparatives are for @ 12 month year ending 31 August unfess othervwise stated “AcCarty & Stere plc Annual Report 85
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CFO - Rowan Baker

£2,000

£1.500 . Fixed pay

. Annual Bonus
| A

B 7P value with 50%

£000

£1,000

£500 share price growth
[
Actual (FY19)* Flge? On target? Maximum? Maximurm*
cuding share gncliding 50%
'apnoed;'gnmﬂ\} shgm price growth)

1 FY19 relates to the 14 month period of 1 Septernber 2018 to 31 October 2019

2 Based on salaries at the start of FY20 for a 12 month period

COO - Nigel Turner

. Fixed pay

. Annual Bonus
B

B 7P value with 50%
share price growth

£'000

Actual (Fy19)' Fixec? On target? Maumum? Maximurm?
{exchuding share fnchuding 50%
prce growth) share price grawth)

1 FY19 relates to the 10 month period of T January 2019, the date Nigel Turner was appointed fo the Board, to 37 October 2018
2 Based on safaries at the start of FY20 for a 12 month period
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COO - Mike Lloyd

£2,000
£1,500 - Fixed pay
§ . Annual Bonus
@ py000 H e
B 1P value with 50%
£500 share price growth
[
Actual (FY1Q) Fixed? Qn target® Madrmnum? Maximumé
{excding shave inchuding 50%
orice growth) share price growth)

1 FY19 relates to the 10 month period of 1 January 2019, the date Mike Lioyd was appointed to the Board, to 31 October 2019
2 Based on salanies at the start of FY20 for a 12 month period

Maximum
Element Description Minimum Target Maximum {with share price growth)
Fixed Salary, benefits' and pension Included Included Included Included
Annual Annual bonus No annual 50% of 100% of 100% of
bonus {including deferred shares)? borus payable maximum bonus maximum bonus maximum bonus
Maximum cpportunity of
150% of salary
LTIP Award under the LTIP? No LTIP payable 50% of the LTIP 100% of the 100% of the maximum
) award vests LTIP award vests award, assuming
Maximum annual award 50% share price
of 150% of safary appreciation

1 Based on FY19 benefits payrnents as per the single figure table prorated for 12 months. The actual benefits for FY20 will only be knowr at the
end of the financial year

2 Dividend equivalents have not been added to the deferred shares and LTIP awards

Plaase note that FY19 5 & 14 month periot and any comparatives are for a 12 month year encing 37 August uniess othenwise slated YMeCarthy & Store ple Annual Report 87
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How performance measures are chosen

Performance measures for incentive plans are chosen carefully to align to the business strategy and provide a rounded assessment
of performance.

Measures and weightings may flex in future years to ensure they remain optimised to strategic priorities.

Malus and clawback

In line with best practice, the ABP and the LTIP include malus and clawback provisions in order to ensure that payments are not
made to Executive Directors in circumstances which are subsequently deemed to not have warranted a payment {or have warranted
a reduced payment).

Malus is the adjustment of unpaid {cash honus and deferred shares) under the ABP and outstanding LTIP awards as a result of the
occurrence of one or more circumstances listed below. The adjustment may result in the value being reduced to zero.

Clawback is the recovery of payments or vested awards under the ABP and vested LTIP awards as a result of the occurrence of one
or more circumstances listed below. Clawback may apply to all or part of a participant’s award and may be effected, among other
means, by requiring the transfer of shares, payment of cash or reduction of awards or bonuses.

The circumstances in which malus and clawback could apply are as follows:

* The discovery of a material misstaternent resutting in an adjustment in the audited consclidated financial statements of the Company

* The discovery that the assessment of any performance target or condition in respect of an ABP or LTIP award was based on error,
or inaccurate or misleading information

* Actions leading to corporate failure or serious reputational darnage

* The action or conduct of a holder of an ABP or LTIP award which, in the reasonable opinion of the Committee, amounted to fraud
or gross misconduct

* Events or behaviour of a holder of an ABP «r LTIP award leading to the censure of the Company by a regulatory authority or having
a significant detrimental impact on the reputation of the Group, provided that the Committee is satisfied that the relevant holder of
an ABP or LTIP award was responsible for the censure or reputational damage and that the censure or reputational damage is
attributable to him or her

Committee Discretion
The Committee has discretion in several areas of policy as set out in the policy table.

The Committee may aiso exercise operational and administrative discretions under relevant plan rules approved by shareholders as
set out in those rules and in relation to the SIP and Sharesave, as parmitted by the relevant legislation. In addition, the Committee
has the discretion to amend the policy with regard to minor or administrative matters whete it would be, in the opinion of the
Committee, disproportionate to seek or await shareholder approval.

Any use of discretion will, where relevant, be explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the following year.
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Recruitment policy

The Company’s principle is that the remuneration of any new recruit will be assessed in line with the same principles for the Executive
Directors, as set out in the policy. However, the flexibility provided by the recruitment policy will allow the Company to attract the

best talent by providing an appropriate package. The Committee is mindful that it wishes to avoid paying more than it considers
necessary to secure a preferred candidate of the appropriate calibre and with the appropriate experience needed for the role.

The Company's detailed policy when setting remuneration for the appointment of new Executive Directors is summarised in the
table below:

Remuneration element Cverview of recruitment policy

Principles Where an existing employee is promoted to the Board, the pclicy would apply from the date of promotion
but there would be no retrospective application of the Policy in relation to subsisting incentive awards or
remuneration arrangements. Accordingly, prevailing elements of the remuneration package for an existing
employee would be honoured and form part of the ongoing remuneration of the person concerned. These
would be disclosed to shareholders in the Annual Report on Remuneration for tha relevant financial year.

Salary, benefits In line with the Company’s policy for existing Executive Directors.
and pension
Annual bonus In line with the Company’s policy for existing Executive Directors with part year performance measurement
if necessary.
LTIP In line with the Company’s policy for existing Executive Directors with part period performance measurement

if necessary.

‘Buyout’ of incentives Where the Committes determines that the individual circumstances of recruitment justifies the provision of
forfeited on cessation a buyout, the equivalent value of any incentives that will be forfeited on cessation of an Executive Director’s
of employment previous employment will be calculated taking into account the following:
* The proportion of the performance period completed on the date of the Executive Director's cessation
of employment

* The performance conditions attached to the vesting of these incentives and the likelihood of them
being satisfied

+ Any other terms and conditions having a material effect on their value
The Committee may then grant up to the same value of any incentives forfeited, where possible, under

the Company’s incentive plans. To the extent that it is not possible or practical to provide the buycut
within the Company’s existing incentive plans, a bespoke arrangement will be used.

The Company’s policy when setting fees for the appointment of new Non-Executive Directors is to apply the policy which applies to
the current Non-Executive Directors.

Please note that FY19 s a 14 month period and any comparatives are for 3 12 month year ending 31 August uniess otherwise stated WeCarty & Store plo Annual Report 89
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Cessation of employment

If a contract is to be terminated, the Committee will determine such mitigation as it considers fair and reasonable in each case,
There is no agreement between the Company and its Executive Directors or employees, providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid,

The Committee reserves the right to make additional payrments where such payments are made in good faith in discharge of an
existing legal obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such an cbligation); or by way of séttlerment or compromise of any
claim arising in connection with the termination of an Executive Director’s office or employment.

Aside from contractual terms the incentive plans contain the following leaver provisions. A good leaver reason is defined as
cessation in broadly compassionate circumstances such as ill health, injury, redundancy or in other similar circunmstances at the
discretion of the Committee. Otherwise departing Executive Directors will be treated as a bad leaver.

Remuneration element Qverview of cessation of employment policy

Principle If a contract is to be terminated, the Committee will determine such mitigation as it considers fair and
reasonable in each case.

Salary, benefits These will be paid during the notice period. A provision is retained to make a payment in lieu of notice, which

and pension would be phased over the remaining notice period.

The Company is entitled to dismiss an Executive Director without natice in certain specified circumstances,
such as gross misconduct or following any serious or persistent breach of any of the terms of the relevant
service contract.

ABP cash awards Good leavers: Performance conditions will be measured at the bonus measurement date. Where the
individual is efigible for a bonus, it will normally be prorated for the pericd worked during the financial year.
Other leavers: No bonus payable for year of cessation.

ABP share awards Good leavers: All subsisting deferred shares will normally vest at the end of the criginal deferral period.
Other leavers: Lapse of any unvested deferred shares.
LTIP Good leavers: Performance conditions assessed in regpect of each suhsisting LTIP award and normally

prorated for time. Awards would normally vest at the normal time and remain subject to a holding pericd.
Other leavers: Lapse of any unvested LTIP awards.
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Non-Executive Director remuneration

Element of
remuneration

How it supports the Group's short
and long term strategic objectives

Operation

Opportunity Performance Metrics

Provides a level of fees to
support recruitment and
retention of Non-Executive
Directors and a Chairman

with the necessary experience
to advise and assist with
establishing and monitoring
the Group’s strategic
objectives,

Non-Executive
Director and
Chairman fees

Non-Executive Directors are paid
an annual fee and additional fees

as chair of Committees or assuming
the rcle of Senior Independent
Director or Company designated
Non-Executive Director for
engagement with the workforce.

The Chairman does not receive any
additional fees for membership
of Committees.

Fees are reviewed annually based
on responsibility, time commitment
and equivalent roles in similar
businesses.

Non-Executive Directors and the
Chairman do not participate in
any variable remuneration.

If there is a temporary yet material
increase in time commiiment the
Company may pay additional fees.

There is an aggregate limit None
of £1m on fees, under the

Articles of Association.

In general the level of fee
increase for the Non-Executive
Directors and the Chairman
will be set taking account of
any change in responsibility
and will take into account
general rise in salaries across
the UK workforce.

The Company will pay
reasonable expenses incurred
by the Non-Executive Directors
and Chairman and may settle
any tax incurred in relation

to these.

Flease note that FY19 is & 14 monith period and any COMparatves are for a 12 month year ending 37 August unless otherwise staled
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contied
Remuneration Policy

Executive Director contracts and letters of appointment for Chairman and
Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors

The Committee’s policy for setting notice periods is that a notice period of up to 12 months will apply for Executive Directors.
Details of contractual provisions are set out below:

Notice Perlods Compensation provisions
Name Date of Service Contract Nature of contract From Company From Director for early termination
John Tonkiss 15 October 2018 Rolling 12 months 12 months Determined by the
Rowan Baker 15 October 2018 Rolling 12 months 12 months Y

Committee within

Mike Lloyd 5 December 2018 Roliing 12 months 12 months contracted terms

Nigel Turner 5 December 2018 Rolling 12 months 12 moenths

Non-Executive Directors

Name Date of letter of appolntment Date current term commenced Notice period

Paul Lester, CBE 8 November 2017 3 January 2018 Three months
Frank Nelson 1 November 2013 11 November 2018 Three months
Gill Barr 10 Aprit 2019 10 Agril 2019 Three months
Geeta Nanda, OBE 4 March 2015 11 November 2018 Three months
Arun Nagwaney 16 May 2018 16 May 2018 See note 1

John Carter 18 September 2017 1 October 2017 Three months

1 The Relationshic Agreement between the Company and Anchorage governs the termination procedure for Arun Nagwaney's agpointmernt

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) de not have service contracts. The Non-Executive Directors
are appointed by letters of appointment. Each independent Non-Executive Director's term of office runs for a three year period
terminable by three months written natice from either party.

The terms of the Non-Executive Directors' positions are subject to their re-election by the Company’s shareholders at the AGM and
to re-election at any subsequent AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election.

The service contracts and the letters of appointment of the Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registerad office
during normal office hours,
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Considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and how we hear our
employees’ voice on remuneration issues

Under expanded terms of reference the Committee has oversight for workforce remuneration and policies and the alignment of
incentives and rewards with the Company's cufture. The remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all
employees can share in its success through performance related remuneration and share ownership.

Bonus schemes are operated widely and for all employees, in addition the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the SIP. Under
these plans, all employees have the opportunity to purchase shares in the Company on beneficial terms. As part of the policy review
the Committee has considered the cascade of the remuneration structure throughout the Group and there has been a significant
re-design of the annual bonus plan to ensure stronger alignment to the Executive Directors’ ABR.

The Committee is provided with data on the remuneration structure for Senior Management level tiers below the Executive Directors
and uses this information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group.

During the year John Carter, the Cormpany’s designated Non-Executive Director for engagement with the workforce met employee
groups to discuss how executive and workforce pay are aligned, the results from the employee opinion survey and he also provided
a comprehensive insight into how the Group is governed. The response from employees was very positive and observations from the
sessions fed back to the Board.

How shareholders’ views are taken into account

The Committee takes the views of the sharehclders seriously and these views are taken into account in shaping the policy and
practice. Shareholder views are considered when evaluating and setting the remuneration strategy and the Committee commits

to consulting with key shareholders prior to any significant changes to its Policy. The Committee consulted shareholders and proxy
agencies extensively in relation to the new policy and incorporated several points of investor feedback, for instance in relation to the
Executive Director pension provision.
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Directors’” Remuneration Report continues
Annual Report on Remuneration

Total remuneration payable for FY19 {audited)

The table below sats out the total remuneration for each Executive Director in respect of FY19 and FY18. Further explanation of each
of the elements are set out below and in the following sections of this report:

Name Perlod Base salary Taxable benefits Annual Bonus* LTIP® Pension® Total
FY19' £544,872 £41,011 £0 £0 £72,749 £658,632
John Tonkiss
FY18 £325,000 £29,769 £98,010 £0 £57,118 £509,897
FY19' £372,500 £29,499 £0 £O £58,250 £460,249
Rowan Baker
FY18 £285,000 £22,451 £84,645 £0 £57,000 £449,096
Nigel Turner? FY19' £312,500 £16,352 £187,500 £0 £41,191 £557,543
Mike Lloyd® FY19' £312,500 £16,308 £199,218 £0 £41,191 £569,217

T FY13 relates to the 14 month period of 1 Septermber 2018 to 31 Cctober 2019
2 Nigel Turner was appointed to the Board on T January 2019
3 Mike Lioyd was appointed to the Board on 1 January 2019
4

in line with the remuneration policy, one third of the bonus earned must be paid in deferred shares. However, recognising the shortfall in financial
performance, and fo ensure that they make a strong start achieving thelr shareholder requirerment, the COOs have invested the remaining two

thircls cash elernent in shares

5 The performance period for the LTIP granted te John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker in December 2016 concluded in December 2013. The £PS,
ROCE and TSR targets were not achieved, resulting in mit vesting

6 Comprises the value of Group Personal Pension scheme contributions and salary supplements of fieu of pension

The: table below sets out the single total figure of reruneration and breakdown for sach Non-Executive Director in respect of FY19 and FY18;

Non-Executive Directars Perlod Fees Benefits® Total Role
FY19? £268,333 - £268,333 )
Paul Lester? 3 ' Non-Executive Chairman
FY18 £141,95C - £141,850
FY19' £87,033 - £87,033 . )
Frank Nelson Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Fr18 £74,333 £147 £74,480
FY19' 38 - £36,338
Gill Barr? 12 £26,3 i Indepandent Non-Executive Director
Fri8 - - -
FY19! £65,918 - £65,918 ) .
John Carter Independent Non-Executive Director
Fy1g £50,050 - £50,050
FY19' - - -
Arun Nagwaney® Non-Executive Director
Fy18 - - -
FY19' £63,700 - £63,700 ) )
Geeta Nanda Independent Non-Executive Director
FYig8 £54,333 - £54,333
FY19 £69,873 - £69,873
Mike Parsons® Independent Non-Executive Directar
Fy18 £64,333 - £64,333

1 FY19 relales to the 14 month period of 1 September 2018 to 31 October 2019
2 Paul Lester was appointed to the Board on 5 January 2018 and became Chairman at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM on 24 January 2018
3 Gill Barr was appointed on 10 April 2019 4 Mike Parsons stepped down from the Board with effect from 31 October 2019

5 Benefits refate 1o taxable expenditure, typically travel

6 Arun Nagwaney was appointed 1o the Board on 17 May 2018 as a representative
of Anchorage Capital Group, our largest shareholder. He does not receive a fee for bis role

Please note that FY19s a 14 month penod and any comparatves are for & 12 month year ending 31 Augus! unless otherwise stated
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Benefits {audited)

The Executive Directors receive private medical insurance, life Insurance. company car or cash in lieu of the company car, although
the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other benefits. The amounts shown in the table above are the gross (before tax)
amounts.

Annual bonus {audited}
For FY19, the annual bonus outturn is summarised in the table below:

Performance Targets Annual bonus value achieved
Percentage
Weighting  Weighting Maximum Maximum of maximum
Performance of each of each Performance weighting welghting Actual performance
conditions condition condition targets required pertarget pertarget Performance achieved CEQ,CFO coo co0
Nigel Mike
CEO,CFO  COOs CEQ,CFO  COOs ¢

Turner Lloyd

Threshold 10.50% 6.25% 3.125%

ROCE 25.00% 12.50% Target 11.50% 12.50% 6.250% 9.9% 0.00% £0 £0 £0
Maximum 12.20% 25.00% 12.500%
Underlying Threshold 10.10% 6.25% 3.125%

gfo‘?rf‘“”g 2500%  12.50% Target 10.80%  12.50%  6.250% 9.4% 0.00% £0 £0 £0
margin Maximurm 11.30% 25.00% 12.500%
, Threshold 25.50% 6.25% 3.125%

E’:taergin 25.00% 12.50% Target 26.50% 12.50% 6.250% 23.6% C.00% £0 £0 £0
Maximum 27.00% 25.00% 12.500%
Threshold £65m 6.25% 3.125%

Cash flow 25.00%  12.50% Target £90m 12.50% 6.250% £63.2m 0.00% £0 £0 £0
Maximum £115m 25.00% 12.500%

i i .00% 187,
o ooon_soaon e R B BE 0T
Total 106.00% 100.00% £0 £187,500 £199,218

The COOs joined the business four months into the financial year (and after the 2018 Remuneration Report was signed off). In light
of the angeing restructuring of the business and the rapidly changing business priorities, their annual bonus plan was based 50% on
the same financial performance criteria that were set for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer and 50% based on individual
strategic bonus objectives set for the remainder of the year. This provided a sharper first year incentive to focus them on the critical
initial strategic objectives, which they were recruited to deliver.

As noted above, their financial performance element failed to achieve the minimum performance thresholds, resulting in a zero bonus
under this element. However, performance against the strategic objectives element, which they were recruited to deliver was very
strong, refiecting the immediate impact made by the two COOs under the new organisational design and Group’s strategy. This
strong individual performance resutted in a near maximum payment of this elerment of the bonus. The Committee is comfortable

with the bonus payments recognising that the achievement of these strategic objectives will lay the foundation for future years’
performance. Furthenmore, one third of the bonus has been paid in deferred shares in line with the policy, recognising the shortfall in
financial performance and to ensure that both COQs make a strong start on achieving their shareholding reguirements, both have
invested the entire remaining two thirds cash element in shares.

This was a one year arangement as they joined part way through the year. The COOs will participate in the normal Executive Director
bonus plan from FY20.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The corporate chijectives for sach COO and the extent of their achievement is summarised in the table below:

Nigel Turner

Bonus shjectives for FY19 Welghting Assessment of performance Pay out
= Drive a safety culture within 33.3% * Significant improvement in safety culture 30% out of 33.3%
the business and significantly and performance
reduce RIDDORs s 48% improvement in AlIRs from 643 as
at01.09.18 to 337 as at 31.10.18
* 31% improvement in AlIRs from 487 as
at 31.12.18 to 337 as at 31.10.19
= Stabilise current build project cost 33.3% « Buid project cost overruns reduced 25% out of 33.3%
overruns and programme delays from negative in H1 to a % saving in H2
» Ernbed Build Cost Reduction 33.3% + Build Cos_t Reduction process embedded 25% out of 33.3%
process in the business and in the business
standardisation of product » Total identified build cost reduction savings
and ways of working of £48m across 101 schemes
Total 100% 80% out of 100%
Mike Lloyd
Bonug objectives for FY19 Weighting Assessment of performance Pay out
* Develop and embed a core set 20% * Sales restruciure completed 10% out of 20%
of national sales practices and « New sales and marketing operating model
a consistent operating model implemented, other priorities meant that roll
out of this was slightly behind schedule
» Roll out rental to at least 50 sites 20% + Rental tenure model rolled out to »70 sites 20% out of 20%
and secure reservations on at » 101 rental completions delvered
least 75 units
¢ Achieve a successful buy-out of 20% * YLMS shares successfully acquired 20% out of 20%
Your Life Management Services on 29.07.18
¢ Deliver the salesforce platform 20% + Salesforce MVP platform rolled out 15% out of 20%
across all regions successfully to all regions in Q2/Q3
* Build and restructure the 20% * New lgadership team in place 20% out of 20%
leadership team
Total 100% 85% aut of 100%

LTIP awards with performance periods ending FY19

The FY17 LTIP granted on 22 December 2016, and the additional top-up LTIP award granted on 27 January 2017 to Rowan Baker
following her appointment as CFO, vested on 22 December 2019 and 27 January 2020. The table below summarises the targets

and outcomes:

Measure Weighting Thraeshold performance Maximum performance Actual performance Vesting
EPS 33.3% 21.8 pence 27.8 pence 6.5 pence 0%
FY19 ROCE 33.3% 22% 25% 9.9% 0%
Relative TSR 33.3% Equal to index Index + 7.5% p.a. Below index 0%
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LTIP awards granted during the year (audited)

During FY19, LTIP awards were granted to the CEQ and CFQ over 435,780 and 298,165 shares respectively, which was equivalent
to the number of shares granted in FY18, adjusted for base salary increases in the year. The Chief Operating Officers were granted
awards equivalent to 117% of salary. The awards were made as nil-cost options as set out in the table below:

Maximum

Basis of % of award percentage of
Number award granted Face value vesting at the face value Parformance
Executlve Director Date of share awards {% of baslc salary) of award’ threshold that could vest Period
John Tonkiss 131218 435,780 128% £605,734 25% 100% 3 years
Rowan Baker 13.12.18 298,165 128% £414,449 25% 100% 3 years
Nigel Turner 11.04.19 344,087 117% £438,647 25% 100% 3 years
Mike Lloyd 11.04.19 344,037 117% £438,647 25% 100% 3 years

1 The face value is calculated using the ciosing share price on 12 December 2018 and 10 April 2019 (£1.39 and £1.275 respectively)

As at 27 January 2020, no awards have been granted in respect of FY20.

These awards will vest depending on performance against a challenging sliding scale of Earnings per Share ('"EPS’} and Return on
Capital Employed (‘ROCE") as set out below. Both measures are assessed over a three year performance period. Vested awards

are subject to a two year post vesting holding period.

Threshold performance

Target performance

Maximum performance

Measure Welghting 25% vest 50% vest 100% vest
Fy21 EPS 50% 11.9 pence 14.2 pence 16.6 pence
Fy21 ROCE 50% 14% 17% 20%

Please note that FY79 s a 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 montn year ending 31 August Uniess atherwise stated
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ beneficially owned shares and their outstanding interests in share awards as at 31 October 2019 are shown in the
table below:

The Executive Directors are required to build up and then subsequently hold, a sharehalding equivalent to 200% of their base salary.

Number Vested during Lapsed during Exerclse Vesting

Director/Plan Date of grant of share awards the year the year Price {£) date Expiry date
John Tonkiss

LTiP 251115 155,555 - 156,555 nil 261118 2511.25
LTIP 2242186 292,208 - 292,208 nil 221219 22.12.26
LTIP ray 302,752 - ~ nil 17.11.20 17.11.27
Lne 13.12.18 435,780 - - il 13.12.21 13.12.28
Sharesave 10.12.15 10,752 - 10,752 1.674 28.01.19 28,0719
Sharesave 131218 16,831 - - 1.0694 28.01.22 27.07.22
ABP 201147 17.796 - - nik 20.11.20 2011.27
ABP 16.11.18 89,933 - - nil 19.11.21 19.11.28
Rowan Baker

LTIP 251115 22,222 - 22,222 nil 251118 2511.25
LTIP 221216 40,584 - 40,584 nil 221219 2712.26
LTiP 27017 105,520 - - il 27.01.20 27.01.27
LTIP 171197 261,468 - - nil 1711.20 17.11.27
LTIP 131218 298,165 - - nil 13.42.21 13.12.28
Sharesave ' 101215 10,752 - 10,752 1.674 28.01.19 28.07.19
Sharesave 13.12.18 16,831 - - 106564 28.01.22 20.07.22
ABP 191118 77670 - - alll 1e11.21 18.11.28
Nigel Turner

LTIP 11.04.19 344,037 - - nil 11.04.22 11.04.29
Mike Lloyd

TP 11.04.09 344,037 - - nil 11.04.22 11.04.29
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The table below shows the interests in shares in the Company, including unvested awards for each of the Directors as at 31 October
2019. No options were exercised during the year, however, the 2015 LTIP and Sharesave options lapsed during the year. Please refer

to Directors’ interests awards table on page 98.

Shares Shares
Shares notsubjectto Options Gptions Options Cptions beneficially Shareholding
beneficially performance ted but un unvested unvested owned as requirement
Direc¢tors awnhed conditions unhexercised {LTIPs) {Sharesave) [ABP) % of salary’ met?
Executive Directors
John Tonkiss 588,811 - - 1,030,740 16,831 107,729 182% No
Rcewan Baker 19,180 - - 706,737 16,831 77,670 9% No
Nigel Turner - - - 344,037 - - 0% No
Mike Ucyd - - - 344,037 - - 0% No
Non-Executive Directors
Paul Lester 66,500 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
John Carter nil n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Arun Nagwansey nil n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a
Geeta Nanda nil n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a
Frank Nelscn 173,270 n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mike Parsons? 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Gill Barr nil n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa n/a

1 Based on a closing share price of £1.465 and the year end annual base salaries of the Executive Directors, Shares used for the above calculation
axclude unvested and unexercised options. They include shares where the Executive Director has beneficial ownership, shares independerttly
acquired in the market and those held by a spouse, civil partnier or dependent child under the age of 18

2 Mike Parsons stepped down from the Board with effect from 31 October 2019

Payments to past Directors (audited)
Payrments were made to Clive Fenton during the year in lieu of notice as detailed in the Annual Report 2018,

External directorships

Executive Directors may hold positions in other companies as Non-Executive Directors and retain their fees. Currently, the Executive
Directors held no external Non-Executive Director roles.

Please nofe that FY19 is a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August urfess otherwise stated
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Historic performance graph and CEO pay

The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company’s shares since listing compared with the FTSE 250 index.
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the mavement in share value and reinvestment over the same
pericd of dividend income.

As the Company was a constituent of the FTSE 250 Index during the financial year, the Committee considers this is an appropriate
index. The comparison is from the date of listing on 11 November 2015 to 31 October 2019,

FTSE 250 comparison
140
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Chief Executive Officer’s historic remuneration

The foliowing table shows the total single figure for the role of Chief Executive Officer as well as the annual bonus and LTIP vesting
level achicved for sach of the periads cavered by the graph above:

FY19 FY18 FY17 FY16
CEOQ total single figure £658,632 £804,275 £753,169 €628,024
Annual bonus payment level achieved (% of maximum 0% 19.8% 19.7% 10.0%
opportunity)

LTIP vesting level achieved (% of maximum opportunity) 0% 0% - -

Change in Chief Executive Officer's remuneration compared with employees

The following table illustrates the change in CEO salary, benefits and bonus betwean FY18 and FY19 compared with other employees in
the Group taken as a whole:

% change FY18tc FY19

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus
Chief Executive Cfficer’ -6% 7% -100%
Other Group employees 3% 6% -20%

1 Based on FY18 CEC base saiary for Clive Fenton campared with the FY19 CEQ base satary for John Tonkiss, prorated for 12 mortths

The annual bonus decrease for the CEQ is due to the FY19 bonus being £nil as a result of threshold performance not being
achieved for any of the financial measures. The decrease in the average employee bonus is as a result of retention bonuses received
by employees in FY18 as the business was implementing a new strategy.
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CEO pay ratio’

CEO pay ratia 201819
Method? B
CEO Single figure £6858,632
Upper quartile 81
Median 12:1
Lower quartile 281

The salary and total pay for the individuals identified at the | ower quartile, Median and Upper quartile positions in 2018/1% are set

out below:
Quartile breakdown of all employee pay' Salary Total Pay
Upper quartile £61,600 £84,963
Median £25,670 £54,102
Lowaer quartile £18,695 £23,229
Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of spend on pay in comparison to profit distributed by way of dividends:

FY19 FY18 % change
Overall spend on pay including Executive Directors £74.9m £79.8m -6%
Profit distributed by way of dividends £28.0m £29.0m 0%

How the remuneration policy will be applied in FY20

Base salary, benefits and pension

Base salaries were increased by 2.5% with effect from 1 November 2019. Accordingly, the base salaries for FY20 will be:

Salary as at 1 September 2018

Name {or on jeining H later) Salary as at 1 November 2019 Increase over prior year
John Tonkiss £475,000 £486,875 2.5%
Rowan Baker £325,000 £333,125 2.5%
Nigel Turner £375,000 £384,375 2.5%
Mike Lloyd £375,000 £384,375 2.5%

Pension contributions are 12.5%, having been reduced from 15% in the prior year. The majority of the worlkforce receives a pension

contribution from the Company of 5% of salary.

1 Flease refer to McCarthy & Stone Gender Pay report on our corparate website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk for further details and

explanation of the fables

2 Method B affows the Group o use its most recent gender pay gap information and on an indicative basis to calculate pay ratios
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Annual bonus
The maximum bonus opportunity will remain at 150% of base salary, with one third of any payment deferred in shares.

Fallowing a review of current metrics, the bonus performance measures will be simplified for FY20 and focus on our key measures
of Operating Profit and Cash Flow. In addition, we are introducing a strategic objective element to support the strategic imperatives
as we refocus the business. The measures and weighting will be 40% Operating Profit, 40% Cash Flow and 20% on Strategic
Objectives.

ROCE wili be removed from the annual bonus but will continue to be measured in the long term incentive, removing an element of
duplication where management could be rewarded twice for the same outcome. In light of the enhanced Committee discretion to
adjust the formulaic outturn of the bonus, the specific operating profit and customer satisfaction underping that were in place for
FY19 will not apply, although these matters will be considered in detail as part of the Committee’s annual review of the bonus outturn.

The Strategic Objectives have now been set on an individual basis and are as follows;

» John Tenkiss: Develop a strategic partnership plan with key investors, develop a company wide strategy to embed environmental,
social and governance issues imore centrally within the business planning, establish a robust people and culture development
strategy to reflect the new organisational design

s Rowan Baker: Set up a rental fund, secure improved FRI finance and alternative finance models
+ Nigel Turner: Dsiiver quarterly land exchange targets, cost reduction improvements and an affordable product pitot
* Mike Lloyd: Deliver rental strategy, improve CBPX performance and develop a customer centric brand proposition

Stretching sliding scales have been set for the financial measures and, where relevant, for strategic measures. These are
commercially sensitive so cannot be disclosed in advance. However, they will bé disclosed in the FY20 Annual Report. For any
measures not based on a numeric sliding scale, there will be detailed narrative of each measure, performance against it and the
resuitant bonus pay out.

Long Term Incentive Plan

LTIP award levels will return to the normal award level of 150% of salary for all Executive Directors. Award levels were reduced for
FY 18 reflecting the Commitiee’'s concern over share price perforrmance during the year. The Committes is comfortable that award
feveis for FY20 should return to normal levels subject to any significant share price movement before awards are granted.

Vesting will continue to be determined 50% by EPS growth and 50% by ROCE. The target ranges are set out in the table below
(straight-line between threshold and maximum):

EPS in FY22 ROCE in Fy22
Below threshiold (0% payable} Less than 12.0 pence Less than 14%
Threshald (25% payable) 12.0 pence 14%
Maximum (100% payable) 17.5 pence 20%
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Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The fees for FY20 for the Non-Exacutive Director roles are as follows:

* Chairman: £230,000 (all inclusive)

* Base NED fee: £54 600

* Senior Independent Director additional fee: £10,000

* Committee Chair fee {per committee or additional rolg): £15,000

* Company designated Non-Executive Director for engagement with the workforce: £7,500
» Corporate Social Responsibility Chair: £7,500

The fee levels for the Chair of the Risk and Audit and Remuneration Committees have been reviewed by the Board
(without the NEDs present) and have been increased recognising the significant additional time commitment compared
to serving as a member of the Committee in each case.

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration
The members of the Committee during FY 19 and up to the date of this Report are:
Gill Barr (Chair of the Committee}

Frank Nelson

Geeta Nanda, OBE

Pauf Lester, CBE

John Carter

Mike Parsons!

The terms of reference for the Committee are available on the Company's website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance and from the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary at the registered office.

The Committee receives assistance from the Group HR Director and the Group General Councel and Company Secretary, who
will attend meetings by invitation, except when issues relating to their own remuneration are being discussed. The Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer will attend by invitation on occasion.

Advisers to the Remuneration Commitiee

Fallowing a tender process carried out by the Committee during the year, the Committee has engaged Komn Ferry as its independent
remuneration adviser,

During FY18 PwC, the previous adviser since our IPO, has provided advice, primarily in respect of the remuneration policy and LTIP
awards,

PwC and Korn Ferry also provided certain other services to the Group. The Committes is satisfied that no conflict of interest
exists or existed in the provision of these services and that the advice received from PwC and Korn Ferry was and is objective
and independent. Korn Ferry is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and is a signatory to its voluntary code of
conduct which is designed to ensure objective and independent advice is given to remuneration committees.

Fees of £58,535 (FY18: £0) were paid to Korn Ferry and £73,405 (FY18: £40,000) to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration
advice given to the Committee.

1 Mike Parsons resigned from the Board and its committees with effect from 31 October 2019
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was put to a binding vote and approved at the Annual General Meeting on 25 January 2017.
We put a resolution to apprové the FY 18 Annual Remuneration Report to our members at our Annual General Maeting on 23
January 2019. The voting outcomes are set out below:

Total votes cast
Resoalution Votes For Yotes Against {excluding withheld} Votes withheld

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Number of votes cast 320,184,871 24,713,722 344,898,503 3,773,564
Percent of votes cast 92.8% 7.2%

Annual Report on Remuneration:
Number of votes cast 412,075,272 5,387,236 . 417,462,508 182,624
Percent of votes cast 98.7% 1.3%

Fairness, diversity and wider workforce considerations

McCarthy & Stone is cormmmitted to creating an inclusive working environment and to rewarding cur employses throughout the
organisation in a fair manner. Although, the new UK Gorporate Governance Code doss not apply to the Company until FY20, the
Remuneration Committee is already taking steps to comply with the Code.

In making decisions on executive pay, the Bemuneration Committee considers wider workforce remuneration and conditions.
We believe that employees throughout the Company should be able to share in the success of the Company. We have, since our
PO, operated a Sharesave scheme (‘SAYE'} and a Share Incentive Plan 'SIP’).

As part of our commitment to fairess, this section of our remuneration reporting sets out more information on cur wider workforce
pay conditions, our change in CEQ pay compared with employees’ pay changes, our Gender Pay statistics, and our Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion policy. We believe that transparency is an important first step towards making improvements in

relation to these important issues.

Competitive pay and cascade of incentives

The Committee ensures that pay is fair throughout the Comparny and makes decisions in relation to the structure of Directors’ pay
in the context of the cascade of incentives throughout the business. The Committee’s remit extends down to Directors and Senior
Management for which it recommends and monitors the level and structure of remuneration.

Level Annual bonus particlpation Sharesave / SIP participation LTIP participation
Executive Directors v v v
Senior Management v v v
Managers v v

Employeas e v

104 P g & Siore wls Please nate that FY19 is a 14 month peniod and any comparatves are for @ 12 monih year ending 31 August uiess othenvise staled



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Company

The remuneration policy for all employees is determined in line with best practice and aims to ensure that the Company is able

to attract and retain the best people. This principle is followed in the development of our remuneration policy. The Company’s
remuneration strategy has been designed to ensure that all employees share in its success through performance related remuneration
and the potential for share ownership. Awards under both the Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan and the Long Term Incentive Plan will
provide alignment between Senior Management and our shareholders based on overall performance of the business.

For all employees, the Company has in place a SAYE and SIP. Currently, under these plans all employees have the opportunity to
purchase shares in the Company subject to certain restrictions.

The Company uses a humber of remuneration corparison measurements to assess fairness of pay structures across the Group.

In setting the remuneration paolicy for Directors, the pay and conditions of other employees of the Company are taken into account to
ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group, including data on the remuneration structure for management level tiers below
the Executive Directors, average base salary increases awarded to the overall employee population and the cascade of pay structures
throughout the business.

Gender pay

The gender pay gap legislation requires all companies with more than 250 employees to report annually on their pay.

The McCarthy & Stone Group has three employing entities with more than 250 employees, namely McCarthy & Stone Retirement
Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited and Yourlife Management Services Limited. Our 2018 Gender
pay Gap report is available on our corporate website: www.mecarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

As well as the statutory disclosures required for the above three companies, we also published aggregated data across all the
Group companies (except Yourtife Management Services Limited, which was administered by our partner, Somerset Care Limited
until our acquisition of the shares held by Somerset Care on 29 July 2019).

The following table shows the mean and median hourly pay gaps as at 5 April 2018 as well as our mean and median bonus gaps
{based on bonus and commission rates for the period 8 April 2017 to 5 April 2018). Our mean hourly pay gap of 34.7% and our
median hourly pay gap of 37.4% reflects the fact that we have a higher proportion of males in more senior roles, where the pay is
higher. However, if each gender were reported equally by job level, our mean hourly pay gap would reduce to 4.3% and our mean
bonus gap would become 5.6% in favour of our female employees.

Unlike most of the major housebuilders, the majority of our site based workers (who are predominantly mals) are subcontractors
and are therefore not included in this analysis.

Please note that FY19 15 a 14 month penod and any Comparalives are for @ 12 month year ending 31 August uriless othernese stated “ccarry & St pic Annual Report 105



Directors’ Remuneration Report contiueo
Annual Report on Remuneration

Gender pay gap data
Remaining (excluding

Element due to elements due to
Mean gender mix' gender mix) Median
Hourly pay 34.7% 30.4% 4.3% 37.4%
Bonus 27.0% 32.6% {5.6%)2 67.2%

1 This is the amount of gender pay gap which Is due to there being higher numbers of men or wornen in a particuiar job role or job leve!
2 This means that if gender mix is removed, women earned more mean bonus and commission than men

Proportion of male and female employees in each pay quartile

Percent of male Percent of femaie

employees employees

Lower quartile 30.0 70.0

Lower middle quartile 41.2 58.8

Upper middle quartile 47.5 52.5

Upper guartile 74.2 25.8
Proportion of male and female employees receiving a bonus

Percent of male Percent of fernale

employees employees

Empioyees who received a bonus or commission 84.0 78.2

in the 12 manth period

We are confident that our pay and bonus gaps, where they occur, are based on the distribution of men and women across our
business and not because of our pay policies, which are robust, fair and consistent. We have an even balance of male and female
emplayeas across the business and are taking action to increase the representation of women at senior levels.

We continue to work with the Home Builders Federation and other housabuilders to improve the image of the construction industry
in order to attract a more diverse range of candidates.

Diversity
Please refer to the Directors' report on page 111 for details of our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Palicy.

The Annual Report on Remuneration will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2020 AGM on 25 March 2020.

Gill Barr
Remuneration Committee Chair
27 January 2020
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Graphicremoved

John Tonkiss joins staff and residents of Poets Place, Loughton to celebrate receiving the
HBF five star Horme Builder Customer Satisfaction Award for a record fourteenth consecutive year
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Directors’ Report

Introduction

The Directors present their report and audited financial
statements for the period ended 31 October 2019 in
accordance with section 415 of the Companies Act 2006
{'Directors’ Report’).

The informaticn that fulfils the requirernents of the corporate
governance statement for the purposes of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (‘DTRs’) can be found on pages 60 to 106 (all of which
form part of this Directors' Report) and in this Directors’ Report,
Certain disclosure requirements for inclusion in the Directors’
Report have been incorporated elsewhere within the Annual
Report. In addition, this Directors’ Report should be read in
conjunction with likely future developments set out on pages

50 to 55.

The Diractors” Report, together with the Strategic Report
on pages 2 to 55 forms the Management Repart for the
purposes of DTR 4.1.5R requirements.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.9p (FY18: 1.9p) per ordinary share
was paid on 11 June 2019 to those shareholders on the
register ort 3 May 2019. Subject tc sharehalder approvat at the
2020 AGM, the Directors are proposing a final dividend for the
financial periad ended 31 October 2018 of 3.5p (FY18: 3.5p}
per ordinary share. This brings the total dividend for the pericd
to 5.4p (FY18: 5.4p) per ordinary share, in line with the prior
financial year.

Directors

The names of the Directors who were Directors at year

end are on pages 58 and 59. Mike Lloyd, Nigel Turner and
Gill Barr were all appointed during the financial period under
review as follows:

Director Date of appointment
Mike Lioyd 1 January 2019
Nigel Turner 1 January 2019
Gill Barr' 10 April 2019

fn accordance with the Company’s articles and the UK
Corporate Governance Code, all the Directors will be seeking
re-slection at the 2020 AGM.

1 Giff Barr was appointed on 10 April 2019 and commenced
her Board and Committee responsibilities from 23 May 2019
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Directors’ interests

Details of the Directors' interests in the share capital of the
Company are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration report
on page 99. Gill Barr purchased 7,366 company shares on
13 November 2019. No other Director had any dealings in
the shares of the Company between 31 October 2019 and
the date of this Directors’ Report.

Directors’ powers

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Association,

the Companies Act 2006, any directions given by the
Company by special resolution and any relevant statutes
and reguiations, the business of the Company, including in
relation to the allotment and issuance of ordinary shares are
managed by the Board which may exercise all the powers
of the Company. Matters raserved for determination by the
Board are set out on page 64 of the Cotporate Governance
Statement.

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

During FY19 and to the date of this Report qualifying third
party indemnity provisions governed by the Companies

Act 2006 were in place, under which the Group has agreed
to indemnify the Directors, farmer Directors and the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary, together with
those who have held or hold these positions as officers

of other Group companies or of associate or affiliated
companies, to the extent permitted by law and the Articles,
against all liability arising in respect of any act or omission in
the course ul performing their dutics.

The Group maintains at its expense a directors' and officers
liability insurance policy to provide cover for legal action
brought against the Directors. The policy does not provide
cover where the Director or Officer has acted fraudulently
or dishonestly.

A review is caried out on an annual basis to ensure that the
Board remains satisfied that an appropriate level of cover is
in place. The Group has also granted indemnities to each of
the current Directors of all Group companies to the extent
permitted by law. In general terms, the indemnities protect
Directors to the extent permissible by law from all costs

and expenses incurred in the defence of any civil or criminal
proceedings in which judgment is given in their favour or the
proceedings are otherwise disposed of without finding fault
or where there is a successful application to court for relief
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from liability.

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association may be amended in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
special resolution of the Cornpany's shareholders.

Share capital and control

At 31 October 2019, 31 October 2018 and 31 August 2018
there were 537,329,434 ordinary shares of 8p nominal value
in issue.

No shares have been issued or bought back and cancelled
during the financial period. Since the end of the financial period
the Company has issued 43,036 shares under its LTIP and

to satisfy early exercises under its SAYE scheme. The share
capital as at 27 January 2020 is 537,372,470.

The Company has one class of share: ordinary shares of 8p
nominal value, each of which carries the right to one vote at
general meetings of the Company and to an equal proportion
of any dividends declared and paid, The rights and obligations
attached to the ordinary shares are governed by UK law and
the Company's Articles of Association,

Ordinary shareholders are entitled to receive notice of, and to
attend and speak at, general meetings. On a show of hands,
every shareholder present in person or by proxy (or a duly
authorised corporate representative} shall have cne vote and,
on a poll, every member who is present in person or by proxy
(or a duly authorised corporate representative) shall have one
vote for every share held by that member.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of the Company's
ordinary shares and there are no shares carrying special rights
with regards to control of the Company. The Company is not
aware of any agreements between sharehoiders that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting
rights, Apart from the Relationship Agreement described
below, there are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding
or on the exercise of voting rights which are governed by the
Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. No person has
any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital
and all issued shares are fully paid.

Please note tha! FY19 15 a 14 month perod and any comparatives are for a2 12 month year ending 31 August urfess olherwise stated

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out on page
153 in note 26 o the financial statements.

Relationship Agreement with Anchorage
Capital Group

On 16 May 2018, the Company entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Anchorage. Under the terms of the
Relationship Agreement, for as long as its shareholding

in the Company is more than 15 per cent, Anchorage is
entitled to nominate one Non-Executive Director {ihe
‘Nominee Director’) to the Board of the Company and

to nominate one Board cbserver. On 17 May 2018 Arun
Nagwaney was appointed as the Nominee Director. In
accordance with the terms of the Relationship Agreement,
Arun Nagwaney has also been appointed to the Nomination
Committee. Arun Nagwaney is not entitled to payment of any
fees in connection with his directorship.

The right of Anchorage to appoint a Nominge Director and
a Board Observer will fall away if Anchorage's shareholding
falls below 15 per cent.

While the Relationship Agreement is in place, Anchorage
has agreed that it will not acquire any shares in the
Company which would result in it (and its concert parties)
being interested in excess of 29.9 per cent of the total voting
rights of the Company. In addition, Anchorage will not solicit
any proxies or votes from any other shareholders or actively
co-aperate with others to obtain, or consolidate contral of
the Company.

As Anchorage's interest in the voting rights of the Company
is less than 30 per cent, it is not a controlling sharsholder.

Resolutions to allot, issue and buy
back shares

Shareholder authority will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
rights and to make market purchases of the Company's
ordinary shares.

The Group intends to renew the Directors’ powers to issue
and buy back shares at each AGM. At the Group’s AGM

on 23 January 2019 the Directors were authorised to issue
shares up to a maximum nominatl amount of £14,328,783
and empowered to issue shares on a non-presmptive basis
up to @ maximum nominal amount of £2,149,317 for general
use and a further £2,149,317 for use in connection with an
acquisition or other capital investment.

A resolution will be put to shareholders at the 2020 AGM
reguesting authority in accordance with relevant institutional
guidelines for the Directors to buy back up to 53,737,247
shares representing 10% of the Company's issued share
capital. The Directors will only purchase the Company’s
shares in the market if they believe it is in the best interests
of shareholders generally.
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Substantial shareholdings

Under chapter 5 of the FCA's Disclosure Guideline and Transparency Rules ("DTR5") shareholders, and holders of certain financial
instruments relating to shares are obliged to disclose to an issuer when their holding reaches or falis below a given thresheld as a
result of an acquisition or disposal or as a result of events changing the breakdown of voting rights.

As at 31 October 2019 and as at 27 January 2020, the Company had received formal notification of the following holdings in its

shares under the DTRs'.

Number of % interestin

Number of % interest in shares voting rights

shares disclosed voting rights  disclosed as at as at 27

Name of notifying as at 31 as at 31 27 January January

entity/nature of holding* October 2019  October 2019 2020 2020
Anchorage Capital Master

Offshore Limited (indirect)? 168,512,183 20.50 128,512,183 23.92

M&G plc (indirect) 40,009,234% 7.39 40,009,234° 7.44

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (indirect) 39,299,5084 7.31 n/a n/a

Standard Life Aberdeen plc (indirect) 33,476,064 6.23 33,476,064 6.22

Royal London Assset Management Limited (direct) 30,934,575 5.76 30,934 575 575

Investec Asset Management Limited (indirect) 27,684,132 515 27,684,132 515

JO Hambro Capital Management Limited® n/a n/a 29,980,687 5.58

Information provided to the Company under the DTRs is publicly available via the regulatory information service and on the

Company’s website.

Note:

1 Notification is only required when the next applicable percentage threshold is crossed, meaning these holdings may have changed since

notification was last required

2 Includes contracts for difference (CfDs) representing 18,785,237 voting rights

3 includes right to recall 252,000 loaned shares

4 Includes open stock joan of 23,966,289 shares and Swaps/CfDs represeriting 15,078,122 voting rights

5 Includes right to recall 85,500 loaned shares

Significant agreements with change
of control provisions

The Company has in place a revolving credit facility dated

19 December 2014 (as amended by an amendment letter
dated 10 February 2015, a supplemental agresment dated

23 May 2016, a supplemental agreement dated 21 February
2018 and further amended by supplemental agreements

dated 4 April 2019 and 24 August 2018}, The revolving credit
facility agreement contains termination provisions that could be
triggered in certain circumstances, including if any person or
group of persons acting in concert gain controi of the Company.

In the event of a takeover or change of coniral (excluding
an internal recrganisation) outstanding awards under the
Group’s LTIP, ABf? and Sharesave plans may, subject to any
performance conditions, vest and become exercisable,
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There are no agreements between the Group and its Directors
or employees providing for compensation for loss of office

or employment (whether through resignation, punported
redundancy or ctherwise) in the event of a takeover bid.

Political donations

By way of a special resalution approved at the AGM on

23 January 2019, shareholders authorised the Company to
make political donations and incur political expenditure up to

a maximurn of £100,000. During the year, the Group did not
make any political donations or incur any political expenditure.
Although the Group has no intention of making any political
donations or incurring any political expenditure it is possible that
certain routine activities may unintentionally fall within the broad
scope of the Companies Act 2006 provisions relating to political
donations and expenditure. As in previcus years, the Directors
are therefore seeking renewal of the autharity at the forthcoming
AGM, in accordance with relevant institutional guidelines.
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Equal opportunities and diversity

The Company regards equality and fairness as a fundamental
right of all of its employees regardless of marital status,
pregnancy and maternity, gender, sexual orientation, age, colour,
religion or belief, race or ethnic origin. The Company believes
that employees should be treated with dignity and respect and
everyone is given an equal opportunity to reach their potential.

It is McCarthy & Stone's firm intention to create a climate free
from bullying and harassment and in which all employees

feel confident in raising concerns of this kind and have them
dealt with quickly, sensitively and effectively. Every employee is
required to support the Company to meet its commitment to
pravide equal opportunities in employment and avoid unlawful
discrimination. The Company does not tolerate any acts of
discrimination at any level. During the year, the Group undertook
a review of its arrangements on eqguality and diversity and
subsequently a revised Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
was rolled out to all empioyees. The new policy has been
communicated to all employees and is available for them to
view on the Company's intranet.
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The Company regards equality and
fairness as a fundamental right of all

of its employees regardless of marital
status, pregnancy and maternity, gender,
sexual orientation, age, colour, religion or
belief, race or ethnic origin.
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It is alsc the Group's commitment that pecple with disabilities
have full and fair consideration for all vacancies and disability
is not seen to be an inhibitor to emiployment or career
development. Appropriate arrangements are made for the
continued employment and training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons employed by the Company. In
the event of any colleague becoming disabled while with the
Company, their needs and abilities would be assessed and,
where possible, we would work to retain them and seek to oifer
alternative employment to them if they were no longer abie to
continue in their current role.

Human rights

The Group supports the United Nations' Universal Declaration
of Human Rights and has policies and processes in place

to ensure that the Group acts in accordance with principles

in relation to areas such as anti-corruption, diversity,
whistleblowing and the requirements of the Modern Slavery

Please note that FY19 15 a 14 month perod and any comparatives dre for a 12 month year ending 31 August uniless otherwise stated

Act 2015. All suppliers are required to confirm compliance
with the Group's Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy.

The Group's modern slavery and human trafficking statement
required under the Modern Slavery Act 2015 is available to
view on our website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Employee engagement

The Company held a number of Group wide business updates
during the year, led by the Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Operating Officers, where employees

were provided the opportunity to feedback to the Executive
Directors. These updates were fimed and made available on
the Group’'s intranet for those employees who were unable to
attend for any reason.

In April 2019, employees were invited to complete an
engagement survey about their experience working at
McCarthy & Stone. To make sure everyone had the ability

to take part, the survey was made fully mobile friendly so

that site based employess or employees who are regularly

on the road did not need to be at a desk to complete it.

The formai of the survey was also enhanced this year, making
it shorter and sharper to increase the likelihood of receiving
meaningful feedback but without being onerous for employees
to complete. This also marks the start of a new programme
of engagement with employees whereby we will be repeating
the survey every six months so that we can keep track of how
employees are feeling and how we are daing in progressing
issues and opportunities raised.

In light of the new UK Corporate Governance Code which will
apply to the Company in FY20, we are already considering
ways to ensure effective engagement with the workforce and
John Carter was appointed as the designated Non-Executive
Director for this purpose on 22 May 2019.

We currently operate two share schemes which are open

to all employees - a Sharesave plan (‘SAYE') and a Share
Incentive Plan ('SIP'} designed to provide employees with the
opportunity to participate in the performance and success

of the Group. Neither scheme is subject to performance
conditions.
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Change of Financial Year end

As part of the business transformation strategy announced
on 25 Septemmber 2018, the Directors decided to change
the Group's financial year end from 31 August to 31 October.
This will allows the Group to decouple its year end activities
from the peak August holiday season and will serve to
accelerate the process of rebalancing workflow and sales
volumes throughout the year.

FY19 is the first financial year reported to 31 October, the

first half reporting covered the six months to 28 February 2019
and the second half, the sight months from 1 March 2019 to
31 October 2019.

All disclosures made within the FY19 Annual Report are

for the 14 month period ending 31 October 2019 and all
comparatives are far a 12 month period ending 31 August
for each comparative year guoted, unless otherwise stated.

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's financial instruments and its exposure
to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk are set
out in note 31 to the financial staterments on pages 155 to 159.

Going concern

The Directors have assessed the Group’s business activities
and the factors likely to affect future parformance in light

of current and anticipated economic conditions. in making

their assessment the Directors have reviewed the Group's

latest budget, forecasts, available revolving credit facility and
considered reasonably possible downside sensitivities in
performance and mitigating actions. The Directors are confident
that the Group has adequate resources in place to continue

in operational existence for a period of at least 12 months

from the date of approval of the financial statements. For this
reason, they have continued to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the Annual Report. Further information on the going
concern judgement can be found in note 1 to the financial
statements on page 132.

In making the Going Concern Staterment and the Viability
Statement, the Directors have taken into account the ‘Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Controls and Related Financial
and Business Reporting' issued by the Financial Reporting
Council in September 2014.

12

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Directar confirms that:
(@ so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit

information of which the Company's auditor is unaware;
and

g

the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

The confirmation is given and shouid be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.
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Greenhouse gas emission reporting

This section has been prepared in accordance with our regulatory obligation to report greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions pursuant to
Section 7 of the Companies Act 2006 (Stratagic Report and Directors’ Report} Regulations 2013.

In 2018, our reporting period changed from 1st September - 31st August to 1st Novemnber - 31st October. Therefore, this year, to
ensure consistency we are reporting three reporting periods and comparing each to the same period in the preceding reporting year:

= 1 September 2018 - 31 August 2019
* 1 September 2018 - 31 October 2019
* 1 November 2018 - 31 October 2019

Curing cur new reporting period, from 1 November 2018 to 31 October 2019, our total Scope 1 and 2 (location-based) emissions
from the combustion of fuels and the purchase of electricity were 11,821 tCO,e. Scope 3 emissions totalled 3,222 tCO,e. Our Scepe
1 and 2 {location-based) emissions decreased by 15% in the year, compared to the same period in 2017/18.

The table below shows our GHG emissions for each reporting period against the preceding period:

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO,e

1Sept17- 1Septi8- 1S5ept17- 1Sept18- 1Novi17- 1Nov1g-

31Aug18 31 Aug 19 % | 310ct18 310ct19 % | 310ct18  310ct19 %
Combustion of fuels
(Scope 1) 6,703 7,166 +7% 8,267 8,121 -2% 7,537 6,557 -13%
Electricity purchased
for own use 6,394 5,495 -14% 7,453 6,323 -15% 6,372 5,264 -17%

(Scope 2: location-based)

Electricity purchased
for own use 8279 7,772 -6% 9,787 8,936 -9% 8,388 7,427 -11%
(Scope 2: market-based)

Total Scope 1 & 2
(location-based)

Total Scope 1 & 2
(market-based}

13,067 12,660 -3% 16,720 14,445 -8% 13,909 11,821 -15%

14,982 14,937 0% 18,055 17,057 -6% 15,925 13,984 -12%

,Fe‘fgt';;”_gﬁﬂﬁ[ggécope 3 3560 2662 -25% | 4005 @ 3008 -23% | 3393 2653  -22%

Business travel (Scope 3) 493 444 -10% 577 517 -10% 498 434 -13%

Waste {(Scope 3) 85 135 +60% 107 158 +47% a3 135 +45%

Water (Scope 3) 0.4 G.4 -9% 0.5 0.5 -5% 0.4 0.4 -6%
Methodology

We quantify and report our organisational GHG emissions according to the methodology set out in the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
Comorate Accounting and Reporting Standard published by the World Resources Institute. We work with our sustainability
consultant, Carbon Credentials, to convert our activity data to tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent using the UK Government 2019
Canversion Factors for Company Reporting.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the amendment to the GHG Protocaol’s Scope 2 Guidance, we have thersfore
reported both a location-based and market-based Scope 2 emissions figure. The Scope 2 market-based figure reflects emissions
from electricity purchasing decisions that McCarthy & Stone plc has made during the reparting period.

Plaase note that FY19 15 & 14 month penod and any comparatves are for 8 12 month year encing 31 August unless otherwise stated MeCarty & Stare ple Annual Report 13



Directors’ Report contiued

Methodology continued

When guantifying emissions using the market-based approach, we have used a supplier specific emission factor where possible.
If these factors were unavailable, a residual mix emission factor was used. This approach is in line with the GHG Protocol Scope
2 Data Hierarchy.

We have also chosen to report our emissions in relation to the number of managed developments (312).

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCOe

1Sept17 - 1 Septi18- % (15eptt7- 1Septif- % { 1Novi17- 1 Novi8- %

31 Aug 18 31 Aug 18 310ct18 31 0ct 19 31 0ct18 31 0ct 19
(Tgfgt%%?ggsg) 2 13,007 12,660 3% | 15720 14445  -8% | 13909 11821  -15%
(Trﬁf‘r'kseﬁ%%z;df‘ 2 14982 14937 0% | 18085 17057 6% | 15925 13984  -12%
B D g o based) 42 41 3% 50 46 8% a5 8’ -15%
‘D%ng%gﬁzeﬂfﬁgﬁfm_bas oc) 48 48 0% 58 55 -6% 51 45 -12%

Reporting boundaries and limitations

Total emissions 2018-2019 tCOe per managed development
45 tCO,e
38 tC0,e
® Scope 1
® Scope 2 {location-based)
® Scope 3 201718 201819

We consolidate our organisational boundary according to the operational control approach. Emissions for all significant sites have
been disclosed, which includes our offices, construction sites and developments.

The GHG sources that constitute our operational boundary for 2018/18 are:

* Scope 1: Natural gas combustion within boilers, diesel combustion within generators and road fuel combustion within vehicles.
We did not recharge any refrigerant-based equipment in 2018/19

* Scope 2: Purchased selectricity consumption for cur own use

= Scope 3: bmissions associated with the production of fuels and electricity that are consumed by McCarthy & Stone ple, including
transmission and distribution losses associated with the consumption of national grid electricity. Additional Scope 3 sources
calculated include the transport in vehicles not owned or operated by McCarthy & Stone ple, the disposal of our waste and water
consumption at our head office

114 Mooty & Stohe ol Please note that FY19s a 14 month penod and any comparatves are for & 12 month year ending 31 Augus! uriess othenwse stated
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Assumptions and estimations

Improving our data collection processes has been a key
priority this year, however several assumptions have been
applied where activity data is missing or not currently
collected.

Accurate records of diesel combustion in generators at
construction sites were not available in time for reporting.
Therefore, an estimation was Used based on average
diesel consumption at each site as well as available
records from procurement.

In some cases, missing data has been estimated using
extrapolation of available data from the reporting period.

Improving performance

We monitor energy consumption at our managed
properties in detail to identify opportunities to improve
energy performance, We have begun a process of
collecting more accurate data for construction sites

and offices. This will help us to understand more about
our consumption and energy use, and to reduce our
smissions going forward. As part of our responsibility

to comply with the Energy Savings Opportunities
Scheme (ESOS), energy audits were performed across
a selection of our sites in 2019 to identify energy savings
opportunities; we are in the process of implermenting the
auditor’s findings.

Please note that FY19 18 4 14 month period and any comparatives are for @ 12 manth year ending 37 August unless othenwise sfated

Annual General Meeting

The forthcoming AGM will be held on 25 March 2020,

Full details are contained in the Notice convening the AGM,
which is being sent to shareholders with this Annual Report.
Post Balance Sheet Events

There were no events after the reporting pericd that required
adjustment in the FY19 financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
27 January 2020

Moarty & Sene oo Annual Report 15



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directors as listed on pages 58 and 59 are responsible
for preparing the Annual Repert and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. The Directors are

required by the IAS Regulation to prepare the Group
financial statements under IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards), including FRS 102, the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdem and Republic

of Ireland, and applicable law.

The financial statements are also required by law to be
propetly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, Under company law,
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or
loss of the Company and the Group for that period.

In preparing the Company financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

* State whether applicabte UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

internaticnal Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial
statements present fairly for each financial year the relevant
entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects
of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance
with the definitions and recagnition criteria for assets,
fiabilities, income and expenses set out in the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board'’s ‘Framework for the preparation
and presentation of financial statements’. In virtually all
circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by
compliance with all applicable IFRS.

116 MoeCaran & Sioee o0

Directors are also required io:
* Properly select and apply accounting policies

* Present inforration, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides refevant, refiable, comparable and
understandable information

¢ Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity's financial position and
financial performance

Make an assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s
(as the case may bej ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
and the Group’s transactions cn an individual and consclidated
basis and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also respensible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial inforrmation included on the
Group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors are responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
e S
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Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board considers, on the advice of the Risk and Audit
Committee, that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s and the
Group's position, performance, business model and strategy.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Each Director confirms that, to the best of his or her
knowledge:

a) the Group and Company financial statements in this
Annual Report, which have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and of the Group taken
as a whole; and

b} the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 27 January 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
27 January 2020 27 January 2020

Please note thal FY19 is a 14 month penod and any comparatives are for a 12 month year enging 371 August uniess othenwise stated MeCartay & Stene ple. Annual Report 117
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc

Opinion
In our opinicn:

* McCarthy & Stone plc's Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a
true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 October 2019 and of the Group’s profit
for the 14 month period then ended

+ The Group financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European tUnion

+ The Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

+ The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc which comprise:

Group Parent company
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 October 2019 Company Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 October 2019
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 14 month Company Statement of Changes in Equity
period then ended for the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 14 month period Related notes 1 to 10 to the financial statements
ended 31 October 2019 including a summary of significant accounting policies

Cansolidated Cash Flow Statement for the 14 month period ended
31 Qctober 2019

Related notes 1 to 35 to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of freland” (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report below. We are independent of the Group and Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial staterments in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

* The disclosures in the annual report set out on pages 50 to 55 that describe the principal risks and expiain how they are being
managed or mitigated

» The Directors’ confirmation set out on page 51 in the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity

« The Directors’ staternent set out on page 132 in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the entity’s ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements
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9.8.8R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

* The Directors’ explanation set out on page 51 in the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity, over
what pericd they have done so and why they consider that pericd to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have
a reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the pericd
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

Overview of our audit approach

Whether the Directors’ staternent in relation to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule

Key audit matters .

Revenue recognition
Inventory valuation and profit recognition
Valuation of shared equity receivables

Audit scope * We performed an audit of McCarthy & Stone plc, as a single aggregated set of financial information.
Our work therefore covered 100% of Profit before tax, 100% of Revenue and 100% of Total assets
Materiality ¢ Qverall Group materiality of £3m which represents 5% of Profit before tax

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
staternents of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a wholg, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Rigk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Risk and Audit Committee

Revenue recognition

Refer to Accounting poficies (page 132
fo 139) and Note 3 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Group has reported revenues for
the period of £725.0m (2018 - £671.6m).

We identified the recognition of revenue
from sales of properties and associated
freehold reversionary interests as a key
audit matter as it is quantitatively significant
to the consclidated financial statements

as a whole.

There is potential for material misstaterment
within revenue, particularly in relation to
revenue being recorded in the wrong
period, due to cut off errors or
management bias.

We performed the following procedures over this
risk area:

We performed walkthroughs to understand the
key processes and identify key controls

We performed procedures using EY bespoke
data analytics tools to test the appropriateness
of journal entries recorded in the general ledger
by correlating sales postings with cash receipts
throughout the period

For each significant revenue stream, we tested
whether it was recognised in the correct period
by testing a sample of sales transactions either
side of the pericd 1o legal completion

We validated any matetial manual journals to

Based on our audit
procedures we have
concluded that revenue
is appropriately
recognised, and that
there was no evidence
of management bias.

assess for any evidence of management bias by
correborating to supporting documentation; and

We audited Management's application of the

new revenue standard, IFRS 15. We challenged

Management's interpretations and underlying
assumptions and performed detailed contract
reviews, We considered the completeness of
Management's assessment to gain assurance

that all material considerations have been made

for the potential impact. We assessed the
appropriateness of the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements

Please note that FYT9 5 2 14 month penod and any comparatves are for 3 12 month year ending 31 August unfess atherwise stated
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Key observations communicated

Risk Our response to the risk to the Risk and Audit Cemmittee
inventory valuation and profit recognition

Rafer to the Risk and Audit Committee We performed the following procedures over this Based on our audit
Report (page 74); Accounting policies risk area; procedures we have

(pages 132 to 139); and Note 19 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
{page 150)

At 31 October 2019, the inventory balance
includes sites in the course of construction
of £173.6m (2018 - £290.3m), land of
£57.6m (2018 - £99.6m), finished stock

of £383.9m (2018 - £385.9m) and
part-exchange properties of £93.8m
(2018 - £41.7m).

The Group's inventories are held at the
lower of the cost and net realisable value.

The cost of the inventory is calculated
using actual land acquisition costs,
construction and development related
costs and management’s assessment of
the costs which relate directly to site
developments.

We considered the valuation of inventory

a key audit matter given the relative

size of the balance in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position and

the significant judgement involved in
estimating future selling prices, costs to
complete projects and selling costs. These
judgements may have a material impact on
the calculation of net realisable valus and
therefore in determining whether the value of
a project should be written down {impaired).

As a result, the carrying value of inventory
is determined by reference to a number of
assumptions which are subject to levels of
inherent estimation and therefore may be
subject to management bias to over or
understate inventory.

The carrying value of inventory is assessed
by management for impairment by reference
to current market inputs and assumptions.

As part of the half year and year end
fimancial statement close process,
management undertake valuations to
determine the expected outcome of each
development and hence identify if any
impairment is required.

The same estimates are also used

to determine the margin on each
development which is used to determine
the profit ta be recognised.

* We performed wallkthroughs to understand the key ;(\)fgﬁlt%c:ye%;:\ait\ctgean d

processes and identify key controls profit recognised in the

* We agreed on a sample basis certain costs incurred year are not materially
to date included within land and sites in the course misstated.
of construction to source documentation

* For a sample of sites in the course of construction
based on factors such as size and risk, we compared
the estimated and the actual costs and rmargin across
the development lifecycle. We validated the key drivers
for changes in costs and margin and considered
historical results in order to assess management's
abifity to forecast accurately

* We critically determined the appropriateness of key
assumptions and the commercial viability of sites as
selected by management through comparison against
historic data and consideration of current market
conditions

+* We obtained and understood the provisions held
by management for land, sites in the course of
construction, and finished stock. We tested the
appropriateness of any provisions included within
the calculations, comparing movemerits to prior
periods, re-computing calculations and performing
sensitivity analysis on sites where the margin was
close to breakeven

* For the capitalisation of overheads, we held meetings
with Senior Management to challenge and understand
why percentages of costs capitalised in each
department had moved year on year. This was
supported by transaction testing to gain assurance
that the related costs were consistent with the
principles of IAS 2 “lnventories’. For the sample
selected we validated whether capitalisation rates
were appropriate

* We obtained and understood the workings for the
costs capitalised in the period. We then performed
sensitivity analysis over the capitalisation rates applied
by managerment to understand at what point differing
rates would result in a material error

¢ We checked the clerical accuracy of management
calculations to identify any errors or anomalies

* We performed an independent recalculation of
the general part-exchange property inventory
provisions by challenging the valuation of specific
aged sites by reference and corroboration to Jocal
market conditions, historic sales patterns and cther
market evidence

* We verified the existence and valuation of
part-exchange properties at the balance sheet
date by sampling the stock held by the Group
and obtaining proof of purchase and ownership
by independently obtaining title deeds; and

* We verified appropriate disclosure had been made
in the financial statements

122 McCarthy & Stone plc
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Qur response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Risk and Audit Committee

Valuation of shared equity receivables

Refer to the Risk and Audit Committee
Report (page 74): Accounting policies
fpages 132 to139); and Note 31 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
fpages 155 to 159)

At 31 Cctober 2019, the Group was
carrying shared equity loan receivables on
the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position of £22.1m (2018 - £25.0m).

The carrying value of these shared equity
loan receivables is based on a number
of assumptions which contain inherent
uncertainties and which require
management judgerment.

We performed the following procedures over this
risk area:

Based on our audit
procedures we have
concluded that the shared
equity loan receivables are
not materially misstated.

We performed walkthroughs to understand the
key processes and identify key controls

We critically assessed, based on historic data
and consideration of current market conditions,
the appropriateness of key assumptions such as:

* Discount rate
* Recoverability
* House price inflation

We performed sensitivity analysis over those key
assumptions as detailed above

We tested a sample of recorded redemptions

and agreed them to evidence of cash receipt,
ensuring that the amounts had been appropriately
derecognised

We tested a sample of cash receipts received and
compared them to the carrying value held to assess
the accuracy of management’s valuation assessments

We tested the integrity and arithmetical accuracy of
the calculations within management's valuation model

We had our Corporate Finance Specialists examine
management's model and its methodclogy and

due to historic redemption losses we challenged

the approach taken by management, in particular
focusing on the appropriateness of key assumptions
such as new build premiurm and house price inflation

We audited management’s application of the new
financial instruments standard, IFRS 9; and

We assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the financial statements

In the prior year, Deloitte identified cost capitalisation of overheads, valuation of shared equity receivables and carrying value of

goodwill as key audit matters,

Please note 1hat FY19 18 4 14 month penod and any comparalives are for @ 12 month year enching 37 August uniess otherwise slated
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Independent Auditor’s Report cortinuea

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

We performed an audit of McCarthy & Stone ple, as a single aggregated set of financial information. Our work therefore covered
100% of Profit befors tax, 100% of Revenue and 100% of Total assets.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audi, in evaluating the effect of identified misstaternents on
the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for deterrining the nature and extent
of our audit procedures.

We determined materiglity for the Group to be £3m, which is 5% of Profit before tax adjusted for exceptional items. We believe
that normalised Profit before tax provides us with reference to an appropriate benchmark of Group Profit before tax, normalised
to remove the impact of separately identified exceptional items as disclosed in note 7 of the financial statements. We believe this
provides us with a consistent year on year basis for determining materiality and is the most relevant performance measure to the
stakeholders of McCarthy & Stone ple.

In their prior year audit, Deloitte LLP adopted a materiality of £3m based on 5% of Profit before tax and exceptional
administrative expenses.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £9m, which is 2% of equity given that the Company is non-trading
and contains only the investment in all of the trading components in the Group. in their prior period audit, Deloitte LLP adopted
a materiality of £2.4m based on 0.5% of equity which was capped at a percentage of Group materiality,

Starting basis

. r ptional items of
Adjustments 2 Staterment of Comp

Totals £60.7m Group Profit beforg tax
Materiality of £3m (5% of materiality basis)

Materiality

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and made no changes in our final materiality from our original
assessment at planning.
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Performance materiality

The appilication of materiality at the individual account or balance level. [t is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our judgement was
that performance materiality was 50% of our planning materiality, narmely £1.5m.,

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial,

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Committee that we would report to thern all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.2m,
which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds. This is consistent to the reporting threshold adopted by Deloitte LLP in the prior year audit.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstaternents against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of
other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report including the Strategic Report and Corporate
Governance Report, other than the Financiat Staternents and our auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materiafly misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,

we are required to determine whether there is a material risstatement in the financial statements or a material misstaternent of

the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information and to report as uncorrected material misstatemenits of the other information where we conclude that those items mest
the following conditions:

* Fair, balanced and understandable (set out on page 117) - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual
Report and Financial Staterments taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit; or

* Risk and Audit committee reporting (set out on page 73) - the section describing the work of the Risk and Audit Committee
does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

* Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (set out on page 62) - the parts of the
Directors” statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2} do not properly disclose
a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ report for the financial peried for which the financial statements
are prapared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ The Strategic Report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowladge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environtment obtained in the caurse of
the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 reguires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

+ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* The Parent Company Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

* Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement {set out on page 117), the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in prepaning the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cencern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

a high fevel of assurancs, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a matenial
misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or errer and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonabily be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

The chiectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstaternent

due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud
identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged
with governance of the entity and ranagement.

Our approach was as follows:

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and determined that the
most significant are frameworks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financiai statements are those that refate 1o
the reporting framework (IFRS, the Companies Act 2006 and UK Corporate Governance Code), the Listing Rules of the UK Listing
Authority and the relevant tax compliance reguiations in the UK
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* We understood how McGCarthy & Stone plc is complying with those frammeworks by understanding how McCarthy & Stone plc's own
oversight mitigates risk through driving a culture of honesty and ethical behaviour (by placing a strong emphasis on fraud prevention).
We also made enquiries of management, internal audit, those responsible for legal and compliance procedures and the Company
Secretary. We carroborated our enquiries through our review of Board minutes, papers provided to the Risk and Audit Committee
and correspondence received from regulatory bodies and noted that there was no contradictory evidence

* \We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial staternents to material misstaternent, including how fraud might occur, by
meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it considered there was a susceptibility to fraud.
We also considered performance targets and their propensity to influence efforts made by management to manage earnings. We
considered the programmes and controls that the Group has established to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter
and detect fraud; and how Senior Managerment monitors those programmes and controts. Where the risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing journals and were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statemments were free from fraud and error

* Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify nan-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our
procedures involved journal entry testing, with a focus on journals meeting our defined risk criteria based on our understanding of
the business, enquiries of legal counsel, Group management and internal audit. In addition, we completed procedures to conclude
on the compliance of the disclosures in the Annual Report with the requirements of the relevant accounting standards, UK legislation
and the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018

A further description of our respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Gouncil’s
website: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Other matters we are required to address

* We were appointed by the Company on 23 January 2019 to audit the financial statements for the 14 month period ending
31 Cctober 2018 and subsequent financial periods

* The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and
we remain independent of the Group and the Parent Company in conducting the audit

* The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
20086. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Peter Mclver (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

27 January 2020

Notes:

7 The maintenance and integrity of tha McCarthy & Stone plc's website is the responsibility of the Directors; the work carried out by the
auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financial statements since they were inftially presented on the website

2 Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2019

14 months to 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 6 7250 6716
Cost of sales {620.1) (567.0)
Gross profit 104.9 1046
Other operating income 9 238.1 1.3
Administrative expenses (64.1) (44.0)
Other operating expenses o4 {230.5) 8.4)
Operating profit 48.4 63.5
Amortisation of brand 7 (2.4) (2.0
Exceptional items 7 (17.3) 2.0
Underlying operating profit 8.1 67.5
Finance income 10 1.0 04
Finance expense 11 (6.0) (5.8)
Protit before tax 7 43.4 581
Income tax expense 12 (8.5) (1.6}
Proflt for the period from continulng apetatlons and total comprehensive Income 34.9 46.5
Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company 351 46.2
Non-controlling interests 27 {0.2) 0.3
34.9 46.5

Notes 110 35 form part of the financiat staterments shown above, All trading derives from continuing operations,

Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 13 6.5 8.6
Oiluted (p per share) 13 6.5 8.6

Adjusted measures
Underlying operating profit
Underlying profit before tax

68.1 67.5
63.1 621

~ -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 October 2019

31 October 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Augusi 2018

Notes £m £rm
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 4.7 1.7
Intangible assets 15 24.2 26.1
Property, plant and equipment 16 13 21
Investments in associates and joint ventures 0.4 0.4
Investment properties 18 28.5 0.2
Other receivables 20 43.0 278
Total non-current assets 13941 98.3
Current assets
Inventories 19 724.9 837.5
Trade and other receivables 20 129 22.4
Cash and cash equivalents 29 36.7 57.0
Total current assets 774.5 896.9
Total assets 913.6 995.2
Equity and liabilities
Capltal and reserves
Share capital 26 43.0 43.0
Share premium 101.6 101.6
Retained earnings 624.4 617.5
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 769.0 762.1
Non-contrclling interests 27 - 1.3
Total equity 769.0 763.4
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 94.6 114.9
UK corporation tax 3.7 6.5
Land payables 23 341 56.9
Total current liabllitles 132.4 178.3
Non-current liabllitles
Long-term borrowings 24 9.6 514
Deferred tax liability 21 2.6 21
Total liabilities 144.6 231.8
Total equity and liabllitles 913.6 995.2

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above.

These financial staterments were approved by the Board on 27 January 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 October 2019

Non-

Share Share  Retained controling Total
capital premium  sarnings Total interests equity
Notes £m £m £m £t £ £m
Balance at 1 September 2017 43.0 101.6 6001 744.7 1.0 7457
Protit for the year - - 46.2 46,2 03 465
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 46.2 46.2 0.3 46.5
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 32 - - 0.8 0.8 - 0.8
Cividends 26 - - (29.6) (29.6) - (29.6)
Balance at 31 August 2018 43.0 1016 617.5 7621 1.3 7634
Profit for the year - - 35.1 351 (0.2) 34.9
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 351 35.1 (0.2) 34.9
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 32 - - 1.4 1.4 - 1.4
Cividends 26 - - (29.3) (29.3) -~ (29.3)
Acquisition of NCI without a change in control 27 - - 03 (0.3 1 1.4
Balance at 31 October 2019 43.0 1016 624.4 769.0 - 769.0

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 October 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

14 months to 12 months lo
31 Gctober 2019 31 August 2018
Notes £m £m
Net cash flow from operating activities 29 81.4 14.8
Investing activitles
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 {0.4) (0.8)
Purchases of intangible assets 15 1.4) (1.1)
Proceeds from sale of property, ptant and equipment 01 -
Cutflows in relaticn to investment properties 18 (28.3) -
Net cash used in investing activities (30.0) (1.9)
Financing actlvities
Issue of long-term borrowings 214.0 250.0
Repayment of long-term borrowings (255.0) (217.0)
Dividends paid {29.3) (29.8)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 27 (1.4) -
Net cash {used in}/from financing activities (71.7) 3.4
Net (decrease)/Increase In cash and cash equivalents (20.3) 16.3
Cash and cash equlvalents at beginning of the year 57.0 40.7
Cash and cash equlvalents at end of the year 36.7 57.0

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above.

Fease note that FY18 18 a 14 month perod and any comparatives are for 2 12 manth year ending 371 August unfess othenwise stated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of preparation

McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies
Act 2006. The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 'Group’).
The Company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about the Group.

The current year financial statements have been prepared using a 14 month accounting period, due to a change in the year end date
from 31 August to 31 October. 1t should be noted that the amounts presented in the financial statements for the current period are
therefore not entirely comparable with the prior period being the 12 months ended 31 August 2018.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Repaorting Standards as adopted by the European Union ('EU IFRS') and have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and shared equity receivables that have been measured at fair value.

The registered office is 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournermouth, Dorset, BHS 8AQ.

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group is well placed to manage business and financial risks in the current economic envirenment and
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
a period not less than 12 months from the date of this report. In April 2018, the Group extended the maturity date of its existing
£200m Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF’) from May 2021 to March 2023 with Barclays, HSBC and RBS. As at the balance sheet date,
a total of £12.0m (2018: £43.0m) has bean drawn down with a further £36.7m (2018: £57.0m) held on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position in cash, offset by promissory notes of £nil (2018: £10.0m}, resulting In net cash of £24.7m {2018: £4.0my). The
level of drawdown on the RCF fiuctuates during the period, however the Group operates within a minimum headroom requirement

of £40.0m throughout the period. If headroom were at risk, managernent can take mitigating action by curtalling uncommitted land
purchases and build costs.

In making our assessment as to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and managing the related funding risk, we have
considered forecast net debt levels whilst reflecting on financial covenants which test the Group's interest cover, gearing, tangible net
asset value and restrictions on the value of rental, shared ownership and part-exchange properties held on the balance sheet. No
breaches have been identified, Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. Further information on the Group's borrowings is given in note 24.

2. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted, and methods of computation followed, are consistent with those of the previous financial year, with
the exception of the two changes disclosed below, Specifically, the Group applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The nature
and effect of the changes, as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards, are described below. There were several other
new and amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time in FY 19, but either do not cause any
impact or have no relevance to the Group.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 was effective for the Group from 1 September 2018 and has been applied using the retrospective "cumulative effect”
method, which means comparatives are not restated, due to adjustments being solely presentational. This standard sets out
requirements for revenue recognition from contracts with customers under a five-step modet to apportion revenue against
performance obligations within a contract based upon the transfer of control. Revenue and profit on the sale of units is recognised
when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, which is deemed to occur at legal
completion. There is no change to this accounting treatment under the recognition criteria within IFRS 15 in comparison to

prior years.

There are however presentational changes to our Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income regarding the treatment

of part-exchange properties. Firstly, under IFRS 15, the requirement is to present the non-cash consideration received from a
customer within revenue. This should be measured at fair value with any provisions raised taken as a reduction to revenue. Where
the Group apply a provision against the purchased part-exchange property, this has now been accounted for as a reduction in the
fair value of the revenue received instead of as a cost of sale,

Secondly, upon subsequent resale of the property, the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties were
recognised on a net basis within cost of sales. Under IFRS 15, there is a requirement to present the proceeds from resale on

& gross basis and this has been reclassified within 'other operating income’ and the associated costs within ‘other operating
expenses’ on the basis that it is not considered part of the core trading activities of the Group due to the differences in the nature
and purpose of the properties being sold.

Finally, the Group have further reviewed alt other transactions which arise as part of a sale which could be deemed to impact the
fair vaiue of the revenue received. This review tested specific incentives and the Group challenged whether each type of "incentive”
is truly an incentive cost or is substantially a discount, This resulted in several changes of classifications of incentive type costs
incurred which are offered to customers as part of a sale from cost of sales to a reduction against revenue,
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The cumutative impact of these three changes under IFRS 15 has been illustrated below and results in the 2019 gross profit being
increased by £1.6m with a nil impact on operating profit:

Impact on Consclidated Initial 2019 Part- Part- Review of Revised 2019
Statement of result exchange fair exchange incentives result
Comprehensive Income value buy-in gross up against

adjustment adjustment discounts
Revenue 735.2 (5.4} - (4.8) 725.0
Cost of sales (631.9) 54 1.6 4.8 (620.1)
Gross profit 103.3 - 1.6 - 104.9
Other operating income 22.8 - 215.3 - 2381
Administrative expenses (64.1) - - - (64.1)
Cther operating expenses (13.6) - (216.9) - {230.5)
Operating profit 48.4 - - - 48.4

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 replaced IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement' and was effective for the Group from 1 September
2M18. The Group does not presently hotd any complex financial instruments. As a result, the principal area of impact is in applying
the new forward-looking expected credit loss model introduced for bad debt provisions. However, as the Group’s accounting policy
is not to recognise revenue until legal completion and any trade receivables are insignificant, no additional provisions have been
applied. The Group will continue to assess the impact and application of the new standard, particularly in line with expected growth
in rental and shared ownership offerings, however we do not anticipate the new standard will have a material impact on the Group's

future results or financial position.
The Group has not sarly adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

3. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied t¢ all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and its subsidiaries. For the purposes of consolidation,
subsidiaries are entities which are controlled by the Group. The Group contrels an entity when it has:

» Power over the entity through existing rights that give the ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity

s Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvernent with the entity

* The ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the investor’s returns

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with those used by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand,
except when otherwise indicated,

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of non-controliing
shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is attained {the acquisition date).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (if any} in the entity aver the net of the acquisition date

amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
Goodwill continued

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwil is allocated to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited, which consolidates all
cash-generating units ('CGUs"} of the Group. This is the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored internally, Goodwill arese in 2009
on acquisition of the assets and liabilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc and therefore management consider it appropriate to allocate
goodwill across the business in aggregate. The CGU is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the CGU may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with custormers is measured at fair value of the consideration received of receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods supplied stated net of discounts, cash incentives, rebates, VAT and other salss taxes. Revenue is recognised
when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer.

Revenue recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income but not yet invoiced is held on the Statement of
Financial Position within ‘Trade and other receivables’. Revenue invoiced but not yet recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of
Comprehensive income is held on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within “Trade and other payables’.

Revenue is classified as follows:

Unit sales

Revenue represents the consideration received from the sale of leasehold interests in apartments and freshold interests in houses
and bungalows and is recognised on legal completion, being the point at which the transfer of control and risks and rewards of
ownership has substantially occurred. Where the Group commits on completion to provide an additional cash amount above an
offer given by a third-party part-exchange provider, this additional cash amount is recognised as a deduction from revenue. Cash
incentives are considered to be a discount from the purchase price offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a
reduction of revenue. Where a completion involves an on balance sheet part-exchange, any initial provision applied to the value of
the acquired property is deemed o be a reduction to the fair value of the acquired property and is also treated as a reduction to
revenue, Where a completion involves shared ownership, the Group records the fuli sale as control of the apartment in addition to
the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the custorner, less an adjustrment to reflect the fair value of the transaction.

Freehold reversionary interests (‘FRIs’} revenue

FRIs in respect of developed sites are periodically sold to third parties. Revenue arising from these sales is recognised only to the
extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the apartment has been sold.

Operating rental income

The Group earns revenue from acting as a lessor in operating leases. Rental income arising from operating leases on investment
property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the Consolidated Statement of
Cornprahensive Income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
expensed upfront due to their insignificant value.

Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclosures,
products and sefvices, geographical areas and major customers. The Group conducts its activities through a single operating
segment, conseguently, no detailed segment information has been presented.

Nane of the Group’s customers represented more than 10% of the Group's revenue generated from the building of developments
for any reporting period presented hetein.

Other operating income

QCther operating income includes managerment services income, Net non-operating rentai incorme, customer extras, income
from insurance claims, profits arising from the disposal of undeveloped land sites and profits arising from the reafisation of shared
equity receivables.

Under IFRS 15, other operating incorme now also includes resale income on acquired part-exchange properties, These have

been presented here rather than in core revenue due to their acquisition route being incidental to the sale of a McCarthy & Stone
apartment, the properties acguired are a very different product to the specialised, age-restricted products sold by the Group and the
resale route is via local agents rather than using the McCarthy & Stone sales function. As a result, this is not considered to be a core
trading activity of the Group.
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Management services income relates to the management of service charge trusts, estate management and the provision of care
and domestic assistance to residents within our developments. Income is recognised as these services are provided.

Finance income

Income is recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest rate method, being the rate used to discount the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrurment.

Cost of sales

Costs directly attributable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales. This includes the cost of bringing the inventory into use
and divisional marketing costs that are directly attributable to sales, including show flat running costs and estate agent referral fees,
Cost of sales are recognised on a unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the forecast future margin across the development,

During the year management have refined the methodology for releasing land and build costs into cost of sales. These costs were
previously released on an equalised margin basis using a caiculation that reflected actual and forecast part-exchange incentive costs,
bulk discounts, rental valuation and part-exchange provisions across the life of the development. This led to a distorted result due to
the volume of rental and bulk sales. The revised method excludes these costs and reduces the level of judgement on margin forecast
by removing the incentive costs, bulk discounts, rental valuation and part-exchange provisions from this calculation and basing it on
the forecast list prices and land and build costs.

Build-related rebates are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are defined as items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material, non-recurring
and unusual in nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure. Exclusion of these balances, in addition to
exclusion of amortisation of brand, aflows review of the underlying trading position of the Group through the Alternative
Performance Measures. Exceptional items are detailed further in note 7.

Leases

The Group enters into a number of lease arrangements for bufldings and vehicles, none of which transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, nor control, to the lessee. Accordingly, all such leases are classified as cperating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. This accounting treatment will change for FY20 upon adoption of IFRS 16 (see note 4).

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme, which is open to all employees.

A retirement benefit scheme is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to benefit
schemes are recognised in the Consdlidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees,

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred.

Current tax

Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the camrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxabte profit and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recegnised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition {(other than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. Significant accounting policies continusd

Deferved tax continued

Defetred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and maintained to the extent that there are sufficient probable
future taxable profits available to allow the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability crystallises or the asset realised
based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the period end. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Consofidated
Statement of Comprehensive income, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to setile its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Tangible and intangible assets

Properly, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets fess their residual vafue over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method, on the following basis:

Fixtures, fittings and equipment  3-10 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assat and is recognised in income on the transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership. The Group has no class
of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued.

intangible assets - brand

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. Brands have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over their useful lives, estimated at 20
years.

Intangible assets - software

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products contrelled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet the criteria are recognised
as an expense as incurred.

Cormputer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method, which do not exceed ten years. Development expenditure relating to software has been capitalised and is detailed in note
15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying arounis of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impaimment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Recoverable amourt is the higher of: (i) fair value less costs to sell and (i) value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less thari its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or CGU} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprises completed property that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation as part of the Group's

multi-tenure offerings, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business.

investment properties are stated at fair value using a market approach, which has been supported by a RICS gualified valuation.
Transfers are made from inventories to investment properties only when there is evidence of a change in use {upon a signed rental
agreerment). The initial gain arising from the change in the fair value of investment property is included in the Consolidated Statement
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of Comprehensive Income within ‘Other operating income’ in note 9 in the period in which they arise. Subsequent fair value changes
will also be recorded within ‘Other operating income/expenses’.

Investment property cash flows are treated as investing cash flows.

Aninvestment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of ar when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounit
of the asset is recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income within *‘Other operating income/expenses’ in
the period of derecognition,

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
operating and financial policy decisions of the Company, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint contral are similar to those used to determine control over
subsidiaries. The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initfally recognised at cost. The carrying amount of
the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the
acquisition date.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate or joint venture is shown on the face of the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The
cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock comprises the cost of land purchases, which are accounted for from
the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective control of the site, building costs and attributable construction
overheads. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, seling and distribution, complstion and disposal.

Part-exchange properties are initially recognised at fair value on the acquisition date, as established by independent surveyors,
less a provision for costs to sell.

Land inventories and the associated land payables are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position from the
date of unconditional exchange of contracts.

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detailed planning consent, either through purchase of freehold land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detailed planning consent, are capitalised initially at cost. Regular reviews
are completed for impairment in the value of these investments, and a provision is made to reflect any irrecoverable element.
The impairment reviews consider the existing value of the land and assess the likelihood of achieving detailed planning consent
and the value thereof,

Provisions are established to write down land where the forecast net sales proceeds, less costs to complete, exceed the carrying
value of the land. These provisions are adjusted as selling prices and costs to complete change over time.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three menths or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the trade date that an agreement has been entered into where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract, They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except
for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
The Group held shared equity receivables and shared ownership receivables {measured at ‘fair value through profit or loss'’
{‘FVTPLY), secured mortgages (measured at ‘amortised cost’) and 'track and other receivables’ (measured at 'amortised cost’).

Plesse note that FY19 5 a 14 month perod and any comparalives are for 3 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwrse statedt McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial assets continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the other operating income line item in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is determined in the

manner described in note 31.

Shared equity receivables

Shared equity interests arise from sales incentive schemes
under which the Group acquires a contractual entittement to
receive a proportion of the proceeds on sale of an apartment.
These interests are normally protected by a ‘egal charge over
the relevant apartment and/or a restriction on title.

The value of the shared equity receivables changes in response
to an underlying variable due to them being held at fair value,
as designated upen their initial recognition. The shared equity
receivables are recognised at fair value, being the estimated
future amount receivable by the Group, discounted to present
value. The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes
into account the Directors’ views of an appropriate discount
rate, a new build premium, future house price movemenits,
historic gains and losses on redemptions and the expected
timing of receipts. The Directors revisit the future anticipated
cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the
difference between the anticipated future receipt and the initial
fair value is credited to finance income/expense.

Shared ownership receivables

Shared ownership interests arise from the sale of apartments
where the Group retains a portion of ownership of the property,

The shared ownership receivables are recognised at fair value,
being the estimated future amount receivable by the Group on
their percentage share, discounted to present value.

Where a customer staircases on their ownership share, the
Group recognises the appropriate profit or loss on the heolding
value of the equity percentage sold within the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.,

Financial assets at amortised costs

Trade receivables, loans and cther receivables that have fixed
or determinable paymenits that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as ‘trade and other receivables’. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.
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The Group does not hold trade receivables as part of its core
trading activity as the Group's accounting policy is not to

recognise revenue until legal completion, As such, there are no
significant implications of the expected credit loss maodel being
applied however will continue to be reviewed by the Group as
multi-tenure offerings (such as rental and shared ownership)
continue to grow.

interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immatenal.

Financial liahilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
fiabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting al of its
liabilities. Equity instrumerts issued by the Group are recognised
as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial Jiabilities

All financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
amortised ¢cost and include trade and other payables, land
payables, loans and land-related promissory notes.

All financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured
at fair value, net of transaction costs.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recogniséd on an effective yield basis.

The effective interast methed is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter petiod, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Pleasa nate that FY19 15 a 14 month penod and any compantives are for a 12 month year endng 31 August unless oiherwise stateq



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land-related promissory notes

Land-related promissory notes are treated as financial liabilities and are classified as borrowings due to the substance of the
contractual arrangements.

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-market based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a failure to
satisfy a non-market based vesting condition.

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 32.

Alternative Performance Measures {{APMs’)

Within the Annual Report, the Directors have adopted various APMs. These measures are not defined by International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS").

The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these items provides helpful information about the Group's
undetlying business performance.

The key APMSs that the Group has used are as follows:

* Underlying operating profit * Net cash
+ Underlying earnings per share * Underlying profit before tax
¢ Underlying operating profit margin * Return On Capital Employed (‘ROCE’)

All ‘undertying’ items refer to the adjusted measure being reported before ‘exceptional’ and ‘adjusted cost’ items, Specifically, the
exceptional items are one-off, and their inclusion does not present consistent and comparable results. The amortisation of brand is

a non-trading factar and its inclusion is not useful in determining the trading profits of the Group. ROCE is used as a metric to ensure
efficient and effective use of capital and is a key metric for determining Director remuneration {including LTIP targets). ROCE is also a
comparable metric used by our peer housebuilder group.

A full reconciliation between the statutory results and the underlying measures and a ROCE calculation can be seen within note 7.
Net cash has been defined and calculated within note 25. Adjusted cost and exceptional items have been defined within note 7.

4. Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of approval of the financial statements, the following standards, interpretations and amendments to standards have
been issued, but are not yet effective for the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019. This list of new and amended standards
and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have an impact on the financiat statements when applied
once they become effective.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 replaces |IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 '‘Operating
Leases-Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’ and is effective
for the Group from 1 November 2018, This standard brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by lessees, IFRS
16 requires the recognition of a ‘right-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position of
the lessee, In the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the existing operating lease charges (the majority of which is currently
recognised within operating profit} will be replaced by a depreciation charge against the ‘right-of-use’ asset. Additionalty, there
will be an interest cost in relation to the lease liability which will be recognised within finance expenses.

The Group have opted to apply IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective transition approach, whereby the Group will measure
right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liabilities on the date of transition.

The Group will alsc take advantage of several practical expedients available to lesseas. Thess exemptions are:
* Exclusion of all leases with term dates that end within 12 months of the date of application

* Exclusion of low value leases (e.g. printers and laptops})

* Application of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

The Group have classified its leases into two categories of assets - praperty leases and vehicle leases.

Please noie that FY19 15 & 14 month penod and any comparatives ara for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless ctherwise stated McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repart 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cortinued

4. Standards issued but not yet effective continusd
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ continued

During 2018, the Group has performed a detailed impact assessment of IFRS 16 and a summary of the financial impact upon
transition is as follows:

£m
Assets
Property, plant and equipment (right-of-use assets) 7.6
Liabllities
Lease habilities 7.6

Net Impact on equlity -

Other standards

The Group has considered the impact of Annual Improvements 2015-2017, Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates
and Joint Vientures’, IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’, and Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits on plan
amendment, curtaiiment or settlement’ which will be applicable to the Group for the financial year commencing 1 Novernber 2019,
These standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.

8. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on histarical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the pericd of the revision and future pericds if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, one critical judgement has been made in relation to exceptional items. A judgement has
been made that the ifems in FY 19 are of significant cost, non-recurring and unusual to the normal activity of the Group and therefore
a decision was made to reclassify these items separately on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

No other critical judgerments are deemed to have been made that have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements,

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions the Group makes about the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period. This has been split between those that could result in a material adjustment within one year and those over
the longer-term,

Critical assumptions and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group does not have any key assumptions conceming the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty in the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilties within the next
financial year.

Other assumptions and sources of estirnation uncertainty
These assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty carry risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities over the lenger-term.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is tested to determine whether the estimation of the value in use of the CGU is greater than the carrying value of the
asset. The value in use calculation includes an estimate of the future forecast cash fiows and requires the determination of a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows. Details of the impairment review calculation and
sensitivity analysis performed are included in note 17.

Fair value of shared equily receivables

Shared equity receivables are recognised at the fair value of future anticipated cash receipts that takes into account the Directors’
view of an appropriate discount rate, a new build premium, future house price movements, the expected timing of receipts and
historic gains and loses on redemptions. Shared equity receivables are reviewed at each reporting date using a variety of estimates
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5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

that anticipate future cash flow from assets. Further information regarding the assumptions and sensitivity effects of a reasonabie
possible change across all schermes can be seen within note 31. The significant risk is specifically pinpointed to the Group's
substantially largest shared equity scherme which was offered between FY12 and FY17 of which the revaluation is driven by
changes in discount rates and house price inflation. Should both of these assumyptions be impacted by a reasonably possible
change of a 1% increase or decrease, the effect has been illustrated below:

Increase assumptions
by 1%
£m

Decrease assumptions
by 1%
£m

1.6
(1.5)

(1.4}
1.6

Discount rate

House price inflation

Cost capitalisation of overheads
Within inventory there are a number of areas of estimation uncertainty, including determination of site margin, of which cost

capitalisation of overheads is the most significant. Inventory includes a proportion of design, procurement, construction, health

and safety, interior design, commercial and planning costs. Costs associated with these functions are reviewed by management

fo attribute those costs relating directly to the cost of the developments to inventory and those that relate to general business

overheads to expenses. The assumptions used are reviewed annually by the function heads before being proposed to the Risk

and Audit Committee.
Cost capitalisation involves estimates of the proportion of costs that are directly attributable to sites. The key source of

estimation uncertainty in this area relates to the percentage of time spent by our divisions on directly attributable site activities.
The percentage of their time which is capitalised ranges between 50-78% (2018: 69-85%) for the various functions. Overhead

costs capitalised during the year amount to £19.6m (twelve months to 31 August 2018: £23.7m). If the prior year cost
capitalisation rates were to be used, the value of the overhead costs capitalised would have increased by £1.0m,

6. Revenue
14 months to 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£fm £m
Unit sales - external customers 677.6 6428
Unit sales - revenue from an associate 16.7 -
FRI revenue 30.3 28.8
Rental revenue 0.4 -
725.0 671.6

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties. All revenue was generated within the UK. No individual customer is significant
to the Group’s revenue in any period, however unit sales revenue includes the sale of a portfolio of 113 show flats and sales offices to
Waverstone LLP for which the Group has recognised its proporticnal share of the transaction resulting in revenue of £16.7m and gain

far the year of £2.7m. Further detail can be seen within note 34,

Revenue received on the disposal of part-exchange properties is shown within other operating income (see note 9),

7. Profit before tax

Profit befare tax has been arrived at after charging:
14 months to

12 months to

31 October 2019 31 August 2018
Notes £m Em
Amortisation of intangibles 15 3.2 2.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 11 1.1
Operating lease arrangements 28
Land and buildings 2.0 1.7
Plant and machinery 2.3 26
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 524.0 480.0
Staff costs 8 91.7 240
Share-based payments charge 32 1.4 0.8
Movement in inventory provision (including part-exchange properties) (0.6) 15
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7. Profit before tax continued

Reconciliation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax

The following tables present a reconciliation between the statutory profit measures disclosed on the Consolidated Statement of
Cornprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance.

Exceptional items are iterns which, due to their one-off, non-trading and non-recurring nature, have been separately classified by

the Directors in order to draw them to the attention of the reader.

Adjusted cost items are items which are quantitively or qualitatively material and are preserted separately within the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of thase items provides helpful
information about the Group’s underlying business performance. Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order to reconcile to
undertying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not believe this cost reflects the underlying trading

of the business.

Exceptional Adjusted cost
Statutory € riler::sl A"m:':f brl-nd Underlying
14 months to 31 October 2018 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 48.4 17.3 2.4 68.1
Finance income 10 1.0 - - 1.0
Finance expense 11 (6.0} - - {6.0)
Profit before tax 43.4 17.3 2.4 63.1
Income tax expense {8.5) 3.3) (0.5) (12.3)
Profit for the year 34.9 14.0 1.8 50.8
Altributable to non-controlling interest (0.2} - - {0.2)
Attributable to owners of the Company 351 14.0 1.9 51.0
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 6.5 2.6 0.4 a.5
Dituted (p per share) 6.5 2.6 0.4 9.5

The exceptional costs in 2019 represent the cost of land which will no longer be developed net of any residual tand value to be
recovered of £7.2m (2018: £nil), redundancy costs of £3.8m {2018: £0.8m) and consultants’ fees in relation to the strategic review

of £6.3m (2018: £1.2m)

Exceptional Adjusted cost
Exgeptional Amortisation ot
Statutory iterns bia Underlying
12 months 1o 31 August 2018 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 83.5 2.0 2.0 67.5
Finance income 10 0.4 - - 0.4
Finance expense b (5.8} - - (5.8)
Profit before tax 581 2.0 2.0 621
Income tax expense {11.6) {0.4) (0.4) (12.4)
Profit for the year 46.5 16 1.6 49.7
Attributable to non-controlling interests 0.3 - - 0.3
Attributable to owners of the Company 46.2 1.8 1.6 49.4
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 8.6 0.3 0.3 9.2
Diluted (p per share} 8.6 0.3 0.3 9.2
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Key profit related metrics, underlying operating profit margin and return on capital employed (‘(ROCE"), have been reconciled below:

Underlying operating profit margin: calculated as underlying operating profit {peing operating profit adding amortisation of brand and
exceptional administrative expenses) divided by revenue,

ROCE: calculated by dividing underlying operating profit by the average of opening and closing Tangible Gross Asset Value (TGAV" -
calculated as tangible net asset value less net cash) in the year.

14 months to 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m
Revenue 725.0 6716
Operating profit 48.4 63.5
Operating profit margin 7% 9%
Amortisation of brand 2.4 20
Exceptional administrative expenses 17.3 2.0
Underlying operating profit 68.1 67.5
Underlying eperating profit margin 9% 10%
Cpening net assets 763.4 7457
Opening goodwill (41.7) MN.7
Cpening intangible assets {26.1) (27.6)
Opening net cash (4.0} {30.7}
Qpening tangible gross asset value 691.6 645.7
Closing net assets 769.0 7634
Closing goodwill a1.7) (41.7)
Closing intangible assets (24.2) (26.1)
Closing net cash (24.7) (4.0
Closing tangible gross asset value 678.4 691.6
Average tangible gross asset value 685.0 668.7
Underlying operating profit 681 67.5
ROCE 10% 10%
Auditor’s remuneration
14 months to 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m
Fees payable to the Group's auditor
Audit of the Company and Consolidated Financial Statements 0.2 0.2
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries - -
Audit related assurance services - -
Other services - -
0.2 0.2

Audit of the Company's subsidiaries amounted to £30,000 (2018: £30,000). Audit related assurance services amounted to £50,000
{2018: £35,000) in respect of a review of the half year results. Other services amounted to £nil (2018: £1,600). There were no other
fees payable to the Group auditor in the period.
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8. Staff costs
Staff costs for the period include Directors’ emoluments, which are detailed within this note:

14 months to
31 October 2019

1Z menths to
31 August 2018
£m

£m
Wages and salaries 74.9 79.8
Social security costs 8.6 84
Other pension costs 5.2 4.1
Share-based payments 14 0.8
Termination payments 1.6 0.9
917 94.0
The monthly average number of persons, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
Number Number
Ctfice management and staff 844 995
House managers 1,401 1,166
Construction staff 188 241
2,433 2,402
A1 31 October 2019 the Group employed 2,523 people (31 August 2018: 2,512).
Directors’ emoluments
Amounts recognised in respect of Board Directors’ emoluments:
14 monthato 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m
Wages and salaries 2.5 1.9
Social security costs 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments 0.4 -
Other pension costs’ 0.2 0.2
Termination payments - 0.5
3.4 2.9

' Includes salary supplements in lisu of pension

The emoluments of the highest paid director was £0.9m {2018: £1.3m), including pension contributions of nil (2018: nil). The number

of Directors in the Company pension plan was one (2018: ane).
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14 months to 12 months to

31 October 2019 31 August 2018

Other operating income £m £m
Qther income 15.9 9.8
Valuation gains from investment property 6.6 -
Non-care business revenue 0.3 15
Part-exchange revenue 215.3 -
238.1 1.3

Other income arises on the services provided by Group subsidiaries tc manage certain developments. Non-core business revenue relates

to income such as customer extras.

IFRS 15 was effective for the Group from 1 September 2018 and as part of this standard the Group has to comply with presentational

changes to the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income regarding the treatment of part-exchange properties. When the Group
re-sells a part-exchange property, the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties are now required to be presented on a
gross basis within ‘other operating income’ and “other operating expenses'. For further information please see note 2.

14 months to
31 Cctober 2019

12 menths to
31 August 2018

Other operating expenses £m £m
Other expenses 13.6 8.4
Part-exchange expenditure 216.9 -
230.5 8.4

10. Finance income
14 months to 12 ronths to

31 October 2018
£m

31 August 2018
£m

Gain in fair valug of shared equity receivables 0.9 0.3
Interast income raceived 0.1 01
1.0 0.4

11. Finance expense
14 monthg to 12 months to
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m Em
Loan interest and overdraft fees 34 3.6
Promissory note interest and fees 0.3 0.1
Refinancing issue costs 1.0 0.6
Loss in fair value of shared equity receivables 1.3 1.5
6.0 58

The total interest expense, determined using the effective interest method, for financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value

through profit or loss was £3.1m (2018: £3.0m).
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12. Income tax expense

14 months to 12 months to
31 Octaber 2019 31 August 2018
Notes £m £m

Corporation tax charges
Current period 7.9 1.3
Adjustments in respect of pricr periods 0.1 -

Deferred tax charges

Current period 21 0.6 0.3
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {0.1) -
8.5 1.6

The tax charge for each period can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income
as follows:

14 months to 12 months to

31 October 2019 31 August 2018

£m £m

Profit before tax 43.4 581

Tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) 8.2 11.0
Tax effect of

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 0.2 0.3

Share options timing ditference 0.1 0.3

Tax charge for the period 8.5 1.6

As at the year end date, a reduction in the rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020 is substantively enacted. The UK deferred
tax balances at 31 October 2019 have been calculated based on the expected rate at which the liability will unwind.

146 McCarthy & Stone pic Prease nate that FY19 s a 14 month penod and any comparatves are for 2 12 month year ending 31 August unkess othenwise stated




STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit for the financial period attributable to owners of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the peniod. The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares during the
14 month pericd ended 31 Octocber 2019 was 537.3m for the basic and 543.9m for the diluted calculations, giving a statutory

earnings per share for the 14 month pericd ended 31 October 2019 of 6.5p for basic and 6.5p for diluted.

14 months to 12 months to

31 October 2019 31 August 2018

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (£m) 35.1 46.2
Weighted average no. of shares {m} 537.3 537.3
Basic earnings per share (p) 6.5 8.6

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume the conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares. At 31 October 2019, the Company had two categories of potentially dilutive ordinary shares: 7.2m £nil cost

share options under the LTIP and 2.1m share options under the SAYE.

A caleulation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share option and the fair value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which is the unamortised
share-based payments charge. The difference between the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value and the

total number of options is used in the diluted earnings per share calculation,

14 months to 12 months {0
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
Profit used to determine diluted EPS {£m) 35.1 46.2
Weighted average number of shares (m) 537.3 537.3
Adjustments for
Share opticns - LTIP (m) 4.4 1.3
Share options - SAYE (m) 21 -
Shares used to determine diluted EPS (m) 543.9 538.6
Diluted earnings per share (p) 6.5 8.6
14. Goodwill
£m
Cost
At 1 September 2017, 31 August 2018 and 31 October 2019 .7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2017, 31 August 2018 and 31 October 2019 any

No impairment losses have been recognised in any of the reporting periods presented herein.

Goodwill arose as a result of an acquisition in 2009 of the assets and liabilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc. As the goodwill relates
to the business as a whole, it is allocated to the CGU, as defined in note 3. For key assumptions in determining recoverable amounts

in goodwill impairment testing, refer to note 17.
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15. Intangible assets

Brand Software Total
£m €m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2017 41,4 4.7 461
Aaditions - 1.1 11
At 31 August 2018 41.4 58 47.2
Additions - 14 1.4
Disposals - 0.2) (0.2)
At 31 October 2019 41.4 7.0 48.4
Amortisation
At 1 September 2017 (17.3) (1.2} (18.5)
Charge for the year 2.0) (0.6) {2.6)
At 31 August 2018 (19.3) (1.8) (21.1}
Charge for the year (2.4) (0.8} {3.2)
Eliminated on disposal - 0.1 0.1
At 31 October 2019 (21.7) {2.5) {24.2)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2018 221 4.0 26.1
At 31 October 2019 18.7 4.5 24.2

Brand assets represent the McCarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009. Brand assets
have 9 years and 5 months of useful life remaining.

All amortisation charged is recognised in administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

16. Property, plant and equipment

£m
Cost
At 1 September 2017 7.8
Additions 0.8
Disposals (2.4)
At 31 August 2018 6.2
Additions 0.4
Disposals (2.0)
At 31 October 2019 4.6
Accumulated depreclation and Impairment
At 1 September 2017 (5.4)
Charge for the year (1.1)
Eliminated on disposal 2.4
At 31 August 2018 {4.1)
Charge for the period {n
Eliminated on disposal 1.9
At 31 October 2019 3-3)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2018 2.1
At 31 Cctober 2019 1.3

148 McCarthy & Stone plc Flease note thal FY19 13 4 14 MONth perod and any comparatives are for 4 12 month vear ending 31 AUGUST UNiess otherwrse stated



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Impairment testing

During the periods reported in the financial statements, no impairments have been recognised against the Group'’s assets. For each
reported period, management have performed an impairment review of goodwill, being an indefinitely lived asset, and intangible
assets. The Group only has one CGU, as defined in note 3.

The recoverable amount (value in use) was determined by discounting the forecast future cash flows of the GGU. Three years of

net operating cash flows were calculated using the Group's three year business plan for FY20-22. The cash flows for FY23 reflected
investment in land and build required to deliver ¢.2,300 units p.a. and were extrapolated in perpetuity assuming a 3% p.a. growth for
FY23 and FY24 and a 5% p.a. growth thereafter, The key assumptions for the value in use calculation were:

* Discount rate: this is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
business. Accordingly, the rate of 12.8% (FY18: 10.0%)} is considered by the Directors to be the appropriate pre-tax risk adjusted
discount rate, being the Group’s estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of capital

¢ Sales completion volumes: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon regional market
conditions, taking into account historic sales curves and expected reservation rates. Volumes for FY23 and beyond were based
on a flat delivery of ¢.2,300 units p.a.

* Expected changes in selfing prices: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon regional
rmarket conditions, pricing for existing pipeline sites and product type. Consistent with FY19, no house price inflation has been
assumed

* FRIincome: this is based on the assumption that the Group will continue selling FRI during FY20-22

* Expected build costs: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon the expected costs of
completing all aspects of each individual development and management best estimates to deliver build cost reductions as part of
the strategy

These assumptions are reviewed and revised annually in light of current economic conditions and the future ocutlock for the business,

The result of the value in use exercise concluded that the recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying value by £309.5m
and there has been no impairment to goodwill and intangible assets.

Management has modelled two scenarios by applying reasonably possible downsides to each of the key assumptions applied in
the value in use calculations.

Scenario 1: Management have performed a sensitivity analysis based on an increase in the pre-tax discount rate by 1% reflecting
a potential change in the market assessments of the time value of money. This sensitivity analysis showed that no goodwill and
intangible assets impairment would arise under this scenario.

Scenario 2: Management have performed a sensitivity analysis by combining several downsides assuming that the appropriate
steps are taken to mitigate the impact of the downsides. These were as follows:

* Based on continuing subdued secondary housing market and current reservation rates, management have applied 15.0%
volume downside from May 2020. Volumes for FY23 and beycnd were based on a flat delivery of ¢.1,700 units p.a.

* Management have applied a 7.5% downside on pricing in the London and South East division from May 2020, reflecting
pressures in the market in these geographical regions and a 5.0% downside in all other regions

¢ Additional discount has been modelied on a rental portfolio

* Management have modelled the removal of 50% of FRI income from May 2020 given the uncertainty over the long-term
sustainability of this revenue stream

* Management have assumed 5% build cost inflation on FY20 first occupations
* All build cost savings targeted as part of the strategic review have been removed from FY21 and FY22 first occupations

* Management have assumed that this scenario will be mitigated by aborting uncommitted land purchases and related build
costs, ceasing bonus and dividends

This sensitivity analysis showed that no goodwill and intangible asset impairment would arise under this scenario.

No impairment charges were recorded on itemns of property, plant and equipment throughout the current or prior period.
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18. Investment properties

Rental Other Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2018 - 0.2 0.2
Additions 217 - 217
Revaluation 5.9 0.7 6.6
At 31 October 2019 276 0.9 28.5

The Group’s investment properties consist of McCarthy & Stone properties that are held as rental apartments for capital appreciation
and are held at fair value using a market based valuaticn. The fair value is based on an external valuation carried out by independent
valuation consultants.

19. Inventories
31 October 2019 31 August 2018

£m £m

Land heid for development 57.6 99.8
Sites in the course of construction 179.6 290.3
Finished stock 393.9 3859
Part-exchange properties 93.8 41.7
724.9 817.5

Days in inventory amounted to 440 days in 2019 (2018: 590 days).
inventory days are calculated by taking period end inventory (excluding part-exchange properties) divided by cost of inventories
recognised as an expense.

20. Trade and other receivables
31 October 2019 31 August 2018

£m £m

Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade receivables 3.2 11.9
Other debtors and prepayments 9.7 10.5
12.9 22.4

31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m

£m
Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Trade receivables due from an associate 14.8 -
Secured mortgages 2.5 2.8
Shared equity receivables 221 25.0
Shared cwnership receivables 3.6 -
43.0 27.8

Secured maortgages disclosed above are measured at amortised cost. Shared equity receivables and shared ownership receivables
are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and non-current receivables approximates their
fair value.

Trade receivables from an associate represents balances due from Waverstone LLP and is subseguent to a fair value adjustment
of £0.4m and an expected credit loss adjustment of £0.9m.
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21. Deferred tax liability

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group:

Gther

temporary
ditferences Total
£m £m
At 1 September 2017 {1.8) {1.8)
Statement of Comprehensive Income charge {0.3) {C.3)
At 31 August 2018 2.1 (2.1}
Statement of Comprehensive Income charge {0.5) (0.5}
At 31 October 2019 (2.6) (2.6)

The movement in other temporary differences mostly relate to tax and accounting differences in the treatment of share-based
payments.

Deferred tax assets of £0.1m (2018: £0.1m) in relation to capital losses carred forward of £0.3m {2018: £0.3m) were not recognised
as, despite there being no expiry date for these losses, thera is insufficient evidence that they will ever be utilised.

22, Trade and other payables

31 October 2019 31 August 2018

£m £rm

Trade payables 237 25.9
Other taxes and social security costs 23 241
Accrued expenses 38.9 58.0
Other creditors and deferred income 29.7 289
94.6 114.9

Trade payables and accrued expenses principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs,
The average credit period taken for trade purchases was 17 days during 2019 (2018: 18 days).

No material interest costs have been incurred in relation to such payables. The Group policy is to ensure that payables are paid
within the pre-agreed credit terms and to avoid incurring penalties and/ar interest on late payments. Other creditors include sales
taxes, property taxes and customer deposits. The Directors consider that the camying amount of trade payables approximates their
fair value.

No purchases are made on extended payment terms,

23. Land payables

31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m

Land payables 341 56.9

Land payables relate to paymaents due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional contract.
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24. Borrowings

31 Cctober 2019 31 August 2018
m

Long-term borrowings £m
Loans (Revolving Credit Facility) 12.0 430
Unamortised issue costs 2.4) (1.6)
Promissary notes - 10.0

9.6 51.4

Qutstanding at
31 Octaber 2019 31 August 2018
m £m

Maturity
Revolving Credit Facility March 2023 12.0 43.0

In April 2019, the Group extended the maturity date of its existing revolving credit facility from May 2021 to March 2023 with Barclays,
HSBC and RBS. The nominal interest rate of this facility has increased froma 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1,6% to a 1, 3 or 6 month
LIBOR + 1.7% depending on the length of the drawdown,

The RCF imposes financial covenants which test the Groups interest cover, net tangible assets, gearing and restrictions on the value
of rental, shared ownership and part-exchange properties held on the balance sheet; all of which the Group is compliant with.

The RCF is secured by a floating charge over the assets of McCarthy & Stone ple, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited,
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Living Lirmited, McCarthy & Stone Total Care Managernent
Limited, McCarthy & Stone Rental Properties Limited and McCarthy & Stone Rental Properties No.2 Limited.

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities has been detailed below:

2019

£m
{Net issue) amontisation Issue of
At1 September 2018 Net cash flow of issue costs promissory notes At ) October 2019
Long-term borrowings
Loans 43.0 (31.0) - - 12.0
Unamortised issue costs (1.6) - {0.8) - (2.4)
Promissory notes 10.0 (10.0) - - -
Total liabilitles from
financing activities 51.4 (41.0) (0.8) - 9.6
2018
£m
Awnortisation ot lssue of
At 1 September 2017 Net cash flow issue costs promlssory notes At 31 August 2018

Long-term borrowings

Loans 10.0 33.0 - - 43.0
Unamortised issue costs {2.0) 0.4 - {1.6)
Promissory notes - - 10.0 10.0
Total llabllities from
financing activities 8.0 33.0 0.4 10.0 51.4
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25. Net cash
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m

Loans and borrowings 9.6 514
Add back unamortised issue costs 24 16
Cash and cash equivalents (36.7) (57.0)
Net cash (24.7) 4.0

Net cash is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term borrowings
{excluding unamortised debt issue costs).

26. Share capital

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. There is no limit to authorised share capital.

31 Oetober 2019 31 August 2018
m

Allotted and Issued ordinary shares £m

8p each fully paid: 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2018: 537.329,434) 43.0 43.0

Dividends on equity shares

The interim dividend of 1.9p (2018: 1.9p) was approved by the Board on 10 April 2019 and paid on 11 June 2079 to all erdinary
shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 3 May 2019. The ex-dividend date was 2 May 2019,

The final dividend proposed by the Board is 3.5p (2018: 3.5p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dividend for the period of 5.4p
{2018: 5.4p). It will be paid on 3 April 2020 to thase sharsholders who are on the register at 6 March 2020 subject to approval at
the Company's Annual General Meeting. The ex-dividend date is 5 March 2020. These financial statemenits do not reflect the final
dividend payment.

The cost of the dividends on equity paid within the financial period amounted to £29.0m (2018: £29.0m). Dividends from subsidiaries
paid externally from consolidated joint ventures totalled £0.3m (2018: £0.6m).

27. Acquisition of non-controlling interests

On 29 July 2019, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the shares and voting interests in YourlLife Management Services
Limited {'YLMS") for a cash consideration of £1.4m. As a result, the Group’s equity interest increased from 50% to 100%.

Previously, the Group had control of the business, due to its power to appoint the majarity of the Directors and contral over the
relevant activities of the entity, and therefore consolidated the YLMS results as a subsidiary. The subsequent acquisition of shares
has therefore been treated as an equity transaction.

fm
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired 1.1
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (1.4)
Decrease In equity attributable to owners of the Company (0.3}
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28. Operating lease arrangements

14 months to 12 months to

31 October 201% 31 August 2018

£m Em

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense 4.3 4.3

At the period end, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:

14 months to 12 months to

31 Getober 2019 31 August 2018

As alessee: £m £m
Within one year 2.5 4.2
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5.0 5.5
After five years 1.3 1.0
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 8.8 10.7

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties and cars, Rent reviews and
break clauses apply 1o leased property agreernents.

At the period end, the Group had commitments due to be received for future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

14 months to 12 menths to
31 October 2018 31 August 2018
As alessor: Em £m
Within one year 1.7 01
In the second to fifth years inclusive - 01
After five years - -
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 1.7 0.2
29. Notes to the cash flow statement 14 montha to 12 monthe t
31 October 2019 31 August 2018
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial period 34.9 46.5
Adjustments for
Income tax expense 12 8.5 116
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 3.2 2.6
Share-based payments charge 32 14 0.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 11 11
Finance expense 1 6.0 5.8
Finance income 10 (1.0} (C.4)
Aevaluation of inventories 1o investment properties 9 (6.6) -
Profit from a transaction with related party 6 2.7) -
Operating cash flows before movements In working capital 44.8 68.0
{Increase) in trade and cther receivables (5.8) (9.8)
Cecreasef{increase) in inventories 99.2 (47.1)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (42.4) 19
Cash generated by operations 95.8 30.2
Interest received 0.1 01
Interest paid 3.7} (4.0)
Income taxes paid {10.8) {11.5)
Net cash flow from operating activities 81.4 14.8
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 36.7 570

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

The movements in trade and other payables includes the movemnent in land payables.
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30. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme which is open to all employees.

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees’ remuneration and accrued pending payment to the benefit scherme, no
further obligations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely separate
from the Group.

The benefit scheme charge for the period represents contributions payable to the benefit scheme and amounted to £5.2m for the
14 month period ended 31 October 2019 {12 months to 31 August 2018: £4.1m). Unpaid contributions amounted to £0.4m as at
31 October 2019 (31 August 2018: £0.4m).

31. Financial risk management

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdratts, trade receivables, other financial assets and trade and
other payables.

31 October 2018 31 August 2018

Categories of financial instruments £m £m
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss
Shared equity receivables 2241 250
Shared ownership receivables 3.6 -
At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 36.7 57.0
Trade and cther receivables 11 13.3
Secured mortgages 25 28
66.0 981
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 55.5 89.5
Land payables 341 56.9
Loans 9.6 41.4
Land-related promissory notes - 10.0
99,2 197.8

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital (being debt, cash and cash eguivalents and equity) to ensure entities within the Group have a strong
capital base in arder to continue as going concerns, to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis for the future
deveiopment of the business while maximising the return to stakeholders.

The RCF imposes financial covenants, which is normal for such agreements, all of which the Group is compliant with. The Group
manages a robust internal forecasting and review process to ensure it operates within these capital requirements.

The Group does not routinely make additional issues of capital, other than for the purpose of raising finance for the management of
the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value in future.

Share-based payment schemes allow senicr employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group in order to ensure
the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the aims of all shareholders.
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31. Financial risk management continued
Financial risk management

The Group's finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury. It co-ordinates access to financial markets and
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude. The risks reviewed include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Housing market risk management

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to macroeconomic risks such as deflation and the cyclical nature of UK property prices.
A deterioration in the economic outlook could have a significant impact on the Group’s financial performance and the Group has
the following procedures which mitigate its market related cperational risk:

* The Group closely monitors industry indicators and assesses the potential impact of different economic scenarios

* Decisions to allocate new capital to land and build are managed centrally through the Group Investment Committee,
membership of which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the National Finance Director and the
LLand and Planning Director

¢ The Group aims to maintain a national and product spread of developments to ensure that it is not reliant on one particular
location, development or product

* The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at divisional and Group level

The value of the Group’s house price linked financial assets is sensitive to UK house prices since the amount repayable is

dependent upon the market price of the property to which the asset is linked. At 31 October 2019, if UK house prices were 1%

lower for a one-year period and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's house price flinked financial assets would decrease
in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1.5m (2018: £1.7m) with a comresponding reduction in both the result for the year and equity.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has a low exposure to credit risk due to the nature and legal framework of the UK housing industry.

In certain circumstances the Group offers sales incentives resutting in a long-term debt being recognised under which the Group will
receive a proportion of the resale proceeds of an apartment. The Group's equity share is protected by a registered entry on the title
and usually represents the first interest in the property. A reduction in property values leads to an increase in the credit risk of the
Group in respect of such sales.

The credit risk relating to shared equity receivables is deemed immaterial as the value is recovered though subsequent disposal of
the related asset. As a result, management consider the credit quality of these receivables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting in low credit risk. Exposure to house price sensitivity is built into the fair value calculation.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. There is no matenal
concentration of credit risk in respect of one individual customer.

The carrying amount recorded for financial assets in the financial statements is net of impairment losses and represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk. No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties.

Where the Group infrequently offers deferred payment terms on bulk sales, an expected credit loss model is used to prudently apply
a provision using a probability based scenario analysis. The Group recognises any further impairment gain or loss at each repetting
period where the credit risk on a financial instrument has changed significantly since initial recognition.
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Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabiiities. The Group's
strategy in relation to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow to meet all its potential liabilities as
they fall due. The Group produces cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the Group against the available
facilities, The principal risks with these cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volumes and prices in line with

current forecasts,

The maturity of the financial liabilities of the Group at 31 October 2019 and 31 August 2018 are as follows:

2019

Carrying Contractual

value cash flows Within 1 year 1-5 yoars

£m £m fm fm

Loans {net of borrowing costs) 9.6 15.3 1.7 13.6
Other financial liabilities carrying interest - - - -
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 103.2 103.2 103.2 -
Total 112.8 118.5 104.9 13.6

2018
Carrying Contractual

value cash flows within 1 year 1-5 years

£m £m Em £m

Loans {net cf borrowing costs) 41.4 487 2.2 46.5
Other financial liabilities carrying interest 10.0 10.3 0.2 101
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 146.4 146.4 146.4 -
Total 197.8 205.4 148.8 56.6

Other financial liabilities carrying interest are promissory notes (held at the prior year end), which attract availability and discount fees.
Financial liabilities carrying no interest are trade and other payables and land payables. The timing and amount of future cash flows
given in the table above is based on the period end position.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk reflects the Group’s exposure to fiuctuations to interest rates in the market. The risk arises because the Group's RCF
is subject to floating interest rates based on LIBOR.

In the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019, if UK interest rates had been 0.5% higher or lower, as this is a reasonably possible
change, and all other variances were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £1.3m {12 months ended
31 August 2018: £0.7m), Calculations have been based on borrowing values at each month end.

Fair value of financial instruments
Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial
staterments approximate their fair values.

Bank and other loans

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest flows.
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31. Financial risk management continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

All financial instruments are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which their fair value is observable:

o {evel 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quicted prices included within Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices)

* Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not :

based on observable market data {uncbservable inputs)

The financial instruments held by the Group that are measured at fair value are the shared equity receivables and shared cwnership
receivables which are both measured at fair value through profit or loss using methods associated with Level 3. At 31 October
2019, the shared equity receivables were valued at £22.1m (31 August 2018: £25.0m) and the shared ownership receivables were

valued at £3.6m (31 August 2018: £nil}.

Financial assets are recorded at fair value, being the estimated amount receivable by the Group, discounted to present day values. !

The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors' views of an appropriate discount rate, a new
build premium, future house price movements, historic gains and losses on redemptions and the expected timing of receipts.
These assumptions cover a varety of different schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below, The assumptions

are reviewed at each period end.

Shared equity receivables

Assumptions 2018 2018
Discount rate 3.8t043% 38t044%
New build premium 0to 5% 010 5%
House price inflation 0 to 6% O to 6%
Timing of receipt 5to 10 yrs 510 11 yrs

' We apply future HPI over the next five years kased on industry forecasts. The 2020 HPl used in the calculation varies between

2.0-6.0% dependant on geographical location.

2019
Increase

2019
Decreage

. by 1%/1 year
Sensltivity ettect on value of other financial assets (less)/mere £m

by 1%41 year
£m

Discount rate 1.7)
New build premium (0.2)
House price inflation 1.6
Timing of receipt {0.4)

1.9
0.2

(1.5
0.4

The fair value of the shared equity receivables are based on the external available data. The sensitivity effect of a 1%/1year change is
representative of management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible change based on management’s expectations of changes in

economic conditions.

The Directors review the anticipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the

anticipated future receipt and the subsequent fair value is credited to finance income/expense.
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The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the 12 month period ended 31 August 2018 and the 14 month

period ended 31 October 2019:

2018

Shared equity

receivables

£m

Opening balance 28.9
Additions -
Disposals 2.7)
Revaluation gains and (losses) recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (1.2)
Closing balance 25.0

2019

Shared equity

raceivables
£m
Opening balance 25.0
Additions N
Disposals {2.6)
Revaluation gains and {losses) recognised in the statement of comprehensive income {0.3)
Closing balance 22.1
Shared ownership
Assumptions 2019 2018
Discount rate 4.3% nf/a
New build premium 5% nfa
Timing of receipt 10 yrs n/a
The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019:
2019
Shared
ownership
receivables
£m
Opening balance -
Additions 3.6
Closing balance 3.6

Please aote thal FY19 15 a 14 month penod and any comparalives are for a 12 montf year encing 31 August unless othenvise slated McCarthy & Stone plC Annual Report 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - ...

32. Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment plans

The Group operates share-based payment schemes as set out below:

Long Term Incentive Plan {‘LTIP’)

The Group's LTIP is open to key management at the discretion of the Board. Awards under the scherme are granted in the form of
Enil-priced share options. LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP options become exercisable, on the third anniversary of the date
of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been satisfied. LTIP opticns will remain
exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant. Awards are 1o be settled by the issue of new shares or acquisition of shares in the
market. The performance conditions for the LTIP grants are Earnings Per Share ('EPS"), comparative Total Shareholder Return ('TSR’)
and Return On Capital Ermployed ('ROCE". The EPS and RCCE performance conditions are priced using the Black-Scholes model.
The TSR performance condition is a market based condition. In order to value the TSR performance conditions against the FTSE 250
and peer group, a Monte Caro simulation model is required which can simulate cormmelation between companies.

TSR is not a performance condition for the FY18 LTIR.

Lnp FY19 LTIP FY1BLTIP FY17 LTIP FY16 LTIP Total
Date of grant 13 December 2018* 17 Novernber 2017 21 December 2016 25 November 2015
Options granted 3,907,455 1,916,777 1,933,352 1,930,524
Fair value at measurement date** (£) 1.38 1.49 1.32 212
Share price on date of grant (£) 1.39 1.65 1.56 2.32
Exercise price (£) - - - -
Vesting period 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Expecied dividend yield n/a nfa nfa n/a
Expected volatility 37.90% 40.00% 29.21% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.77% p.a. 0.82% p.a. 0.23% p.a. 0.80% p.a.

Valuation model Black-Scholes only

Movements In the period:

Black-Scholes
and Monte Carlo

Black-Scholes
and Mante Carlo

Black-Scholes
and Monte Carlo

Options at beginning of the period - 1,873,545 1,722,760 1,324,980 4,921,285
Granted during the period 3,807,455 - - - 3,907,455
Exercised during the period - - - - -
Lapsed during the period (260,945} - - - (260,945)
Expired in the period - - - (1,324,980} (1,324,880}
Options at the end of the perlod 3,646,510 1,873,545 1,722,760 - 7242815

Exercisabie at end of the period -

688,074 options granted on 11 April 2019 under this scheme (share price on grant date £1.29)

**This Is the average fair value for the tranches of the LTIF scherme

For the FY16 LTIP and FY17 LTIR, due to the fact that there was limited shara price history for McCarthy & Stone, the Company’s
share price volatility was estimated as an average of the volatilities of the FTSE 250 over a histeric period commensurate with the
expected life of each award immediately prior to the date of grant.

For the FY18 and FY19 LTIP, there is now sufficient share price history for McCarthy & Stone and therefore the expected volatility
uses the Company’s share price volatility between the date of listing (5 November 2015) and the date of grant.
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Sharesave Plan {(*SAYE’}

The SAYE Plan is an all-employee savings related share option plan. Employees are invited to make regular rmonthly contributions

to a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services. On completion of the contract period (three or five years) employees are able to
purchase ordinary shares in the Company based on the average closing middle market price over the three days prior to the award,
less 20% discount. There are no performance conditions.

SAYE Total
Date of grant 13 December 2018 13 December 2018 10 December 2015 10 December 2015
Options granted 2,126,961 124,269 2,912,247 1,197,514
Fair value at measurement date {£}) 0.40 0.42 0.68 0.75
Share price on date of grant (£) 1.39 1.39 2.34 2.34
Exercise price (L) 1.112 1112 1.674 1.674
Vesting penod 3 years 5 years 3years 5 years
Expected dividend yield 4.00% 4.00% 26.20% 28.16%
Expected volatility 37.90% 37.90% 26.07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.77% p.a. 0.90% p.a. 0.80% p.a. 1.20% p.a.
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Movements In the perlod:

Options at beginning of the period - - 1,292,441 697,643 1,990,084
Granted during the period 2,126,961 124,269 - - 2,251,230
Exercised during the period - - - - -
Lapsed during the period (357,649) (7,013) - (447,297) (811,959}
Expired in the period - - (1,292,441) - (1,292,441)
Options at the end of the period 1,769,312 117,256 - 250,346 2,136,914

Exercisable at end of the period - - - - -

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the average histarical volatility over a period commensurate with the expected life of
the savings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250.

Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’}

The SIP allows all employees to purchase partnership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held in trust. These shares
can be sold or taken from the SIP or be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open. All plan shares and any other assets
held by the trustees will be held upon trust for the participants; there is thersfore no impact to the Group's financial statements in respect
of this plan.

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan (‘ABP’}

The ABP incorporates the Company's executive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus into awards

over ordinary shares. The Remuneration Committee can determine that part of the bonus under the ABR is provided as an award
of deferred shares, which takes the form of a £nil cost option. All employees {including the Exscutive Directors) of the Group are
eligible to participate in the ABP at the discretion of the Board. At 31 October 2019, four Executive Directors were participating in
the scheme. For the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019, 100% of the bonus eamed by the two COOs will be deferred in the
form of deferred shares for three years, during which no performance conditions will apply. The amount deferred will be recognised
over the three-year deferral period. The CEO and CFO were participating within this scheme however did not receive a bonus
(2018:12 months to 31 August: £0.2m).

Total share-based payment schemes

14 months to 12 months te

31 October 2019 31 August 2018

Analysls of the income charge: £m £m
Equity-settled share-based payments

SAYE 0.4 0.8

LTIP 1.0 -

1.4 0.8
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33. Related undertakings

The entities listed below are subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates of the Company or Group in accordance with section 408
of the Companies Act 2006. All entities, unless noted below, are registered in England and Wales with a registered address of:
4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemoutts, Dorset, BHS 8AQ.

2019 2018

Company % of shares % of shares

Name Footnote number Principal activity owned owned
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited 06622183 Holding company 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited 06622231 Ceveloper 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited 05663330 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited 05984851 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Investment Properties No, 23 Limited 1 06496130 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Total Care Living) Limited 1 06069509 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited 068973603 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited 06897301 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited 07166051 Development management 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited 1 07165986 Holding company 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited 1 04213618 Holding company 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited 07153519 Development management 100 50
The Planning Bureau Limited 1,2 02207050 Dormant 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Limited 1 10716544 Property resales 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Properties Limited 1 1771289 Property investment 100 nfa
McCarthy & Stone Rental Properties No.2 Limited 1 11822847 Property investment 100 nfa
McCarthy & Stone Rental Properties No.3 Limited 1 12143464 Property investment 160 n/a
Waverstone LLLP QC429158 Property investment 49 nfa
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited 4 01925738 Dormant n/a 100
McCarthy & Stone {Alnwick) Limited 4 07517819 Dormant n/a 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No. 1 Limited 4 06897272 Darmant n/a 100
McCarthy & Stone Financial Services Limited 4 07798214 Dormant n/a 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Limited 4 Q7165852 Dormant n/a 100
Ortus Homes Limited 4 08658235 Darmant n/a 100
Kindle Housing (Christchurch) Limited 3,5 04737739 Affordable housing rental 50 50
Kindle Housing (Exeter) Limited 3,5 05692813 Affordable housing rental 50 50
Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited 3.5 04239574 Affordable housing rental 50 50
Kindle Housing Limited 3,5 04088162 Affordabile housing management 50 50
Advantage Apartments Limited 2,35 03697251 Darmant 50 50
Advantage Housing Limited 2,3,5 03697230 Dormant 50 50
Advantage Homes Limited 2.3, 5 036297079 Dormant 50 50

1 These subsidiaries will iake advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Cormpanies Act 2006 for the 14 month
period ended 31 Cgtober 2019

2 These subsidiaries are considered dormant for the 14 month period ended 31 October 2019 and have taken advantage of the section
394A exemption from preparing individual financial statements

3 These subsidiaries are registered at Cosmopoiitan House, Old Fore Street, Sidmouth, Devon, EX10 8LS
4 These subsidiaries have been dissolved during the financial period
5 These enlities are joint ventures

McCarthy & Stone (Developments} Limited is directly owned by the Company. All other subsidiaries, joint ventures or asscciates
are indirectly owned by McCarthy & Stone plc. Each of the sharehcldings gives the immediate parent company 100% veting
rights unless stated above. All shares are classified as ‘ordinary”.
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34. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consclidation and are not disclosed in this note, Transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.
Transactions between the Group and associates of the Group are eliminated proportionally based upon the percentage of
shares owned.

During the year, the Group completed the sale of a portfolio of 113 show flats and sales offices to Waverstone LLP and subsequent
leaseback for a maximum of 12 months. Waverstane LLP is an entity between Waverley Investments Limited and McCarthy & Stone
Extra Care Limited, where McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Living Limited heolds a non-controliing 49% equity interest and therefore has
been treated as an associate in the Group financial statements. Waverstone LLF was created to facilitate the purchase, management
and disposal of various assets bullt by the Group. Waverstone LLP has appointed McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited
a property manager and a sales agent.

The transaction resulted in an additional FY1© cash flow for the Group of ¢.£17m with the remaining balance of ¢.£16m expected to
be paid over 2 years. FY19 underlying operating profit for the Group Includes ¢.£2.7m profit from the transaction, after taking account
of unrealised profit and fair value adjustments in relation to the outstanding receivable balance.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the Board, key internal Directors and the Executive Committee including Non-Executive
Directors. The average number of roles during the period was 18 {2018: 13).The remuneration that they have received during
the period is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in |1AS 24 “Related Farty Disclosures’.

14 months to 12 menths to

31 Qctober 2018 31 August 2018

£m £m

Wages and salaries 4.5 2.8
Social security costs 0.6 0.4
Share-based payments 0.7 -
Pension contributions 0.5 0.4
Termination payments - 0.5
6.3 4.1

Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director 0.9 1.3

35. Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events after the reporting period that required disclosure or adjustment in the FY19 financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 October 2019

31 October 2018 31 August 2018
£m

Notes £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4 439.4 439.4
Total non-current assets 439.4 439.4
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 21.0 50.0
Total current assets 21.0 50.0
Total assets 460.4 489.4

Equity and liabllities
Capltal and reserves

Share capital 7 43.0 430
Share premium 101.6 101.6
Retained earnings 308.9 3378
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 453.5 482.4
Current llabllities

Trade and other payables 6 8.9 7.0
Total current liabilitles 6.9 7.0
Total liabilltles 6.9 7.0
Total equity and liabilities 460.4 489.4

Notes 1 to 10 form part of the financial statements shown above.

The Company has elected to take exemption 5408 of the Companies Act 2008 not to present the Company Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The Company recorded a lass for the 14 month period of £1.3m (2018: loss lor the 12 month period
of £0.8m).

These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc {06622199) were approved by the Board on 27 January 2020 and signed
on its behalf by:

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended at 31 October 2019

Share Share Retained Total
capiai premium earnings equity
£m £em £m £m
Balance at 1 September 2017 43.0 101.6 367.4 §12.0
Loss for the year - - {0.8) (0.8}
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - (0.8) {0.8)
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based paymeants - - 0.8 0.8
Dividends - - (29.6) {29.6)
Balance at 31 August 2018 43.0 101.6 337.8 482 .4
Loss for the year - - (1.3) (1.3)
Total comprehenslve income for the vear - - (1.3) (1.3)
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments - - 1.4 1.4
Dividends - - {232.0) {29.0)
Balance at 31 October 2019 43.0 101.6 308.9 453.5

Notes 1 to 10 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The Registered Office is 4th Floor,
100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ. The foliowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with the items that are considered rmaterial in relation to the financial statements, on an ongoing basis and in accordance with the
Companies Act 20086,

Basis of preparation

The separate Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost accounting rules and in accordance with
FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicahle in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. The Company is exempt
from the requirement to prasent its own Staterment of Comprehensive Income. The Company recorded a loss for the 14 month period
of £1.3m {(2018: loss for the 12 month period of £0.8m).

As permitted by FRS 102, the Gompany has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available in relation to presentation of a
Cash Flow Statement, standards not yet effective and related party transactions.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below,

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the Staterment of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by refarence to the fair value at the dats at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting pericd. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-market based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a failure to
satisfy a non-market based vesting condition.

Further details regarding the schermes are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to McCarthy & Stone plc's shareholders are recognised in the Company's financial staternents in the periods
in which the final dividends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the case of an interim dividend.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets

All financial asssts are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract, They are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except
for those financial assets classified as at fair value through prefit or loss, which are initially measured at fair vaiue,

Financial assets are classified as ‘trade and other receivables'. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as trade and other receivables’ are measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the recognition of interast would be immaterial,
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Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘trade and other receivables’.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair valug, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Related parties

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group. Where appropriate,
transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand
the effect of the transactions on the financial statements.

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and asscciated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed cn an ongoing basts, Revisions 1o accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no specific critical judgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or other major sources of
estimaticn uncertainty at the end of the reporting pericd, that are deemed to have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the year end and within the next financial period.

3. Staff costs

The Company had no employees during the period covered by these financial statements (2018: no employees). A management fee
relating to time incurred by Directors for Group activities is recharged to McCarthy & Stone plc.
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4. Investment in subsidiaries
31 October 2019 31 August 2018

tm £m
Cpening 439.4 438.4
Additions - -
Closing 439.4 4344
Net book value 439.4 439.4

Investrment in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited.

The Group's subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

5. Trade and other receivables
3t Getober 2019 31 August 2018

£m £m

Amounts falling due within one yeat:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 21.0 50.0
21,0 50.0

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retiremnent Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and canry interest of 2.2%
{2018: 2.2%;) at the year end date.

6. Trade and other payables

31 October 2019 31 August 2018
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 6.8 59
Other creditors and deferred income Q1 11
6.9 7.0

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2.2% (2018: 2.2%j)
at the year end date.

7. Share capital

. 31 October 2019 31 August 2018
Allotled and issued ordinary shares Em £m

8p each fully paid: 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2018 537,329,434) 43.0 43.0
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Dividends on equity shares

The interim dividend of 1.9p (2018: 1.9p) was approved by the Board on 10 April 2019 and paid on 11 June 2019 1o all ordinary
shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 3 May 2018, The ex-dividend date was 2 May 2019,
The final dividend proposed by the Board is 3.5p (2018: 3.5p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dividend for the period of &.4p

(2018: 5.4p). It will be paid on 3 April 2020 to those shareholders who are on the register at 6 March 2020 subject to approval at

the Company’'s Annual Generat Meeting. The ex-dividend date is 5 March 2020. These financial statements do not refiect the final

dividend payment,

8. Financial instruments
The Company has the following financial instruments:

31 Octaber 2019 31 August 2018

£m £m
Financial assets

At amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables 21.0 50.0
Cash and bank balances - -
21.0 50.0

Financlal Habllitles

At amortised cost:
Trade and other payables 6.9 7.0
6.9 7.0

The Company has no derivative financial instruments. The fair value of the financial instruments is egual to their carrying values.

9. Related party transactions

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group,

under FRS 102 33.1A. See note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date have been disclosed within note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Warning to Shareholders

Share, bond and boiler room scams

The Financial Conduct Authority (‘'FCA) advises that share
and bond scams are often run from ‘boiler rooms' where
fraudsters cold-call investors offering them worthiess,
overpriced or even non-existent shares or bonds. Boiler
rooms use increasingly sophisticated tactics to approach
investors, offering to buy or sell shares in a way that will
bring a huge return. But victims are often left out of pocket,
sometimes losing all of their savings or even their family
horne. Even seasoned investors have been caught out, with
the biggest individual loss recorded by the police being £6m.

How share and bond scams work

Share and bond fraud usuafly comes out of the biug,

with scammers cold-calling investors after taking their
phone number from publicly available shareholder lists.

The high-pressure sales tactics can also come by email,
post, word of mouth or at a seminar. These scams are
sometimes advertised in newspapers, magazines or online
as genuine investment opportunities. They may even offer

a free research report into a company, or a free gift or
discount on their dealing charges. You will often be told that
you need to make a quick decision or miss out on the deal.

The scammers might also try to sell you shares or bonds

in a company that doesn’t exist. If you already own shares in
a company, you may receive a call from someone offering to
buy them at a higher price than their market value. The scam
will request the money upfront as a bond or other form of
security, which they say they'll pay back if the sale doesn'’t
go ahead - hut you'll never hear from them again.

Beware of clone firms

Many bogus trading and brokerage firms will use the name,
‘firm registration number’ ('FRN’) and address of firms and
individuals who are FCA authorised. This is called a ‘clone
firm’'. The scammers then give their own phone number,
address and website details, sometimes claiming that

a firm's contact details on the Register are out of date.
Scammers might also claim to be an overseas firm, which
don’t always have their fuli contact and website details listed
on the Register. Scammers may even copy the website of
an authonised firm, making subtle changes such as the
phone number.
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How to protect yourself

FCA-authorised firms are unlikely to contact you out of
the biue with an offer to buy or sell shares or bonds.

YYou should only deal with financial services firms that are
authoriged by the FCA and check the FCA register to ensure
they are. You can also check the FCA Warning List of firms

to avold at: www.fca.org.uk/scamsmart/warning-list

You should check the firm isn't a clone firm by asking for their
firm reference number and contact details and then calling
them back on the switchboard number on the Register - never
use a link in an email or website from the firm offeting you an
investment. Always be wary if you're contacted out of the blue,
pressured to invest quickly or promised returns that sound tco
good 1o be true.

You should seriously consider seeking financial advice or
guidance before investing. You should make sure that any
firrn you deal with is regulated by the FCA and never take
investment advice from the company that contacted you,
as this may be part of the scam. The Money Advice Service
has information on investing and about how to find a financial
adviser at: www.moneyadviceservice.org.uk/en/
articles/choosing-a-financial-adviser#how~to-find-
a-financialadviser. Alternatively, you could get further
information from a group that represents advisers such

as The Personal Investment Management and Financial
Advice Association (‘'PIMFAY}. www.pimfa.co.uk/

Read more about how to find a financial adviger at:
www.thepfs.org/yourmoney/find-an-adviser/

If you have been scammed

You can report the firm or scam to the FCA by contacting
the FCA GConsumer Helpline on: 6800 111 6768 or using
the FCA reporting form at: www.fca.org.uk/consumers/
report-scam-unauthorised-firm

If you have already invested in a scam, fraudsters are likely

to target you agairt or sell your details 1o other criminals. The

follow-up scam may be completely separate or related to the
previous fraud, such as an offer to get your money back or to
buy back the investment after you pay a fee.

If you have any concerns at all about a potential scam,
contact the FCA at: www.fca.org.uk

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters or suffering
from a live cyber aitack you should contact Action Fraud an:
0300 123 2040 or report via: www.actionfraud.police.uk/
reporting-fraud-and-cyber-crime

Please note that FY 1915 a 14 monih penod and any comparaives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwise stated
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Historical Statistics

{unaudited)

FY19' FY19? FY18 FY17 FY16 FY153
Legal completions® 2,301 2,144 2134 2,302 2,296 1,923
Average selling price £308k £308k £300k £273k £264k £245k
Revenue £725.0m £674.9m £671.6m £660.9m £635.9m £485.7m
Profit before tax £43.5m £61.2m £58.1m £82.1m £92.9m £80.8m
Underlying operating profit £68.1m £73.4m £67.5m £96.2m £107.2m £95.3m
Underlying operating profit before tax £63.1m £69.1m £62.1m £94.1m £105.0m £88.4m
Shareholders’ funds £769.0m £769.0m £762.1m £744.7m £697.3m £541.8m
ROCE 10% 10% 10% 16% 20% 20%
Tangible gross asset value £678.4m £678.4m £691.6m £645.7m £574.1m £513.5m
Tangible net asset value £703.1m £703.1m £695.6rm £676.4m £626.8m £469.1m
Basic earnings per share 6.5p 9.8p 8.6p 13.8p 13.9p 13.5p°
Dividends for the year® 5.4p 5.4p 5.4p 5.4p 4.5p il
Number of shares in issue 537,329,434 537,329,434 537,329,434 537,320,434 537,314,069 n/a’
Number of shareholders 694 694 747 863 705 n/ad

1 The FY19 staterment is for the 14 month period from 1 September 2018 to 31 October 2019

2 FY19 is the like for fike 12 month period comparative to FY18 frormn T November 2018 to 31 October 2019 {unaudited)

3 The FY'15 financial staterments were produced prior to our Stock Exchange listing which fook place on 11 November 2015

4 Excludes commercial units

5 The dividerids in respect of any financial year are the interim dividend which has been paid and the final dividend which has been proposed

6 The figure for the FY'15 EPS was recalculated in the FY'16 Annual Report and adjusted to reflect the 4:1 consolidation of our share capital that took
place in FY16; prior years have not been adjusted

7 The Company’s share capitai at 31 August 2015 was 1,905,548, 757 ordinary shares of 20p each. As part of the preparation for kisting, the nominal
value of the shares was reduced to 2p, additional shares were allotted and the shares were consolidated on a 4:1 basis becomning ordinary shares
of 8p norninal value

8 The number of shareholders prior to our listing on 11 Novernber 2015 has not been disciosed on the grounds of irrelavance

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

Some of the information in this document may contain projections or other forward-looking statements regarding future events

or the future financial performance of McCarthy & Stone plc and its subsidiaries {the Group). You can identify forward-looking
statements by terms such as ‘expect’, ‘believe’, ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, 'intend’, ‘will’, ‘could’, ‘may’ or ‘might’, the negative of

such terms or other similar expressions. McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company) wishes to caution you that these statements are

only predictions and that actual events or results may differ materially. The Company does not intend to update these statements

to reflect events and circumstances occurring after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, Many factors
could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in projections or forward-looking statements of the Group,
including ameong others, general economic conditions, the competitive environment as well as many other risks specifically related

to the Group and its operations. Past performance of the Group cannot be relied on as a guide to future performance.

Piease note that Y19 s a 14 month period and any comparatives are for 3 12 month year endiing 371 August unless ofherwise stated McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report m



General Information

McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited
by shares and registered in England and Wales,
registered number 06622199.

Our registered and head office is situated at:

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road

Bournemouth

Dorset

BH8 8AQ

Telephone: 01202 292480

Corporate website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Consumer website: www.mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Email: investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Cur ardinary shares are listed an the London Stock Exchange
{premium listing) and we are in the FTSE 250 Index.

Legal Entity Identifier (LEI):
213800CEJ40Q5YPUBZ37

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN}:
GBOOBYNVDO82

Ticker Symbol: MCS

Advisers
Financial adviser Registrar
Rothschild Link Asset Services
The Registry
. : 34 Beckenham Road
t
Financial and corporate Beckenham

communications Kent BR3 4TU

Powerscourt
Banker Statutory auditor
HSBC Bark plc Earnst & Young LLP

Joint corporate brokers
Deutsche Bank
Peel Hunt

Contact details for our registrars, Link Asset Services:

Calls from the UK: 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 12p per
minute, plus any network extras;
lines open Monday to Friday,
9am until 5.30pm, excluding
UK public holldays).

Calls from
cutside the UK: +44 371 664 0300
Email: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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Contact Details

@ NORTHERN DIVISION
lan Wilkins Divisional Managing Director
ian.wilkins@rmccarthyandstone.co.uk

@ MIDLANDS DIVISION
Matt Wills Divisional Managing Director
matt.wills@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

@ LONDON & SOUTH EAST
Andrew Wickett Divisional Managing Director
andrew.wickett@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

@ SOUTHERN DIVISION
Shane Paull Divisional Managing Director
shane.paull@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

NORTHERN

Aspen House

Wykeham Road
Northminster Business Park
Upper Poppleton

York YO26 60W

Tel: 01904 444 200

NORTHERN
Unit 3, Edward Court
Altrincham Business Park
Attrincham WA14 5GL

Tel: 01619 416 255 oy

LA 'ﬁ’lﬂ%ﬁy@ !
fn !
st Y

NG » MIDLANDS
R it g QOrion House, Orion Way
MIDLANDS Kettering NN15 6PE
Ross House Tel: 01536 220 700

Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Coventry CV3 2TR
Tel: 02476 441 199

Py
T %.Rflsr?— [

N\,

v

>
£
JL

LONDON & SOUTH EAST
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road

Hatfield AL9 SDA

Tel: 01707 446 000

BOURNEMOUTH LONDON & SQUTH EAST
2 Genesis Business Park
Aloert Dri
SOUTHERN  HEAD OFFICE Woking Aloert Orive
Southern House 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road Tl 01483 908 600

1 Embankment Way Bournemouth, Dorset BHB 8ACQ
Ringwood BH24 1EL Tel: 01202 292 480
Tel: 01425 322 000

Flease note that FYTY /8 @ 14 month period and any COMParaives are for a |2 month year ending 31 AuQUS! Lnless olherwise stated McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report 173



Glossary

Acronyms

SAAN

‘AT’

‘ACCA
‘ASP’

‘B2p’

‘BCR’

‘BSG’

‘CRM’

‘CGU’

‘CIL

‘CIMA
‘CiPD’

‘CMI’

'CPI’

CQC!

‘EAC’

‘EPS’

‘FRI

‘FTSE’

‘HBF’

*HNC’

‘HPY

PO’

‘LIBOR’
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All Advisor Average - based on the number
of non-cenformances reported on our sites
following visits by the NHBC

Association of Accounting Technicians
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

Average selling price - calculated as average list
price less cash discounts, part-exchange top-ups
and stamp duty land tax payments (FY19 only)

Business to business - trade between
McCarthy & Stone and other businesses

Build cost reduction - the reduction in cost per
sguare metre in the process of building a property

Building Safety Group - a not-for-profit arganisation
which specialises in providing Health, Safety and
Environrental advice ta the construction industry

Customer Relationship Management - a custormer
relationship management took is software used to
build and manage interactions with customers

Cash generating unit - the smallest identifabie
group of assets that generate cashflows

Community Infrastructure Levy of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 - is a charge
which can be imposed by local authorities on a new
development in their area

Chartared institute of Management AcCountants

Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development
- a professional association for human resource
management professionals

Chartered Management Institute - an accrediled
professional institution for management

Consumer Price Index - measures the price of goods
and services over time with the incorperation of inflation

Care Quality Commission - an executive
non-departmental public body of the Department
of health and social care which reguliates and
inspects health and social care services in England

Elderly Accommoadation Counsel - a registered charity
who assist elderly people to make decisions about the
housing, support and care needs they raquire

Earnings Per Share - profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year

Frechold Reversionary Interest - the value of freehold
of each of the Group’s developments in England and
Wales which include the future incorme stream of
ground rents which can be sold to third parties

Financial Times Stock Exchange - a ranking list of the
largest quoted companies based on market capitalisation

Housebuilder Federation - the representative body
of the home building industry in England and Wales

Higher National Gertificate - a further education
qualification providing core skills and knowledge
required for many professions

Hause Price Inflation - the increase in the price of
houses over time due to inflation

Initial Public Offering - the first time investors can
purchase company’s shares on the stock market

London Interbank Offered Rate - the basic rate of
interest used in lending between banks on the
London interbank market

‘LLP

‘MHCLG’

‘MMC’

‘MSMS’

‘NHBC'

“PFY

‘PLC’

‘PPP’

‘PRS’

‘RIDDOR’

‘ROCE’

‘RCF'

‘RICS’
‘RQF’

RPI

‘SDLT”

‘TGAV

TNAV

‘TSR’

YLMS'

Limited Liability Partnership - a partnership between
two or mare entities, the liability is limited solely to the
individual partners

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local
Government - the UK government department
for nousing, communities and local Government

Modern Methods of Construction - refers to
alternatives employed by construction companies
to build new properties

McCarthy & Stone Managernent Setvices Limited - a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that provides |
management services to homeowners in the Group's

Retirernent Living and Retirernent Living PLUS

developments

National House Building Council - the UK’s leading
warranty and insurance provider for UK house building
for new homes

Private Finance initiative - the way of financing public
sector projects utilising private sector expertise and
finance

Public Limited Company - a company registered under
the Companies Act, with statutory minimum cagpital
requirements and shares offered to the public subject
to conditions of limited liability

Public Private Partnership - iong-termn contracts where
the private sector designs builds, finances and operates
an infrastructure project

Private Rented Sector - all non-owner occupied property
excluding the local authorities and housing associations

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations 2014 - This is the slalulory
obligaticn to report and record serious injuries that occur
in the workplace

Return On Capital Employed - calculated by dividing
ungderlying operating profit by the average of opening
and clesing tangible gross asset value

Revolving Credit Faciity - an arrangement between
lender banks and the Group that allows the business
to access funds when required

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors

Regulated Qualifications Framework - a naticnailly
recognised framework that awards accredited
qualifications for education in England, Wales and
Northern Irefand

Retail Price Index - measuras the variation in the price
of goods and services purchased by consurmers

Stamp Duty Land Tax - tax payable on the acquisition
of a property or land within certain bands

Tangible Gross Asset Value - calculated as TNAV less
net debt/cash

Tangible Net Asset Value - calculated as net assets
excluding goodwill and intangible assets

Total Shareholder Return - a measurernent of the
performance of the Group’s share price since the IPQ,
It combines the share price appreciaticn and dividends
paid to show the total return to the shareholders
expressed as a percentage

YourLife Management Services Limited - a wholly
awned subsidiary of MSMS, that provides management
services, domestic assistance, personal care and
additional support to homeowners in the Group's
Retirement Living PLUS davelopiments

Please note thal FY19.s 4 14 month period and any comparatives are for a 12 month year ending 31 August unless otherwise stated



Financial KPI's

‘Capital turn’
‘Gash saving’
‘Cost saving’

‘Earnings
per share’

‘Gearing’

‘Gross
rental yield’

‘Gross yield’

‘Interest cover’

‘Investment
in land’
‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘Net rental yield’

‘Net yield’

‘Operating
profit margin’

‘Profit
before tax’

‘Rental yield’

‘Return On Capital

Employed %’

‘Revenue’

‘TGAV'

Please note thal FY19 15 a 14 month perfed and any comparatives are for a 12 monih year ending 31 August uniess othenwise sialed
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Definition
Calculated by dividing revenue by the average of opening
and closing tangible gross asset value

Reduction In cash spent on existing operations compared
1o the previous period

Reduction in costs incurred on existing operations
compared to the previous period

Earnings Per Share - profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year

Gearing Is calculated by dividing net debt by net assets

This is the rental yield on an investment before any
associated costs for managing the investment are
taken intc account

Rate of return on an investment before taxes and
expenses are included

Calculated by dividing underlying operating profit before
depreciation and intangibles amortisation by the net
interest expenses (excluding revaluations) for the period

Represents the amount of capital invested in the
purchase of land

Net assets is calculated as total assets less total
liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents less long-term and
short-term borrowings (excluding unamortised debt
issue costs)

This is the rental yield on an investment after any
asscciated operating costs for managing the
investment are taken into account

Rate of return on an investment minus the operating costs

Operating profit divided by total revenue, expressed as
a percentage

Profit before tax of the Group including share of profits
from joint ventures/associations

Rate of return from the rental income from an investment
property

Calculated by dividing undertying operating profit by the
average of opening and closing TGAV

See note 7 to the consolidated financial staternents for reconciliation
Represents the fair value of the consideration received from
the sale of leasehold interest in retirerment apartrments and

freehold interests in houses and bungalows, revenue from
the sale of freehold reversionary interests and rental revenue

Tangible gross asset value, calculated as TNAV less net
debt/cash

See note 7 o the consolidated financial staterments for reconciliation

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS

Why we use
Demonstrates how efficiently we are utilising our capital

Demonstrates whether we are on track to optimise our
operations for strong financial performance

Demonstrates whether we are on track to optimise our
operations for strong financial performance

Earnings per share is used as a measure of performance
by showing profit attributable to shareholders on a per
share basis

Provides a financial measure of the amount of long-term debt
in the business as a propoertion of the total capital employed

Provides a measure of the percentage return on an
investment that can be used to compare its performance
to alternative investment opportunities

Provides a measure which can be used to compare
different investrnents and the relative returns of each.
This does not consider the relative risk of each investment

Provides an indication of how easily a business can
service the interest incurred as a cost of barrowing

Demonstrates how we use our capital and is an indicater
of the amount of investment in land

A rmeasure of liquidity which states the level of assets
available to the business

A measure of the borrowings remaining if the tusiness
chose to use all of its available cash and cash equivalents
to pay down the gross debt at any moment in time

Provides a measure of the percentage return on an
investment that can be used to compare its performance
to alternative investment opportunities

Provides a measure which can be used to compare
different investments and the relative returns of each.
This does not consider the relative risk of each investment

Dermonstrates profitability of our business before
finance costs and tax. Used to assess the efficiency
of our cperations

Measures the profitability of the business after
administrative expenses, other cperating income
and expenditure and finance costs

Provides a measure of the percentage return on an
investrnent that can be used to compare its performance
to alternative investrnent cpportunities

Ensures efficient and effective use of capital and is a key
measure for assessing the performance of the Executive
Directors

Key driver for the business. Tracks progress against
strategic objectives

Represents total amount of physical assets owned by
the Group
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Glossary continuea

Financial KPFs continued

‘TNAV'

‘Underlying
operating profit’

‘Underlying
operating
profit margin %'

‘Underlying
profit before tax’

Definition

Tangible net asset value, calculated as net assets excluding
goodwili and intangible assets

Calculated by adding amortisation of brand and exceptional
iterns to operating profit for the year

See nole 7 to the consolidated financial staterments for reconciliation
Calculated by dividing underlying operating profit for the
year by revenue in percentage terms

See note 7 1o the consolidated financial statements for reconciliation

Calculated as profit before tax excluding exceptional items
and amortisation of brand. Provides a more accurate
refiection of performance of the year

Non-Financial KPI's

‘Build cycle time’

‘Build starts
in the year’

‘Customer
Satisfaction’

'Customer Quality
Care (CQC) score’

‘Detailed planning
consents’

‘Development
cycle time’

‘Developments
under management,
care and wellbeing
services’

'First occupation’

‘Growth of
management,

care and wellbeing
services’

‘Hours of care
and support’

‘Land bank'
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Definition

Defined as the length of time from the date of build
start to the date of first cccupation

Defined as the number of sites where building has
commenced during the year

Customer satisfaction survey of new homeowners by
the NHBC. The percentage of homebuyers who would
recommend McCarthy & Stone to a friend

Public bedy independent inspection of health and sccial care
standards of our management, care and wellbeing services

Plarning consent from local planning authorities

required in the UK in order to be allowed to build on

land or change the use of land or buildings. Detailed
planning congents grant permission for all aspects of

a proposed development, generally subject to the local
planning authorities’ conditions (such as undertakings
regarding envircnmental or noise issues), as opposed

to outline planning consents which do not give permission
to all aspects of a proposed development and typically
represent an agreement in principle without a determination
of the particular form of design or layout of the proposed
development

Time taken between land exchange and build start for
our develepments

Number of developments which are managed by our
in-house management, care and wellbeing services

A milestone in a cycle of our development being the date
of the first resident moving into a given development

Revenue generated by the management, care and
wellbeing services as a percentage of total Group revenue

Number of hours that have been provided to customers
for care and support within our developments by our
in-house management, care and wellbeing services function

Includes owned sites and exchanged sites

Why we use
Represents total amount of physical assets owned by
the Group minus liabilities

Details profitability of our business before finance costs,
tax, amortisation of brand and exceptional items.
Measures the efficiency of our business operations

Details profitability of our business before finance costs,
tax, amortisation of prand and exceptional items.
Measures the efficiency of our business operations in
percentage terms

Details profitability of our business excluding exceptional
tterns, Measures the profitability of our business operations

Why we use

The measure is used to determine the efficiency and
effectiveness of the build process and the draw on
working capital

Indication of our workflow compared to previous years

Used as a benchmark against our peers in relation to build
quality and customer satisfaction. Customer satisfaction is
of the highest importance to the Group

Impartant regulatory score of our compliance with the
Department of Health and Social care standards used to
ensure we are compliant with applicable standards

Lemonstrates effectiveness of our plarnniny prouess
and workflow

Demonstrates efficiency of our planning and design
process for our developments and working capital draw

Demonstrates the number and growth of developments
that are currently being managed by our in-house
management, care and wellbeing services

Demonstrates the efficiency of the development and build
cycles of the business

Management, care and wellbeing services is fundarmental
to achieving our vision, purpose and strategic objectives

The humber and growth of hours that have been
provided to customers for care and support within our
developments by our in-house management, care and
wellbeing services

Drives the ownership of the optimum amount of land
to support the business and long-term praspects and
sustainability

Plegse note that FY19is a 14 month perod and any comparatves are for 2 12 month year ending 31 August uniess otherwise stated



‘Legal completions’

‘Lower
cost product’

‘Meals served’

‘Sales releases’

‘Number of
land exchanges’

‘Number of
residents’
‘Occupancy churn’

'Off plan
reservations’

‘Rented properties’

‘Shared ownership’

Other
'Company’

‘Exceptional items’

‘Group’

‘In-house part-exchange’

‘Investment properties’

‘Multi-tenure’

‘Panelised development’

‘Rightsize the business’

‘Rental offering’
‘Rent to buy’

‘Seed investment portfolio’

‘Section 106’

‘Shared Ownership Offering’
‘Specialist Retirement Housing’
“Volumetric development’

‘Yield compression’

Please note that FY191s a 14 month penod and any comparalives are for @ 12 month year endiing 31 August urdess ctherwise staled
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Definition

The Group recegnises a legal completion at the point
of completion ¢of a sale of a property to a purchaser

A product range reflecting streamlined, contemporary
and compact design at mass market average prices

Number of meals served to our customers at
Retirerment Living PLUS developments

Shows the number of new sites that have become
avaitable for reservation by the prospective customers
during the year

Number of land sites for which purchase contracts have
been exchanged but not legally completed

Number of customers currently residing in the
developments that are managed by McCarthy & Stone

Percentage of homeowners who leave a
McCarthy & Stone property in a given year

Number of properties that have been sold subject to
contract prior to first occupation

Number of properties occupied on a rental basis

Number of properties sold on a part-buy, part-rent basis

Definition

McCarthy & Store plc

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Why we use

Reflects sales activity in the year in terms of apartments
and bungalows sold outright or on a shared ownership
basis

Lower cost product is part of our strategic objective
to improve preduct affordakbility

Demonstrates the number and growth of customers
who are benefiting from our managerment, care and
wellbeing services

Demonstrates the capacity, efficiency and eflectiveness
of our development and build cycles and effective use of
our working capital

Demonstrates the capacity and efficiency of our land
acquisition function

Demonstrates the number and growth of customers
that are living in our developments

Provides a means to calculate how long on average
a resident stays in a McCarthy & Stone property

Indicater of effectiveness of cur Sales and Marketing
function and an indicator of the desirabifity and demand
of our apartments

Provides a comparison from one year to the next of the
rumber of properties in the Company's rental portfalio

Shared ownership is part of the multi-tenure offering
and strategic objective of capitalising on wider market
opportunities

lterns of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material, non-recurring and
unusual in nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure

McCarthy & Stone and its consolidated subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings

McCarthy & Stone may choose to acquire a property from a customer to facilitate the speed at

which they are able to purchase and move into a McCarthy & Stone property
Properties held to earn rental or for capital appreciation
The different choices available for customers to occupy a McCarthy & Stone property

Panelised development relates 1o off-site manufacture of wall, floor and roof panels which are
assembled on-site into three dimensicnal structures

A phrase to articulate the process by which the management of the company conduct a strategic
review of the cost base associated with running the business and implement the outcome

Properties available for rental
A rental offering with an option to purchase

An initial portfolio of McCarthy & Stone rental properties

Legally-binding agreements or planning obligations entered into between a landowner and a local
planning autherity, under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1890

Properties available on a part-buy, part-rent basis
Housing that is designed with features that are intended specifically to suit the retirement market
Relates to the manufacture of three-dimensional modules in factory conditions,

Modules may be delivered to site as a basic structural shell
QOccurs when rental income increases or decreases at a slower rate compared to the investment

property valuation
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About this printed report

This year's McCarthy & Stone Annual Report is printed using vegetable-based inks on UPM Fine paper, which is made from
FSC® certified and traceable pulp sources, Il is manulactured in accordance with 1SO certified standards for environmental,
quality and energy management and it is BRC certified for storage and distribution, The paper is Bernental Chiotine Free” and
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